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Corporate Information
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COMPANY PROFILE
ALl

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Solargiga”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code:
757) is a leading supplier of upstream and downstream vertically
integrated solar energy services. Its products are not only sold to
customers in the upstream and mid-stream industries, but also
directly to end users.

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in four main
businesses:

(@)  the manufacture of, trading of and provision of processing
services for monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers;

(b)  the manufacture and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar
cells;

(c)  the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules; and
(d)  the construction and operating of photovoltaic power plants.

The production line of the Group previously covered the upstream
photovoltaic monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers, mid-stream
solar cells and downstream photovoltaic modules. However, due to
the ageing of the production line of the solar cell and its low
production capacity without economies of scale, the Group adjusted
its operating strategy to utilise its resources in developing niche
products and no longer continued to manufacture any solar cells.

The Group now focuses on the manufacturing and sales of upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers and downstream
photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic industry. Among them, the
major customers of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers are
large midstream solar cell manufacturers and the major customers of
photovoltaic modules are large domestic state-owned enterprises,
multinational corporations and other photovoltaic end-user
customers. This enables the Group to fully demonstrate its current
advantages in the production of such products. Moreover, the Group
is engaged in the installation of photovoltaic systems and the
development, design, construction, operation and maintenance of
photovoltaic generation plants.

Currently, our integrated business model includes monocrystalline
silicon solar ingot production with annual capacity of 3.45GW, solar
wafer production with annual capacity of 2.5GW and modules
production with annual capacity of 3.7GW, respectively.
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Five-Year Financial Summary T FEMBEHE
RMB’000 AREFTL
2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-RF ZE—tF ZZE-\FE ZE-NF
Revenue A 3,020,976 3,999,616 4,022,452 4,425,552 6,051,956
Gross profit E7F 329,077 657,873 397,550 341,368 585,852
Operating (loss)/profit mE(F|) /78 (74,289) 251,595 (95,271) (184,107) (32,781)
(Loss)/profit attributable to  #E 5B B 14 (B518) /
equity shareholders R (239,149) 107,462 (222,402) (355,492) (215,648)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share &L E AR (EE) /BT
(RMB cents) (ARES) (7.45) 3.35 (6.92) (11.07) (6.82)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,990,045 1,789,319 1,811,054 1,606,272 1,743,154
Current assets REEE 2,284,503 2,821,891 2,754,947 2,822,908 3,858,549
Current liabilities wEasE 2,937,233 3,170,491 3,431,772 3,578,792 4,822,316
Non-current liabilities ERBARE 458,627 405,290 326,238 394,822 439,391
Net assets EESE 878,688 1,035,429 807,991 455,566 339,996
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Dear honourable shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”)
of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited, | hereby
present the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

ENEHHRER :
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TAN Wenhua,
Executive Director and Chairman

BXE RTEERERE

In 2020, all global industries have been greatly affected by the
outbreak of COVID-19. However, the epidemic had only resulted in
minimal effect to the photovoltaic industry caused by COVID-19. The
photovoltaic industry recovered speedy in the second half of the
year. China continues to lead the market. The future prospect of the
photovoltaic industry continues to be optimistic.

As a clean energy source, photovoltaic power generation had to rely
on government subsidies to compete with the selling price of
traditional petrochemical energy in the past. As such, with the
advancement of photovoltaic production technology in the past ten
years, the production cost per watt of power generation has
dropped sharply. It has reached the target of market price, and
explosive sales growth is foreseeable in the future. The Group has
continued to invest in upgrading and transforming the existing
production capacity and engage in mass production adjustment of
new production capacity since 2018. Also, ageing production
capacity had been eliminated. It reached the goal of comprehensive
upgrade of existing production capacity and mass output of new
high-efficiency production capacity.

—ECTF ERETREEIENTREBEFR
TERFE AWM REAXREXZIAERAR
MEMEN AREXRTFFRHER - PE
DB 2IRE - KKBRETHNER @ JLIRTT

ENIESEY

ERBRERNCABEEREVAMBRITHR -
HEEERTEBEROLERESE Bt &
AREREERMNEITZERBETET &
RBEENEERACDSERARBTR 2EHTH
EFEMNER BREANHEESERNKIK - K
SEE T /\FEFERARAELN RN
EEFIRERNEERNE  BERREMRETT
BEEEX REEN THEERZE I RERR
EeMERATAREELNER-
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Chairman's Statement
FEREE

The types of photovoltaic products were originally divided into two
technologies, monocrystalline and multicrystalline, for many years.
The production ways of their corresponding monocrystalline silicon
ingot and multicrystalline silicon ingots are different. With the
conversion efficiency improvement of monocrystalline silicon products
and the ability of continuously reducing production costs becoming
clearer and more feasible, the market share of the multicrystalline
technology has been quickly replaced by the monocrystalline
technology. Yet, production of monocrystalline and multicrystalline
silicon wafers in the manufacturing process are the same and
therefore the production capacity of multicrystalline slicing with
multicrystalline silicon ingots has been greatly released. Hence, the
difference in the production capacity of the Group’'s monocrystalline
silicon ingots of 3.45GW and that of monocrystalline silicon wafers
of 2.5GW will be smoothly compensated by third-party processing
service providers that have already released multicrystalline slicing
capacity. As a result, the Group could focus on its limited resources
on the development of monocrystalline ingots and niche module
products.

In addition, regarding the production of upstream mono-crystalline
silicon ingot and wafer products, the Group’s low-cost
high-efficiency production base of mono-crystalline silicon ingot and
wafer located in Qujing, Yunnan has completed its production
adjustment, and the results of which have been showing gradually.
Further, after the Group’s transformation and upgrading works
performed at the original production bases in Jinzhou, Liaoning and
Xining, Qinghai, increase in the production capacity and cost
reduction have been demonstrated, which further improve the
Group's overall gross profit margin.

Regarding the downstream photovoltaic modules, since our
photovoltaic module customers are mostly domestic state-owned
enterprises or large multinational corporations, the market position
and strength possessed by these module customers are the strongest
in the overall photovoltaic industry chain. Therefore, the Group has
established a direct supply relationship with large module customers
through significant module production capacity, which maintains a
more stable terminal product estuary. As such, the newly-established
module manufacturing base in Yancheng, Jiangsu has commenced
production in addition to the current module capacity owned by its
wholly-owned subsidiaries based in Jinzhou, Liaoning, in order to
meet the needs of module customers. The Group's effective module
production capacity is then increased to 3.7GW which can greatly
increase the economies of scale in module products.
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Chairman's Statement
FEREE

Although the unit selling price per watt of photovoltaic products has
been reducing year by year as a result of the removal of government
subsidies so that the price can be marketized, the Group’s revenue
still increase from RMB4,426 million in 2019 to RMB6,052 million in
2020, representing a significant increase of 37%. However, even
though the net loss for the year dropped significantly from
RMB354.358 million in 2019 to RMB196.367 million in 2020, the
Group could not turn loss into profit, mainly due to the following
reasons which cannot be reasonably foreseen: (1) as high-efficiency
production capacity has successively commenced mass production
during the year and the transformation of existing production
capacity was completed, it was originally expected that the gross
profit margin could be greatly improved. However, some of the
suppliers of polysilicon had temporary suspended their operations
during the year which resulted in a supply shortage and surging
price of polysilicon. In addition, the procurement costs of auxiliary
materials increased significantly during the year as the supply of
major auxiliary materials was affected by the outbreak of the
COVID-19. The increase in the price of materials had led to the
actual gross profit margin increased only from 7.7% in 2019 to
9.7% in 2020 and the growth in gross profit margin has been
restricted; (2) as the production line of Group previously covered the
upstream photovoltaic mono-crystalline silicon ingots and wafers,
mid-stream solar cells and downstream photovoltaic modules, the
scale of solar cell production was relatively small and outdated. It
was no longer in line with the economic scale production efficiency.
As a result, the Group adjusted its operating strategy and utilises
limited resources to fully develop niche products such as upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots, monocrystalline silicon wafers and
downstream modules. Since the Group is not expected to produce
solar cells on its own, the net amount of such aged production line
and the related machinery and equipment was recognised as a
one-off asset impairment loss during the year; and (3) unexpected
increase in selling expenses (such as shipment costs) as a result of
the outbreak of COVID-19.

Looking ahead, as a result of (1) leading technology cost advantages
and large-size product lines with higher bargaining power, the Group
will be able to increase the market share and further drive a
significant increase in gross profit margin; (2) the new production
base with a lower electricity costs and with policy support, the
Group can significantly reduce the production cost of the local
external environment; (3) the high-efficiency new production capacity
has begun mass production as expected, the existing production
capacity had also been upgraded, which could lead to the
advantages of economies of scale; (4) the long-term diversified
technological advantages of each product line; and (5) the strong
client base in China and overseas, with increasing demand from new
and old customers, it is expected that the Group’'s external
shipments and revenue would continue to grow, and the operations
performance will then return to a normal level.

BANRERBRIEEEERT EMBEBITHE
NEREERMBILTMEFRE BAEEE X
WA ZE—NFHARB4N6EELIERE
TEEFMARBGEE L AEK K
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R¥354358F B TARR TREZTE_TEFHAR
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EZBAEZHPHMBANIITTRBEEZEHBERLS
S MRBMAREXN RS BT BN KEIR
B ERERENEREI T - NFHNTI% LA
EZTTFMITY%  EFEREBES DR
QX EEREEGRAE L TEREEE  ERERH
P EmE T EAG  HEELELAER/NE
EGBRALE UTHAKERBEENZ K
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FABREZEETHEGRZ ABRERBEFE IR
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e
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Chairman's Statement
FEREE

Photovoltaic policy of China in 2020 has continued the overall
framework of 2019. It entered the final year of parallel development
of grid parity and subsidised bidding projects by stepping out of
government subsidies. Although demand was temporarily dampened
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the overall new
installations continued to grow rapidly. It is expected that mid and
long-term demand will continue to grow strongly in China and
globally. In order to respond to the rapid increase in global demand,
the Group is actively planning to continue with the expansion of
production capacity of monocrystalline silicon ingot, wafer and
modules to take advantage of the external production environment
in different areas, enabling the Group to fully utilise its current
technological advantages in production. In the planning for 2022,
the upstream monocrystalline silicon ingot production capacity will be
significantly higher than the downstream module production
capacity. It is to consider that the future supply and demand is
growing rapidly. Compared with downstream modules, production of
upstream monocrystalline silicon ingot needs higher technical
thresholds and higher gross profit margins. Therefore, the oligopoly
market trend of the monocrystalline silicon ingot suppliers will
continue to exist. As the first batch of domestic enterprises engaging
in the production of monocrystalline silicon ingot, with 20 years
experience in manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon ingot, leading
the industry with accumulated technological advantages, when more
resources would be invested in the oligopoly market of upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots, there would be better market
bargaining power which can strengthen the Group’s profitability.

Photovoltaic industry is not only supported by national policy, but
also highly regarded by the world. The era of grid parity has arrived
and the market will continue to experience explosive growth. By
focusing our resources on the development of upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers and downstream
photovoltaic modules, making them two of our key products,
together with our capability in producing large-size wafers as a
fruitful result of our continuous technological R&D, complemented
by a strengthened and more cost-effective production capacity
layout, we are well prepared to embrace the robust growth in the
photovoltaic industry after realizing grid parity.
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Market Overview

In 2020, despite the resulting impacts caused by the outbreak of
COVID-19 including global economic downturn and recession in
various industries, the demand for renewable energy is still up-lifting.
According to the analysis of the international analyst, IHS Markit, the
epidemic had brought short-term pressure to the photovoltaic
industry, but a speedy recovery was recorded in the second half of
2020. The long-term demand for photovoltaics is still high, resulting
in a minimal effect to the industry caused by COVID-19. IHS Markit
also predicted that 158GW of new photovoltaic installations will be
made next year worldwide. This represented an increase of 34%
compared with the predicted figure in 2020. China, U.S., Europe and
India are expected to be the major markets for solar energy, where
China continues to lead the market. The future prospect of the
photovoltaic industry continues to be optimistic.

mEHE

ODE-_T_TF AEIEIEHTRETOHE
HEYE BRRREXEE BRETRELER
AR EBERROFTRAMDARLER -
RO MEIEIHS Markit D7 — T - T FRREZE
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KRR S8 T © IHS MarkitF B 2 — 8 — —F 2 35
18T RA SRR AR —_T—FTFH
BMFIZNN34% o P E - KB BUOM - ENERSIAS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R SO

Market Overview (Continued)

2020 was the final year of “13th Five-Year Plan” of China. It was a
critical year for the industry shifting from subsidised bidding
photovoltaics to grid parity in China towards a self-sustaining
development path. Because of the COVID-19 pandemic, the new
photovoltaic installation and export volume of modules recorded
negative growth in first quarter of 2020. Nevertheless, the market
recovered rapidly in the second quarter. According to the data from
the China Photovoltaic Industry Association (CPIA) (FF B ¢ {R 17 Z 1
), the overall production of the photovoltaic industry grew steadily
in first three quarters of 2020. The export volume of polysilicon,
wafers, cells and modules was higher than that in the same period
last year. It indicates that China’s photovoltaic development is still
progressing steadily. China’s National Energy Administration (NEA)
announced that in the newly installed capacity of China’s power
supply in 2020 was 190.87GW, in which 48.2 GW was photovoltaic
capacity. The newly installed photovoltaic capacity was 18.7GW in
the first three quarters announced by the NEA, which means there
was 29.5GW installed in the fourth quarter. This is a new high of
nearly three years since the peak of the installed capacity in 2017. In
addition, the President of China, Xi Jinping, announced during the
United Nations General Assembly held in September 2020 that China
strives to reach the peak of carbon dioxide emissions by 2030 and to
achieve carbon neutrality by 2060, whilst the total installed capacity
of wind and solar power generation will reach 1.2 billion kilowatts
or even more. China enters the “14th Five-Year Plan” in 2021.
Photovoltaic power generation will no longer be subsidized and enter
into the grid parity generation. It is foreseeable that the Chinese
government will continue to introduce various photovoltaic policies to
support the “14th Five-Year” energy plan in 2021 in order to
stimulate the development of the photovoltaic industry and achieve
the country’s overall energy goals. Besides, some industrial projects
that were delayed by the epidemic in early 2020 will also be
completed in 2021. CPIA predicted that during the “14th Five-Year
Plan” period, the average annual domestic photovoltaic installed
capacity will be 70 to 90GW. It is predicted that the development of
China’s photovoltaic industry will continue to improve in 2021.

* for identification only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Market Overview (Continued)

According to the Sustainable Energy in America Factbook, an annual
joint report from Bloomberg New Energy Finance (BNEF) and the
Business Council for Sustainable Energy (BCSE), US made 16.5GW of
photovoltaic installations in 2020, a recorded high since 13.6GW in
2016, representing an increase of 24% compared to 13.3GW in
2019. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, only 3.5GW of photovoltaic
installations were added in the second quarter decreased by 6%
comparing to the data of the previous quarter. However, newly
installed capacity in the third quarter in 2020 increased to 3.8GW,
representing an increase of 9%. The data reflects that the US
photovoltaic industry was not greatly affected by the epidemic where
only a short-term decline is recorded. This shows that the US
photovoltaic industry is entering a period of recovery and the
industry is getting rid of the haze of the epidemic faster than
expected. At the end of 2020, the US government transited and a
two-year extension on tax relief measures for the US solar energy
industry was introduced, whilst more clean energy policies is
expected to be introduced in 2021 and the US would return to the
Paris Climate Agreement which aims for a carbon-free power
generation to be reached in 2035. These factors above would all be
beneficial to the development of the US solar industry. Based on the
data from the US Energy Information Administration (EIA), the US
solar public power generation in 2021 is expected to reach 15.4GW,
which will exceed nearly 12GW in comparison to 2020.

SolarPower Europe released the latest EU Market Outlook for Solar
Power. It states that despite the huge impact brought by the
epidemic to Europe, Europe’s new photovoltaic installed capacity in
2020 was 18.2GW, representing an increase of 11% comparing to
2019. It was the fastest growing year since 2011. Among EU
member states, Germany, the Netherlands, Spain, Poland, and France
have become the top five European new photovoltaic installation
markets and Germany continues to be the largest photovoltaic
market in Europe. In September 2020, the European Commission
officially released the 2030 Climate Target Plan and the policy
impact assessment report. It proposed the greenhouse gas emission
reduction target in 2030 from 40% to 55% and achieving net zero
greenhouse gas emissions by 2050. Relevant legislation will be
amended by June 2021. Based on the interim forecast of SolarPower
Europe, the demand is expected to increase by 23% in 2021, and
the installed capacity will reach 22.4GW, which will break the record
set since 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Market Overview (Continued)

India is the most affected market as a result of the epidemic. A
sluggish demand in the installed capacity in the country and a sharp
slowdown in the progress of various constructions has been shown
in the past year. According to the latest report of Mercom India
Research, India’s newly installed photovoltaic capacity was 3.2GW in
2020, a decrease of 56% compared to 7.3GW in 2019, representing
a five-year low. The international analysist IHS Markit predicted that
India’s installed capacity will exceed 14GW in 2020, which clearly
shows a huge difference. However, India still has a high potential for
installed capacity. It is estimated that the photovoltaic installed
capacity of India will exceed 10GW in 2021, and the potential for
development is still considerable.

In other regions, more than 110 countries have clear expectations of
zero carbon emissions in the coming decades. As such, Canada,
Japan and South Korea have successively announced the zero carbon
commitment by 2050 and carbon neutral has become the major
global consensus. Since the third quarter of 2020, all regions have
entered a period of recovery. Although the actual development of
the photovoltaic industry in 2021 still depends on the trend of the
new crown epidemic and the progress of vaccine research and
development, the prospect of renewable energy represented by solar
energy continues to be optimistic in overall.
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Operations Review
Operations Summary

As a clean energy source, photovoltaic power generation replacing
traditional petrochemical energy sources has become a global trend.
Even though the current COVID-19 epidemic has suppressed the
growth in the demand for photovoltaic products temporarily, the
trend of rapid growth in the demand for photovoltaic products in
the future is unwavering. The Group focuses on the manufacturing
and sales of upstream monocrystalline silicon ingots, wafers and
downstream photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic industry.
Among them, the major customers of monocrystalline silicon ingots
and wafers are large midstream solar cell manufacturers and the
major customers of photovoltaic modules are large domestic
state-owned enterprises, multinational corporations and other
photovoltaic end-user customers. This enables the Group to fully
demonstrate its current advantages in the production of such
products. Moreover, the Group is engaged in the installation of
photovoltaic systems and the development, design, construction,
operation and maintenance of photovoltaic generation plants.

Silicon ingot and wafer business

Monocrystalline silicon ingot products are mostly used for the
internal production of monocrystalline silicon wafers within the
Group, and are less engaged in external sales. Monocrystalline silicon
wafer products of the Group are mostly sold to third-party
professional solar cell manufacturers. During the year, with the
advantages in the application of monocrystalline products over
multicrystalline products in photovoltaic power generation, the
market share of monocrystalline products has continued to increase
rapidly. As such, demand for monocrystalline silicon wafers of the
Group has continued to increase. Further, in addition to the
traditional monocrystalline P-type products, shipment volume of
monocrystalline N-type products with higher conversion efficiencies
are also increasing. With the continuing realisation of advantages in
the improvement in conversion efficiency, more stable decay rate in
its photovoltaic systems, continued reduction in unit costs, etc, it is
expected that the advantages of monocrystalline products will
become more obvious in the field of photovoltaic power generation.
The monocrystalline technology focused by the Group in the past
two decades has officially defeated that of multicrystalline and
became the only mainstream in the market.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operations Summary (Continued)
Silicon ingot and wafer business (Continued)

The Group has a leading position in the monocrystalline silicon solar
ingot and wafer manufacture industry in terms of technology, whilst
product quality and stability are amongst those of the industry
leaders. During the year, since most of the ingot products have been
reserved for internal use, the external shipment volume of
monocrystalline silicon ingots was 710.8MW (204.2MW in 2019).
External shipment volume of monocrystalline silicon wafers increased
significantly to 3,145.8MW (2,014.6MW in 2019). Major customers of
external sales included TW Solar Group (i ELAF5RES E), Sumin
New Energy Group (& R ¥782)R % &), Shangrao Jietai New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. (E&E#ERFEREE AR AR, Ako Solar
Energy Technology Co., Ltd (B/BEAFGEERI K AR A F]) and huge
state-owned enterprises in China, such as Huanghe Hydropower
Development Co., Ltd. (E 8 L /KEFEZEEREE 2 A) (“Qinghai
SPI").

The Group has completed the testing and adjustments of its newly
invested low-cost high-efficiency monocrystalline silicon solar ingot
and wafer project, located in Qujing, Yunnan, the PRC. It
commenced manufacturing in scale from 2020 onwards. Not only do
the relevant investments enjoy various preferential investment policies
from the local government, but more importantly, the local electricity
cost, which is the major manufacturing cost of ingot-pulling, is also
lower than that at previous major production base in Jinzhou,
Liaoning, by more than 50% which strengthened the ability to
increase gross profit margin. Accordingly, the Group is currently
actively planning the expansion of the monocrystalline silicon solar
ingot and wafer capacities in Qujing, Yunnan in order to take
advantage of the local external production environment, and enable
the Group to fully demonstrate its current technological advantages
in production.

Solar cell and module businesses

The production line of the Group previously covered the upstream
photovoltaic monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers, mid-stream
solar cells and downstream photovoltaic modules. However, due to
the ageing of the production line of solar cell and its low production
capacity without economies of scale, the Group adjusted its
operating strategy to utilise its resources in developing niche
products and no longer continued to manufacture any solar cells.
The net amount of existing ageing production line of solar cells and
related machinery equipment was accounted for as one-off asset
impairment loss during the year. This resulted in unsatisfactory
operating performance during the year.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operations Summary (Continued)
Solar cell and module businesses (Continued)

Regarding the photovoltaic module business, in order to meet the
needs of module customers, the Group established a new module
manufacturing base in Yancheng, Jiangsu. The area around the
Yangtze River Delta is an agglomeration area for the supply of raw
and auxiliary materials which provides advantage in terms of
procurement. In addition to various preferential policies offered by
the local government, the company also gained advantage in
significantly reducing the investment in fixed assets by renting plant
buildings. From 1 April 2020 onwards, this project has been included
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements, and hence the
Group's effective module production capacity has been increased to
3.7GW. This allows the Group to enjoy economies of scale in
module products, and a more stable export channel for the Group’s
3.45GW production capacity of upstream monocrystalline silicon
ingots.

The Group recorded external shipment volume of photovoltaic
modules of 2,865MW in 2020, which grew by 54% when compared
to external shipment volume of 1,855. 7MW in 2019. The Group's
module sales increased from RMB3,199.102 million last year to
RMB4,272.656 million in 2020. The excellent product quality and
price competitiveness, combined with the commencement of large
scale production using the new high-efficiency equipment and
technical transformation and equipment upgrades on the existing
module manufacturing capacity, led to a continuation of rapid
growth in external shipment volume and total sales. External sales
were mainly made to large state-owned enterprises and international
multinational enterprises, such as State Power Investment
Corporation (/1 REHEESEERQA) ("SPIC”), SHARP
Corporation (“SHARP”), Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and Xinyi Solar
Group, Suntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd. (% HEKGEE HER
‘A @), Sungrow Power Supply Co., Ltd (it EIRIE% B R A R]),
CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (fF Bl EZ#EERIZR B R A R)
and SANSHIN ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. etc. The Group has been
providing processing services of photovoltaic products for SHARP all
year round and it has become SHARP’s largest processing services
partner for photovoltaic module for eight consecutive years.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operations Summary (Continued)
Solar cell and module businesses (Continued)

In response to the opportunity offered by grid parity, the technical
level of multi-crystalline photovoltaic products has been replaced by
monocrystalline products. The P-type PERC (Passivated Emitter and
Rear Cell) module of the monocrystalline product that the Group
focused on has not only become the mainstream in the market, but
the Group also further expanded and strengthened the development
and sales of monocrystalline silicon high-efficiency module products
such as N-type double-sized glass photovoltaic modules, half-cell
photovoltaic modules, smart photovoltaic modules, and related
high-end products. Among them, the Group is the first in the
country and also leading in the industry to utilise internationally-
leading FPC manufacturing technique in our BS modules of N-type
monocrystalline IBC solar cell, which produces higher current output,
open circuit voltage, fill factor and other electrical performance
advantages.

As a company focusing on monocrystalline silicon photovoltaic
products, equipped with high-quality, self-produced upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots and mono-crystalline silicon wafers,
customers’ demand for the Group’s mono-crystalline modules has
always remained high. Currently, proportion of sales of the Group’s
mono-crystalline silicon photovoltaic modules has reached around
95%. Further, the Group has also added in SHARP's global leading
40-year quality assurance system for photovoltaic products. The
quality of the products is stable and reliable, which could bring
long-term and stable income to end-user owners.

Construction and operation of photovoltaic system business

The Group has been actively expanding the end-user power plants
construction business apart from devoting its efforts in stabilising its
upstream and midstream business development, thereby driving
demand for products from downstream to upstream. As such, the
Group explores business opportunity derived from the construction
of distributed power plants. Apart from establishing internal
photovoltaic power plant system companies, the Group also plans to
establish joint venture companies with companies from other
industries in order to share the profits and also provide extra
distribution channels for the Group’s module sales.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operation Strategy

As a clean energy source, photovoltaic power generation had to rely
on government subsidies to compete with the selling price of
traditional petrochemical energy in the past. If production costs can
be reduced and be competitive in the normal market without
government subsidies, photovoltaic power generative may lead to a
widespread application. As such, with the advancement of
photovoltaic production technology in the past ten vyears, the
production cost per watt of power generation has dropped sharply.
Strictly speaking, the current photovoltaic application has reached the
target of market price, and explosive sales growth is foreseeable in
the future. In this case, production related equipment also needs to
be upgraded or added in order to be in line with technological
development. Accordingly, the Group has continued to invest in
upgrading and transforming the existing production capacity and
engage in mass production adjustment of new production capacity
since 2018. Also, ageing production capacity had been eliminated.
The upgrading, adjustment and elimination of production equipment
during this period led to the increase in production costs and
expenses of the Group. Thus, the operating performance was less
satisfactory. However, in 2020, the Group has finally passed the
painful period and reached the goal of comprehensive upgrade of
existing production capacity and mass output of new high-efficiency
production capacity. Currently, the annual production capacity of
monocrystalline silicon ingot of the Group is 3.45GW,
monocrystalline silicon wafer capacity is 2.50GW, and module
production capacity is increased to 3.70GW.

The major concern for the aforementioned monocrystalline silicon
wafer production capacity being less than that of monocrystalline
silicon ingot, is that the types of photovoltaic products were
originally divided into two technologies, monocrystalline and
multicrystalline, for many years. The production ways of their
corresponding monocrystalline silicon ingot and multicrystalline
silicon ingots are different. With the conversion efficiency
improvement of monocrystalline silicon products and the ability of
continuously reducing production costs becoming clearer and more
feasible, the market share of the multicrystalline technology has been
quickly replaced by the monocrystalline technology. Yet, production
of monocrystalline and multicrystalline silicon wafers in the
manufacturing process are the same and therefore the production
capacity of multicrystalline slicing with multicrystalline silicon ingots
has been greatly released. Hence, the difference in the production
capacity of the Group’s monocrystalline silicon ingots and that of
monocrystalline silicon wafers will be smoothly compensated by
third-party processing service providers that have already released
multicrystalline slicing capacity. As a result, the Group could focus on
its limited resources on the development of monocrystalline ingots
and niche module products.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operation Strategy (Continued)

By adopting a dual-track strategy of continuous development of
upstream mono-crystalline silicon ingots and wafer products, as well
as downstream module products, the Group effectively utilises its
resources. Regarding the production of upstream mono-crystalline
silicon ingot and wafer products, the Group’s low-cost
high-efficiency production base of mono-crystalline silicon ingot and
wafer located in Qujing, Yunnan has completed its production
adjustment, and the results of which have been showing gradually.
Efficiency of production is comparable to that of the industry, and it
will become the main production base of the Group’'s
monocrystalline silicon ingot and monocrystalline silicon wafer.
Further, after the Group’s transformation and upgrading works
performed at the original production bases in Jinzhou, Liaoning and
Xining, Qinghai, increase in the production capacity and cost
reduction have been demonstrated, which further improve the
Group's overall gross profit margin.

Regarding the downstream photovoltaic modules, since our
photovoltaic module customers are mostly domestic state-owned
enterprises or large multinational corporations, the market position
and strength possessed by these module customers are the strongest
in the overall photovoltaic industry chain. Therefore, the Group has
established a direct supply relationship with large module customers
through significant module production capacity, which maintains a
more stable terminal product estuary. As such, the newly-established
module manufacturing base in Yancheng, Jiangsu has commenced
production in addition to the current module capacity owned by its
wholly-owned subsidiaries based in Jinzhou, Liaoning, in order to
meet the needs of module customers. The Group's effective module
production capacity is then increased to 3.7GW which can greatly
increase the economies of scale in module products.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operating Performance

Reaping the benefits of the results from strengthening the customer
relationship of downstream module products over the years, the
Group’s high-end photovoltaic products continued to be welcomed
by domestic state-owned enterprises and multinational corporations.
Total shipment volume increased from 4,134MW in 2019 to
6,81TMW in 2020, representing a growth of 65%. Although the unit
selling price per watt of photovoltaic products has been reducing
year by year as a result of the removal of government subsidies so
that the price can be marketized, the Group’s revenue still increase
from RMB4,426 million in 2019 to RMB6,052 million in 2020,
representing a significant increase of 37%. However, even though
the net loss for the year dropped significantly from RMB354.358
million in 2019 to RMB196.367 million in 2020, the Group could not
turn loss into profit, mainly due to the following reasons which
cannot be reasonably foreseen:

(1) as high-efficiency production capacity has successively
commenced mass production during the year and the
transformation of existing production capacity was completed,
it was originally expected that the gross profit margin could be
greatly improved. However, some of the suppliers of
polysilicon had temporary suspended their operations during
the year which resulted in a supply shortage and surging price
of polysilicon. In addition, the procurement costs of auxiliary
materials increased significantly during the year as the supply
of major auxiliary materials was affected by the outbreak of
the COVID-19. The increase in the price of materials had led to
the actual gross profit margin increased only from 7.7% in
2019 to 9.7% in 2020 and the growth in gross profit margin
has been restricted.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operating Performance (Continued)
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as the Group previously focused on the vertical integration of
photovoltaic products, where its production line covered the
upstream photovoltaic mono-crystalline silicon ingots and
wafers, mid-stream solar cells and downstream photovoltaic
modules, the scale of solar cell production was relatively small
and outdated. It was no longer in line with the economic scale
production efficiency. As a result, the Group adjusted its
operating strategy during the year by suspending the in-house
manufacturing of solar cells due to the aged production line
with a low production capacity and efficiency. Instead, it
utilises limited resources to fully develop niche products such
as upstream monocrystalline silicon ingots, monocrystalline
silicon wafers and downstream modules. Since the Group is
not expected to produce solar cells on its own, the net
amount of such aged production line and the related
machinery and equipment was recognised as a one-off asset
impairment loss during the year.

unexpected increase in selling expenses (such as shipment costs)
as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19.
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BIRE S kT

Operations Review (Continued)
Operating Performance (Continued)

To summarise, due to the aforementioned unexpected reasons, the
growth of the Group's gross profit margin reduced drastically and
unexpected costs also increased significantly. However, due to the
successful research and development of the Group and
breakthroughs in various production bottlenecks during the year, the
most advanced production technology had been smoothly applied to
mass production. Thus, if the unexpected factors were not present,
the production cost of each product line of the Group should reduce
greatly, and the overall gross profit margin should also improve. For
example, the Group’s monocrystalline silicon ingot production system
adopted fast closing technology, which shortened the closing time
by 70%. Further, through the transformation and upgrading of the
water cooling device, the growth rate of monocrystalline silicon ingot
can be increased from 1.25mm/min to 2.0mm/min. Whilst we had
also developed a 500-hour long-life crucible, a major auxiliary
material for the production of monocrystalline silicon ingot, jointly
with specific suppliers, it could realise the RCZ production process of
continuously drawing 9 ingots in one pot, which can significantly
reduce the production cost. On the other hand, the module
production line of the Group can also produce multi-busbar half-cell
double-sided double glass 182mm and 210mm large-size modules
which the conversion could reach more than 600 watts. In addition,
the related equipment automation intelligence and packaging
technology are in the leading position in the industry. According to
the analysis of the recent bidding in China’s photovoltaic market,
182mm and above photovoltaic modules accounted for more than
two-third of the bidding product specifications. Since the Group’s
monocrystalline silicon ingot, monocrystalline silicon wafer and
photovoltaic module production lines can all produce large-size
scarce products such as 182mm and 210mm, they could further
enhance the Group’s ability to increase the selling price and provide
opportunity for a substantial increase in gross profit margin.
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Operations Review (Continued)
Operating Performance (Continued)

Looking ahead, as a result of (a) leading technology cost advantages
and large-size product lines with higher bargaining power, the Group
will be able to increase the market share and further drive a
significant increase in gross profit margin; (b) the new production
base with a lower electricity costs and with policy support, the
Group can significantly reduce the production cost of the local
external environment; (c) the high-efficiency new production capacity
has begun mass production as expected, the existing production
capacity had also been upgraded, which could lead to the
advantages of economies of scale; (d) the long-term diversified
technological advantages of each product line; and (e) the strong
client base in China and overseas, with increasing demand from new
and old customers, it is expected that the Group's external
shipments and revenue would continue to grow, and the production
cost would decrease more than the selling price. The gross profit
margin and gross profit ratios will return to a normal level.

Financial Review
Revenue

The cost of photovoltaic power generation must continue to decline
as technology continues to improve in order to replace traditional
petrochemical energy on a large scale basis and to effectively
achieve the goal of green and clean energy. Although the average
selling price of photovoltaic product declined gradually over the year,
and the growth in overall market demand has been suppressed due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has been striving to
strengthen the relationship with its customers of both upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers and downstream modules
over the years, hence the high-end photovoltaic products remain
welcomed by state owned enterprises and multinational enterprises.
As a result, total external shipment volume increased significantly by
65% as compared to last year. The Group has continued to maintain
its growth and recorded a revenue of RMB6,051.956 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, represented a growth rate of 36.8%
from RMB4,425.552 million in 2019.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, cost of sales increased from
RMB4,084.184 million in 2019 to RMB5,466.104 million, representing
an increase of 33.8%, mainly due to the increase in shipment
volume. Cost of sales represented 90.3% of total revenue,
representing a limited decrease of 2.0 percentage points from 2019.
Some suppliers of polysilicon had temporary suspended their
operations because of floods and factories explosion during the year,
resulting in a supply shortage and surging price of polysilicon. In
addition, the procurement costs of auxiliary materials increased
significantly during the year as the supply of a number of major
auxiliary materials was being affected by the outbreak of the
COVID-19.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

With the commencement of high-efficiency production capacity and
transformation of existing production capacity, the total gross profit
and gross profit margin were expected to improve significantly.
However, as mentioned above, the outbreak of COVID-19 has led to
a significant increase in procurement costs. The Group recorded
gross profit amounted to RMB585.852 million, at a gross profit
margin of 9.7% during the year, as compared to RMB341.368
million gross profit and gross profit margin of 7.7% in 2019, both
figures have increased but in a limited growth rate.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised of packaging
expenses, freight charges and insurance expenses. Selling and
distribution expenses increased to RMB136.331 million in 2020 from
RMB84.583 million in 2019. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses were mainly due to the increase in external shipment
volume in 2020 and the unexpected increase in overseas shipment
costs as a result of outbreak of COVID-19.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs and research
and development expenses. The administrative expenses for the year
amounted to RMB452.827 million, as compared to RMB409.458
million in 2019. The increase was mainly due to increase in
investment in research and development of various niche products
and technological innovations in production and related expenses.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

An impairment of property, plant and equipment, amounting to
RMB68.587 million, was recognised during the year, increased by
RMB53.42 million from 2019. The production line of the Group
previously covered the upstream photovoltaic monocrystalline silicon
ingots and wafers, mid-stream solar cells and downstream
photovoltaic modules. However, the scale of solar cell production
was relatively small and outdated, the Group has changed its
operating strategy to discontinue the production of photovoltaic
solar cells and reserved more resources on other profitable products.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets

An impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets of
RMB38.598 million was recognised during the year (2019: RMB5.262
million). Affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020, part of the
photovoltaic power station project construction was delayed, and
credit period of some large-scale state-owned enterprises and
multinational enterprises was extended. In addition, the default in
the domestic bond market has caused the credit ratings of some
large-scale state-owned enterprises, which below the second level, to
be downgraded, and the overall market credit risk has increased
compared to previous years. In response to the overall market credit
risk increase caused by this change, management assessed credit risk
of large-scale state-owned enterprises and multinational enterprises,
made the provision for impairment loss accordingly.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly represented bank loan interests. The Group’s
finance costs increased from RMB123.130 million in 2019 to
RMB133.156 million in 2020, representing an increase of 8.1%. As
mentioned above, external shipment volume of the Group has grown
significantly by 65%. Given the significant increase in corresponding
shipment volume, the Group's finance cost has increased in a lesser
extent. It was a result of better financial control on the use of funds
during the year. The Group expects to lower the finance costs
gradually in the future and to obtain more sources of financing.

Income tax

Income tax expense was RMB30.273 million in 2020, while income
tax expense amounted to RMB41.308 million in 2019. The income
tax expense was mainly derived from the provision of income tax for
the profitable subsidiaries of the Group. The decrease in income tax
expense was mainly due to the Group reversed deferred tax assets in
2019, and no material reversal made in 2020.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Loss attributable to the equity shareholders

In 2020, the Group recorded a loss attributable to the equity
shareholders of RMB215.648 million as compared to a loss
attributable to the equity shareholders of RMB355.492 million in
2019.

Inventory turnover days

It is the Group’s strategy to maintain a high inventory turnover rate
and low inventory turnover days, in order to mitigate the impact of
falling average price of photovoltaic products caused by
technological improvement. At the same time, it can also reduce the
backlog of funds and better utilise the operating funds. The
inventory turnover days of the Group during the year was reduced
to 27 days (2019: 33 days).

Trade receivable turnover days

In response to the increasing demand for photovoltaic modules, the
revenue derived from the sales of photovoltaic modules has
increased significantly and accounted for over 70% of the Group’s
overall revenue. According to the general terms module sales
contract in the industry, the recovery of module receivable depends
on the construction progress of the photovoltaic power plant. For
instance, some trade receivables can only be recovered after the
customer’s photovoltaic power plant is connected to the grid. As a
result, the trade receivables turnover days of module business are
generally longer. Even so, due to the constant effective management
of accounts receivables, the collection of receivables has been
improved. Furthermore, transactions with certain major customers
with stronger settlement ability has increased, resulting in the
Group's trade receivables turnover days being reduced to 95 days in
2020 (2019: 113 days).

Trade payable turnover days

As the business development becomes more stable, the proportion of
sales derived from the Group’s modules has increased gradually,
leading to an increase in purchase of solar cells for which its credit
period is relatively shorter than other materials. As a result, the
trade payable turnover days during the year was reduced to 116
days (2019: 130 days).
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Financial Review (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

The principal source of working capital of the Group during the year
were cash flows from bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2020,
the current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of the
Group was 0.80 (31 December 2019: 0.79). The Group had net
borrowings of RMB1,337.214 million as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB1,010.194 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of RMB456.265 million (31 December 2019: RMB396.854
million), pledged deposits of RMB686.100 million (31 December
2019: RMB403.191 million), bank and other loans due within one
year of RMB2,475.519 million (31 December 2019: RMB1,680.914
million) and non-current bank and other loans of RMB4.060 million
(31 December 2019: RMB129.325 million). The net debt to equity
ratio (net debt divided by total equity) was 393.3% (31 December
2019: 221.7%).

Net cash inflow from operating activities

As mentioned above, as the Group's inventory turnover days and
trade receivable turnover days have been improved during the year,
the net cash flows from operating activities has grown by 37% from
RMB410.143 million in 2019 to RMB563.539 million in 2020.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA")

During the period, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) amounted to RMB276.003 million,
represented a significant increase of 462% as compared to
RMB49.126 million during the year ended 31 December 2019. The
main reason for the increase in EBITDA was due to the substantial
growth in revenue derived from the Group’s major products,
monocrystalline silicon wafers and modules and the achievement of
efficiency in production during the year.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, cash, bank deposits and bank loans that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency,
Renminbi, of the operations to which they relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily the US Dollar and Euro. The
Directors do not expect any significant impact from the change in
exchange rates since the Group uses foreign currencies received from
customers to settle the amounts due to suppliers which naturally
mitigates the exchange rate risk. In addition, the Group will consider
the differences in interest rates and fluctuations in the exchange
rates of foreign currency denominated and local currency-
denominated loan balance, and the need to mitigate the risk
through low-risk forward contracts, in order to strike a balance
between the exposure to the variations in interest costs and
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2019: Nil).

Human resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 3,890 (31 December 2019:
4,025) employees.

Future prospects and strategies

Photovoltaic policy of China in 2020 has continued the overall
framework of 2019. It entered the final year of parallel development
of grid parity and subsidised bidding projects by stepping out of
government subsidies, and progressing towards self sustainable
development, advancing technological progress, reducing cost of
power generation to promote the achievement in comprehensive grid
parity. Although demand was temporarily dampened due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the overall new
installations continued to grow rapidly. It is expected that mid and
long-term demand will continue to grow strongly in China and
globally. As for the photovoltaic products, due to the advantages of
high conversion ratios, stable photovoltaic system decay rate,
continued reduction in unit cost, etc. of monocrystalline products,
market share of monocrystalline products will continue to rise and
replace multicrystalline products. Hence, the number of solar plants
equipped with mono-crystalline photovoltaic systems and the number
of mono-crystalline products used in distributed power plants have
been increasing.
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Future prospects and strategies (Continued)

In order to respond to the rapid increase in global demand, the
Group is actively planning to continue with the expansion of
production capacity of monocrystalline silicon ingot, wafer and
modules to take advantage of the external production environment
in different areas, enabling the Group to fully utilise its current
technological advantages in production. It is estimated that the
production capacity of monocrystalline silicon ingot would be
expanded from the current 3.45GW to 8.55GW by the end of 2021,
and further expanded to 20.05GW by the end of 2022. The
production capacity of monocrystalline silicon wafer would be
expanded from the current 2.50GW to 4.60GW by the end of 2021,
and further expanded to 14.60GW by the end of 2022. The
production capacity of modules would be expanded from the
current 3.70GW to 8.86GW by the end of 2021, and further
expanded to 14.46GW by the end of 2022.

As mentioned above, the production capacity of monocrystalline
silicon wafer is lower than that of monocrystalline silicon ingot was
mainly due to the current trend of rapid replacement of
multicrystalline products by monocrystalline products. Hence, a
substantial amount of production capacity of multicrystalline slicing
with multicrystalline silicon ingots has been released. The difference
in the production capacity of the Group’s monocrystalline silicon
ingots and that of monocrystalline silicon wafers will be gradually
eliminated by third-party processing service providers that have
excess multicrystalline slicing capacity. As a result, the Group could
focus on its limited resources on the development of monocrystalline
ingots and niche module products. Besides, in the planning for
2022, the upstream monocrystalline silicon ingot production capacity
will be significantly higher than the downstream module production
capacity. It is to consider that the future supply and demand is
growing rapidly. Compared with downstream modules, production of
upstream monocrystalline silicon ingot needs higher technical
thresholds and higher gross profit margins. Therefore, the oligopoly
market trend of the monocrystalline silicon ingot suppliers will
continue to exist. As the first batch of domestic enterprises engaging
in the production of monocrystalline silicon ingot, with 20 years
experience in manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon ingot, leading
the industry with accumulated technological advantages, when more
resources would be invested in the oligopoly market of upstream
monocrystalline silicon ingots, there would be better market
bargaining power which can strengthen the Group's profitability.
Additionally, to avoid sales competition with existing overseas OEM
customers, the Group has not yet engaged in large-scale self-owned
module brand sales. The overseas module sales strategy still focus on
processing services. Therefore, the module’s capacity expansion plan
would have a lower growth rate and resources could be
concentrated on the development of upstream monocrystalline ingot
products.
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Future prospects and strategies (continued)

The road to grid parity may be a painful change, but the expected
explosive growth in the market after reaching grid parity will provide
an opportunity for the industry. The Group is fully prepared and will
do its utmost, to embrace the growth and development in the
photovoltaic industry in the good times after reaching grid parity.

Event after reporting period

On 21 January 2021, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with the Madam SZE Tan Hung (the “Subscriber”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Subscriber
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company conditionally
agreed to allot and issue 180,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.29 per subscription share. The total
consideration payable by the Subscriber under the subscription
agreement amounts to HK$52,200,000 (equivalent to
RMB43,567,000). All of the conditions precedent of the subscription
agreement have been fulfilled and completion took place on 28
January 2021.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the Group’s
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 December 2020,
and has discussed and reviewed the risk management, internal
control and reporting matters.

Dividend

No final dividend was paid in 2020 (2019: Nil). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2020 (2019: Nil).

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 17
June 2021 to 24 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the branch share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 16 June 2021.
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Overview

The board of Directors (the “Board”) strived to uphold good
corporate governance and adopted sound corporate governance
practices. This report outlines the principles and the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”), as
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which have been adopted by
the Group.

The Company has established the audit committee (the *“Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Code to oversee the financial
reporting procedures and internal controls of the Group so as to
ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has also
established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) with defined terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees have
been posted on the websites of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Group has implemented a compliance manual which covers areas
such as ongoing compliance obligations of the Company and the
Directors, business operations of the Group, financial management
systems, human resources management systems, internal control
systems, quality assurance and property management systems. In the
opinion of the Board, all the code provisions set out in the Code
were met by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions entered into by Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2020.
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The Board of Directors

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The
Directors have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of
the Company. The Directors also assume the following
responsibilities for corporate governance as set out in code provision
D3.1 of the Code:

(@) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e)  to review the issuer’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three executive Directors: Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman),
Mr. TAN Xin (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. WANG Junze (Chief
Financial Officer), one non-executive Director: Mr. HSU You Yuan,
and three independent non- executive Directors: Dr. WONG Wing
Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye and Ms. FENG Wenli. The names and
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 44 to 48
of the annual report. The Board has a strong independent element in
its composition with over half of the board members being non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are
made in the best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
Committees. Further details of these committees are set out below
on pages 38 to 40.
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Board Meetings

The Company holds Board meetings regularly, at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular Board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc Board meetings. Directors may participate either
in person or through electronic means of communications. The
Company will provide relevant materials to all the Directors relating
to the matters brought before the meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and,
upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 9 Board meetings and 1
Shareholders meeting were held and the attendance of individual

Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Board Shareholders
Name of Directors meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) 9/9 iVAl
Mr. TAN Xin 9/9 iVAl
Mr. WANG Junze 9/9 iVAl
Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan 9/9 11
Independent non-executive

Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 9/9 iVAl
Ms. FU Shuangye 8/9 171
Ms. FENG Wenli 9/9 1VAl
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Independent Non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors possess a wealth of
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have
played a significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent
judgment and their views carry significant weight in the Board's
decision. In particular, they bring impartial views to the Board on
issues of the Company’'s strategy, performance and control. The
Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy,
results and management so that all interests of shareholders are
taken into consideration, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders are taken into account in all business decisions. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
the criteria Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who has
served the Board for more than nine vyears, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent
Non-executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice
of the relevant general meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the Board believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

Each of Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. FU Shuangye has
served as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company for
more than ten years. As Independent Non-executive Directors with
extensive experience and knowledge and in-depth understanding of
the Company’s operations and business, each of them has expressed
objective views and given independent guidance to the Company
over the past years, and they continue to demonstrate a firm
commitment to their role.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. FU Shuangye
would not affect their exercise of independent judgement and are
satisfied that each of Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. FU
Shuangye has the required character, integrity and experience to
continue fulfilling the role of an Independent Non-executive Director.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua has been appointed as an executive Director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 18 June 2019. Each
of Mr. TAN Xin and WANG Junze has been appointed as an
executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing
from 30 June 2020. Such terms are subject to re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon retirement.

Mr. HSU You Yuan has been appointed as non-executive Director for
a specific term of three years commencing from 30 June 2020. Such
terms are subject to re-appointment by the Company at an annual
general meeting upon retirements.

Ms. FU Shuangye has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing
from 21 June 2018, Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. Feng
Wenli has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
for a specific term of three years commencing from 18 June 2019.
Such terms are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. TAN Wenhua and Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting. The Company was informed by Ms. FU Shuangye
that she will not offer herself for re-election at the annual general
meeting and will retire as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from the close of the AGM.

Training and Professional Development

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Directors have been given relevant guideline materials to ensure that
they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and
regulatory requirements in relation to the Company’s businesses, and
to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.
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Training and Professional Development
(continued)

All Directors had provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company. According to the training records provided
by the Directors, the trainings attended by them during the
reporting period is summarised as follows:

Trainings on corporate
governance and
Directors regulatory development

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) v
Mr. TAN Xin v
Mr. WANG Junze v

Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan v

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert v
Ms. FU Shuangye v/
Ms. FENG Wenli v

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The role of the Chairman was performed by Mr. TAN Wenhua. Mr.
TAN Wenhua is an executive Director who is responsible for the
management of the Board and he also involves in the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The role of CEO is performed
by Mr. TAN Xin.

The overall management of the Company was performed by the
CEO, executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
The executive Directors (Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin and Mr.
WANG Junze) who have extensive experience in the solar energy
industry and their respective areas of profession, spearhead the
Group's overall development and business strategies.
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Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of and
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include overseeing the financial reporting processes and
internal control procedures of the Group, reviewing the financial
information of the Group and considering issues relating to the
external auditor. Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. WONG Wing Kuen,
Albert (Chairman), Ms. FU Shuangye and Ms. FENG Wenli.

In 2020, the Audit Committee met 2 times and the attendance of
individual Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman) 2/2

Ms. FU Shuangye 172

Ms. FENG Wenli 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim financial
report for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, including the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and has also discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters with the management. The Audit
Committee also monitored the Company’s progress in implementing
the Code as required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to
a resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant
to Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of and Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s structure for
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration. Currently, the Remuneration
Committee consists of four members; three of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. FU Shuangye
(Chairman), Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. FENG Wenli, and
one is an executive Director, namely, Mr. TAN Wenhua.
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Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

In 2020, the Remuneration Committee met once and the attendance
of individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of
Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. FU Shuangye (Chairman) 11
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 1N
Ms. FENG Wenli 11
Executive Director
Mr. TAN Wenhua 11

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration policy of the Company. In
addition, it has also reviewed and approved management’s
remuneration proposal and directors’ service contracts by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board, and ensured
that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for recruiting Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for nomination procedures and process and
criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend candidates for directorship and senior management.
Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of four members;
three of whom are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms.
FENG Wenli (Chairman), Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Ms. FU
Shuangye, and one is a non-executive Director, namely, Mr. HSU You
Yuan.

In 2020, the Nomination Committee met once and the attendance
of individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Name of Directors Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. FENG Wenli (Chairman) 11
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 11
Ms. FU Shuangye 171
Non-executive Director

Mr. HSU You Yuan 171
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has discussed matters relating to the
appointment of senior management members during the year. The
Nomination Committee also considered and resolved that all the
existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the
Company.

Board Diversity

The Board has a board diversity policy which is available on the
Company’s website. In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives
among members of the Board, it is the policy of the Company to
consider a number of factors when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments. Such factors
include gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and the
legitimate interests of the Company’s principal shareholders. The
Board considered the Company has achieved the objective of board
diversity during the year.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2020 by band is set out in note 10 to the Financial
Statements.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

During the year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors nor their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or might
compete with the business of the Group.

Mr. TAN Wenhua has confirmed to the Company of his compliance
with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company
under a non-competition undertaking dated 27 February 2008
(“Non-competition undertaking”). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the Non-competition undertaking had
been complied with and duly enforced from 1 January 2020 and up
to 31 December 2020.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the Finance
Department of the Company, is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In the
preparation of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance
in the annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The performance and remuneration of the external auditors of the
Company, Ernst & Young, have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid
and payable to Ernst & Young and other external auditors in respect
of audit services amounted to approximately RMB3,321,000 (2019:
RMB3,070,000). In addition, approximately RMB45,000 (2019:
RMB295,000) was charged for other non-audit services.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and the internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Company conducted regular review to monitor the Company’s
internal management and operation during the year. Procedures have
been designed to review the risk management functions and to
ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Board supervised the management’s design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group; such
review covered all major control aspects of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group’s internal audit team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The internal
audit team mainly monitors and reviews the matters relating to the
internal control and compliance of the Company, and provides
regular risk-oriented internal audits for its subsidiaries. The internal
audits cover sales, financial reporting and information security and so
on. The internal audit team reports to the Board once a year. The
review covered each of the twelve months of 2020.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control (continued)
Risk management and internal control (continued)

In order to fulfil their fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence, the Directors will constantly seek advice and assistance
from the Company’s internal legal team and if necessary, seek advice
from external legal advisors in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Company also adopted internal control procedures relating to,
among others, signing authority and procedures since February
2007. The Company has an Audit and Legal Department consisting 3
members with extensive experience in the legal field. The main duties
of the Audit and Legal department include:

o providing legal advice on major business decisions

o reviewing and drafting legal documents

o handling legal disputes

o advising on legal issues related to daily operations

o conducting internal training for compliance matters

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board considered that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and the Company has complied with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Directors’ responsibility on the financial statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company,
Ernst & Young, on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 79
to 85.

Going concern

Other than the events stated in note 2.1 to the Financial Statements
on pages 100 to 102, there are no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Investors Relations

The Company places strong emphasis on its communications with
investors, and considers that maintaining on-going and open
communications with investors can promote investors’ understanding
of and confidence in the Company. The Company disclosed all
necessary information to the Shareholders in compliance with the
Listing Rules and met with media, securities analysts, fund managers
and investors on a regular basis to respond to their enquiries so as
to provide them with a clearer picture of the Company’s
achievements in business management and other aspects.
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The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and Shareholders. The
Company will meet with the Shareholders and respond to their
enquiries in the general meetings. The executive Directors attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2020.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. TSANG Pui Kiu whose
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” in this annual report.

Ms. TSANG Pui Kiu has confirmed that she had attained no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31
December 2020, as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“EGM")

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies
Law (2011 Revision) or the articles of association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post or by
facsimile, together with his/her contact details, such as postal
address, email or fax, addressing to the Board at the head office of
the Company at the following address or facsimile number:

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited

Room 1402, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attention to: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Fax: 852 3416 2111

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENSREEAERHE

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (3 %), aged 64, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board. He was one of the founders of the Jinzhou
Plants in 2001. He was conferred various honours including the
Model for the Labour of the Nation, the medal of “May 1st” Labour
of Liaoning Province, the Builders Merit award of Liaoning Province,
the Outstanding Entrepreneur of the Building Materials Industry of
the Nation, the Venture Entrepreneur of the Liaoning Province and
First Prize Entrepreneur of Jinzhou. Prior to the founding of Jinzhou
Plants, he was the Chairman of S8R M T E A B H (KE) R AT
A 7] (Jlinzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group) Co., Ltd.) and the
Director of #®J—F FAM (Jinzhou 155 Factory), a state-owned
factory engaging in quartz crucibles manufacturing. He has been
granted a special subsidy by the State Council in 2004 for his
contribution in engineering technology. He is the father of Mr. Tan
Xin, the executive Director of the Company and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Mr. TAN Xin (%), aged 37, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree of
Marketing from the Macau University of Science and Technology,
and a master’s degree of Business Administration from University of
East Anglia, the U.K. Mr. Tan is also the representative at the 11th
and 12th member congress of the National Association of Industry
and Commerce (% Bl T i Hj), Representative at the 17th National
Congress of the Communist Youth League (% E), Standing
Committee Member of the 11th and 12th Liaoning Province
Association of Industry and Commerce (EEE TR ¥4 ®), and
the Vice President of the Liaoning General Chamber of Commerce
(EEL @), Standing member of the 10th and 11th Liaoning
Province Youth Federation (EELSFHRASEHKEZESNKE),
Member of the 12th and Standing Member of the 13th Jinzhou
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (BMMETZEBHRIHZEE, FET=ERHEBKZE), and
the 1st and 2nd President of the lJinzhou Youth Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. Tan was awarded the Liaoning “Excellent
Entrepreneur” (BF %K), the 4th Constructors’ Medal (55 PY fE &
®&HEE), the “May 1st Labour Medal” (R —#%B)#EE), the
Jinzhou “Model Workers” (%5 By &3), “Meritorious Entrepreneur”
(B %), “Technology Expert with Outstanding Contributions in

Jinzhou” (88 I T & 28 i & B & # & R) “Outstanding Private
Entrepreneurs” (BFRZ %K) and “Top 10 New Industrial

Enterprises” (T % + K #7 # © % %X) and “Top Ten Young
Entrepreneurs” (H1EFE %K) and other honorary titles. Mr. TAN
took up the position of Chief Executive Officer of the Group since
October 2016. Before taking the role of the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Tan also worked in other subsidiaries within the Group and
accumulated plenty of experiences from his prior positions. He is the
son of Mr. TAN Wenhua who is an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Directors (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WANG Junze (£ $9)2), aged 49, is an executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He joined the Company on
1 January 2007 and was the Company is deputy general manager of
China region, who was responsible for the accounting and finance
matter of the Group. He obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the State University of New Jersey (Rutgers). He
is a certified public accountant in Maryland, the United States. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a Special Assistant to President &
Deputy Spokesman of The Office of General Manager of WWX, the
Spokesman and Chief Financial Officer of Panram International
Corp., a company listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HSU You Yuan (FF#5 i), aged 66, a non-executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Group on 6 February 2007 and was
appointed an executive Director on the same date. He graduated
with a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
Culture University in 1980. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HSU was
the Managing Director of Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX") from 1998
to 2003 and later became the Vice-Chairman of WWX in 2003.
WWX is a manufacturer of silicon wafer for the semiconductor
industry and is listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan in
2002. He was the managing director of Silicon Technology
Investment (Cayman) Corp. and was appointed the Chief Executive
Officer of Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp., responsible
for overseeing, amongst others, WWX'’s investment in the solar
energy industry. In March 2006, he was appointed a director and he
was subsequently appointed as the Chairman of the board of
Jinzhou Youhua in September 2006. Mr. HSU’s previous work
credentials also include acting as Deputy General Manager of Mosel
Vitelic Inc., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and as
a director and Executive Vice-President of Mosel Vitelic (Hong Kong)
Limited, a subsidiary of Mosel Vitelic Inc. Mr. HSU had also made
contributions to non-commercial sectors in the past. He served as a
researcher, a deputy director, and the director of Business
Department of the Executive Yuan Development Fund of Taiwan
(Note: Executive Yuan Development Fund is now known as National
Development Fund, Executive Yuan). He was also a lecturer of
Statistics and Managerial Mathematics for the Business
Administration department at the Chinese Culture University. Mr.
HSU has been an independent non-executive director of China
Shanshui Cement Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since September 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
ESNEREEABRE

Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (F 5k #), aged 69, was appointed an
Independent non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Dr. Wong is
a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Chartered Institute for
Securities and Investments, UK, Association of International
Accountants, Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong,
The Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland, UK, as well
as a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute, The Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, Macau Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and an associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Bankers in Scotland, UK. Dr. WONG had been a director and Chief
Executive Officer of Minghua Group International Holdings Limited, a
listed public company in the United States, until 30 September
2004. Dr. WONG had also been an independent non-executive
director of Rare Earths Global Limited, a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange — AIM Market, since March 2012, and
retired as an independent non-executive director on 2 May 2014
because of the cancellation of admission on AIM of the ordinary
shares of Rare Earths Global Limited. According to the filings made
available to public through the EDGAR database in U.S., for the
quarterly period ended 30 September 2005, Minghua Group
International Holdings Limited was “a small business issuer” and “a
development stage company”. Dr. WONG was the Chief Consultant
of KND & Co. CPA Limited. KND & Co. CPA Limited was
deregistered on 31 December 2017.

Since 1 January 2018, Dr. WONG was appointed as the Principal
Consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited. Dr. WONG has been an
independent non-executive director of APAC Resources Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since July 2004; an independent non-executive director of
China Merchants Land Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since June 2012; an independent
non-executive director of China VAST Industrial Urban Development
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, since August 2014; an independent non-
executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, since September 2017; an independent non-executive
director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
GEM board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since January 2018;
an independent non-executive director of China Medical &
HealthCare Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since December 2018; and an
independent non-executive director of Dexin China Holdings
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, since February 2019.
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. WONG is an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company and has served on the Board for more than 10 years. As
an Independent Non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, Dr. WONG has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years. He
continues to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role.

Pursuant to code provision A.5.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee and the Board consider that Dr. WONG, being a Certified
Public Accountant, is able to complement the professional
background of the composition of the Board in terms of expertise in
accounting and financial reporting. Notwithstanding Dr. WONG holds
various company directorships in listed companies in Hong Kong, he
devoted sufficient time in fulfilling his role in the Company. During
the past year, he attended and actively participated in the
discussions in all the Board meetings and committee meetings which
he was eligible to attend.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG would not affect his exercise of independent
judgment and are satisfied that Dr. WONG has the required
character, integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the role of
an Independent Non-executive Director and consider Dr. WONG to be
independent.

Ms. FU Shuangye (fF%& %), aged 52, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Ms. FU graduated from
Wuhan University with a bachelor degree in English Literature in
1990 and obtained her further legal studies certificate in the Law
School of China Politics and Law University in 1997. She was
qualified as a PRC lawyer in 1998. She was a partner of Zhong Lun
W&D Law Firm in Beijing. Ms. FU is now the Managing Director
Partner of Zhong Hao Attorneys-at-Law. She has extensive experience
in the legal profession.

Ms. FU is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
and has served on the Board for more than 10 years. As an
Independent Non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, Ms. FU has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years. She
continues to demonstrate a firm commitment to her role.

Pursuant to code provision A.5.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee and the Board consider that Ms. FU, being a practising
solicitor, has extensive experience in legal profession. She is able to
complement the professional background of the composition of the
Board in terms of law and compliance.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service. of Ms. Fu would not affect her exercise of independent
judgment and are satisfied that Ms. Fu has the required character,
integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the role of an
Independent Non-executive Director and consider Ms. Fu to be
independent.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. FENG Wenli (53 %), aged 64, graduated from Northeastern
University in 1982 with a major in semiconductor materials. From the
same vyear, she worked in & 5 8 & £ B I {F (Luoyang
Monocrystalline Silicon Factory*). She was mainly engaged in
semiconductor-grade monocrystalline silicon ingot-pulling technology
and technical quality management. In 1990, she served as Chief
Engineer of Luoyang Monocrystalline Silicon Factory. In 1993, she
served as the Secretary of Party Committee of Luoyang
Monocrystalline Silicon Factory and from 1995 onwards, she
concurrently served as General Manager of Sino-US joint venture
company EH % EF MR BRAF (MCL Electronic Materials Co.,
Ltd.*) and has received training on monocrystalline silicon ingot and
wafer technologies and management training from MEMC of the
United States. In October 2000, she worked as Deputy General
Manager of A £ EIZ A& (GRINM Silicon Guotai Co., Ltd.*)
under it RE B E BT ITL2FT (Beijing General Research Institute For
Nonferrous Metals*). She was responsible for the technical quality
and production of heavily blended monocrystalline silicon ingots and
wafers, and participated in the national science and technology
research and development project work on 8-inch heavily arsenic
blended monocrystalline silicon. She served as the Deputy General
Manager of /& B fl & # E 7 # £ 2 & (Shanghai Shenhe

Thermomagnetic
where she was
production. She
technology and

Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.*) in March 2003,
responsible for monocrystalline ingot and wafer
has also received training on wafer production,
management from B ZARZEAE QAT (Toshiba

Ceramics Co., Ltd.*) of Japan. She was the General Manager of A
SEEMEXRAMEBR2AE (Inner Mongolia Minaji Photovoltaic
Materials Co., Ltd.*) in 2006, where she was responsible for the
production of solar monocrystalline silicon and the production of
heavily blended monocrystalline silicon. She retired in 2016 and was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the Group on
18 June 2019.

The Directors’ interest or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") are set out in the section
headed “Interest and Short Positions of the Directors and the Chief
Executives of the Company in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” in this
annual report. Each Director has been appointed for a term of three
years. The Directors’ emoluments, the basis of determining the same
(including any bonus payments, whether fixed or discretionary in
nature, irrespective of whether the Director has or does not have a
service contract) and the Directors’ fees are set out in note 9 to the
Financial Statements and the section headed and “Report of the
Directors — Emolument Policy” of this annual report. Save as
disclosed above, each Director confirmed that there are no other
matters that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company and there is no other information
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Senior Management

Ms. TSANG Pui Kiu (& 1545), aged 36, is the Financial Controller,
Company Secretary and Investor Relations Director of the Company.
She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration (Honors) in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong and she is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
She joined the Company in June 2015 and has over 10 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and
corporate finance.

48 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR

5 o
a\uu‘:lmﬂll.
IS

PR 23 S S B i~ S e e

o W
N\
1
e
it

2|

ﬂ
oy
H
N
S
B
ME
CH
=

25
B
Y 354488 Ty

jv ;E:w}
D S e B0 |

~7

oSt

- e d i
i HH
- s el
REFIR

<
=

~7

-~ HE 4B

1 |

G 0

m
T B g e

NI Ty

S - g
R | e

iR o5

B | e
> P

S
L

el
gl
T W0

<

&
Fa
AHH‘E
S
Vi
B
[
i
=
B3 IF R0 N B A A S SE RS |

A 21| @ otk B
QA\LIV

Frt Bt
(B33t
Hr =
i
T
HH et
18 59

= e

!

[

mﬂﬂﬁ*ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ
PR A = H

&He 2
o B SOt
ey
I} g >
M =7 B =
2 0 g 5 o8

Vi
s
Té
&

HF sy

Mt

W
=

%

0]

%1:1 -
< 1w Boat o

3 O U B2
Wi - BB IR B ISR

Byl
B i 1

=R @i
o \_Hm]
Ml
B0/
o i Zoay M

It 5 5 o)
=
At

o

Buk -
B R B IR |

3 ot
=

R >
| | g8 oy
lln\—\\vmkm
it g a5 4

~
-

S - 2 SR KR H

~
-

T 5 >+ I HF 2518 2 S 5H b D et 488 ST 488 - 3

St PRt S T Y 25
W | & 802 IR

B s o A
NS ES D o

aF | feot
%H
<Rk

B -
VR
s

-\
i

A
[N
AT
3 85
=58
=5
-
5
i

—
o
koj

B
I«
gy o)
E%%
_FH
%}n\"

=
S
R

pa
B
o0 42
il
SRS N7 2y A NS

S
( ot Ty ol 2 vt

3p

Dt
e
H

= oot

o>

Bk > i

7/
>
m
-]
= ymy X
t’\//
o DH

&
SN

=

S kauxmm«;
s 25

S g
=T

bl 5 4t
=
=

)
\
Y

i
i
e
=

o B
IS

B
m%%ﬂME%
B
=

e

e
B

T

N
o
o Z

i
H—

"m%ﬂﬁm . %E‘I
e
pa
o

iyt
=
- A o

[ —
\
B
o
»

It 55
=i

s
5

7/
R R

Tl
ok

ey
NS

\|

/

=
= -

\
/!

Dt 0 2 O

B =Dk 3L
N
E
Eﬁx
b}
0
P
w s
el
K

\
P

A= s 2 R B SR R

S coh 4
U
S

o
X
i
IR
o

Tt
|

i
pr;
>_
il

I} 3
D T
25 00
m S
A
S
>
||
s
A
(PE'\\‘
i
>
||
=
T T

- SRS o
i~
il
| g
N,
B
=
I
ot
GRS
=
=
\
>~_
1B
H
o

ar

B
H_
Rl
=
o
i
o
i3
E'H_
=+
>
i3

2R3 e
H
ol
m
=
>
B
5
Rl

= A
g
?“»
Ul
-
X
>
>H¢‘
1
B
5

ok



Directors and Senior Management Profile

EEMEREEABRKE

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. LI Hongbang (Z& #), aged 48, the General Manager of Ingot
Pulling and Wafer Slicing Business Department of the Group. He
joined the Group in 2003. He graduated from Zhejiang University in
2010 with a bachelor's degree in marketing. From 2005, Mr. LI
served as the office supervisor. Mr. LI was the head of Sales
Department since 2007 and the supervisor of Shanghai Marketing
Center and the head of Sales Department since 2009. Later, he
became the director of Group Production Planning Department in
2013. He has served as the General Manager of Ingot Pulling
Business Department since May 2014, and also served as the General
Manager of Wafer Slicing Business Department since August 2015.

Mr. WANG Lixin (£32%f), aged 53, the General Manager of Cell and
Module Business Department of the Group. He graduated from the
Party School of Liaoning Province in 2000. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. WANG was the Chief Engineer of Jinzhou Thermal Power
Corporation (#8/NZE 42 7)) from April 1990 to May 2008. He
joined the Group as the head of Cell Business Department and
Equipment Department in 2008 and later became the plant head of
Cell Business Department since 2012 and the general manager of
Cell Business Department since 2014. He also served as the General
Manager of Module Business Department since January 2018.

Mr. ZHANG Hai (58/8), aged 38, the General Manager of Module
Business Department and General Manager of R&D Quality Assurance
Centre of the Group. He holds a bachelor’s degree in information
technology and business management at Northeastern University,
Master’s degree in energy management from Tulane University. He is
a PhD candidate at the Forbes School of Business at the University of
Arizona and is an electrical engineer. In 2010, Mr. ZHANG was
employed by Huachang Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd (¥ & %1k
B AR A F]) as the head of Quality Assurance Department. He
served as the head of Group Quality Control Department in 2012
and the director of Group Quality Management Department in
February 2014. In August 2014, he became the general manager of
Module Business Department. Since January 2018, he served as the
Vice General Manager and General Manager of R&D Quality
Assurance Centre of the Group. He was appointed as the General
Manager of Module Business Department in February 2021. He is
currently vice chairman of China Photovoltaic Industry Association
and a member of Technical Standards Committee of China
Photovoltaic Industry Association, an executive director of China
Electronic Materials Industry Association and vice chairman of
Semiconductor Materials Branch. He was awarded the May 1st Labor
Medal of Jinzhou City, one of the inventors of 16 patents, one of
the third prize of Liaoning Province Science and Technology Progress
Award and one of the first prize of Jinzhou Science and Technology
Progress Award.

Ms. CHEN Linlin (BR¥K¥F), aged 43, is the General Manager of
Administration Center of the Group’s Crystalline Division. She
graduated from Dalian University of Technology in 2000 with a
bachelor’'s degree in chemical engineering. She obtained a Master of
Business Administration from Dalian University of Technology in
2006. She joined the Group in 2006 and has held various positions
including project manager, project director, production planning
director, planning director, and administrative director. Since
February 2021, she serves as the General Manager of Administration
Center of the Group’s Crystalline Division.
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Senior Management (continued)

Dr. LIU Aimin (B|ER), aged 52, is a member of the Group's
Corporate Strategy Committee. He joined the Group in 2017. He
graduated from Lanzhou University in 1990 with a bachelor’s degree
in Physics and, in 1997, obtained a Ph.D. in Semiconductor Materials
and Devices from the Institute of Semiconductors, Chinese Academy
of Sciences. Thereafter, he studied abroad in Israel, Japan and New
Zealand. After returning to China in 2002, Dr. Liu was appointed
professor at the School of Physics of Dalian University of Technology
and also the Director of its Solar Cell Research Centre. In 2014, co-
operating with the Group’s companies, they accomplished the “863”
Black Silicon Solar Cell Technology Project (“863" BfE AF5E M %
first2l) (the “Project”) under the National High-Tech Development
Research Program (IR & i B FCErE]) of the Ministry of
Science and Technology (%2 17 #F). The Project covers the
research on improving solar cell efficiency through nano-structures
and passivation of the surface of black silicon. Dr. Liu was the Chief
Scientist of the Project. He is also a Review Expert for the National
Science and Technology Progress Award.

Mr. LUO Qian (% %2), aged 52, the General Manager of Solargiga
Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd of the Group. He is a delegate of the 15th
People’s Congress and the 16th National People’s Congress Standing
Committee of Xining City. He joined the Group in 2010. He
graduated from the Faculty of Chinese of Qinghai Normal University
in 1992. From 1992 to 1997, he worked in the labour service
company of Qinghai Provincial People’s Political Consultative
Conference (F /8% B # 4 &)k %5 2 7]). He served as General
Manager of Xining Zhanging Electronics Co., Ltd. (FAZEHBFEFH
fR A &]) from 1997 to 2009. In 2009, Mr. Luo invested in anghal
Chenguang New Energy Co., Ltd. (aﬁ)ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ ERBEREEARF)
(“Qinghai Chenguang”). In 2010, the Group acquired Qinghai
Chenguang and changed the name to Solargiga Energy (Qinghai)
0., Ltd. He then was appointed by the board of directors of the
Company as the General Manager of Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. ZHANG Yubo (3K £14), aged 40, is the General Manager of
Marketing Operations Center of Qujing Yangguang Energy Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. of the Group. He joined the Group in 2005. He
graduated from Shenyang Ligong University in 2004 with a
bachelor’'s degree in Metalic Materials. Mr. Zhang became the
Group's Head of Technical Department in 2007 and then the Head
of the Group’s Yangguang manufacturing plants in Jinzhou in 2009.
Later in 2014, he served as the Production Planning Director. In
2017, he was appointed as General Manager of Qujing Yangguang
Energy Silicon Material Co., Ltd. (#3553 a8 RIEM KB R A T

And, he was appointed as General Manager of the Marketing
Operation Center of Qujing Sunshine Energy Silicon Materials Co.,
Ltd. in 2021.

Mr. SATO Masanobu (#c## IEiE), aged 51, is the Quality Director of
Solar Cell Business Department and Technology and Quality Director
of Module Business Department of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in Sharp Corporation from 1988 and had worked
in the semiconductor field for 18 years. After which, for 10 years
from 2006, he served as the Quality Manager in the Department of
Photovoltaic Systems in Sharp Corporation. Since 2016, he serves as
the Quality Director of Cell Business Department and Technology and
Quality Director of Module Business Department of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHES

The Directors present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company of the Group.
The principal activities of the Group are the trading of,
manufacturing of and provision of processing services for polysilicon
and monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers, and the producing of
and trading of photovoltaic modules, the installation of photovoltaic
systems and the operating of photovoltaic power plants. The analysis
of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the subsidiaries during the financial year are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion
and analysis of these activities, including a description of an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 11 to 31 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of
this directors’ report. The description of the Group’s Environmental,
Social and Governance aspects during the financial year can also be
found in the Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG")
Report set out on pages 62 to 78 of this annual report.

Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

As far as the directors are aware, the group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s top five customers are mainly silicon solar wafer, cell or
modules manufacturers or traders. In aggregate, the largest and five
largest customers did not exceed 11% (2019: 11%) and 37% (2019:
38%) of the Group’s total sales in 2020 respectively.

The Group currently procures raw materials from about 178 major
suppliers (2019: 142). In aggregate, purchases from its largest and
five largest suppliers did not exceed 15% (2019: 13%) and 41%
(2019: 39%) of the Group’s total purchases in 2020 respectively.
Save for WWX, at no time during the year have the Directors, their
close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers and/or
customers.
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Report of the Directors

EEeWmEE

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers,
Customers and Other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During the
year under review, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or stakeholders.

BES HEB FEFREMEH
EHEE
ARERABERLES HED - BF LWL
BOEHREBENENLENERNEENE
Ei e ROEFE  ARERREER  FR R/
R E 2B LEEAAL o

Financial Statements and Dividends Eﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%&ﬂﬁ%
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and AEEHZE-_Z_TF+_A=+—HLLFEH

the Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 86 to 216. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Transfer to Reserves

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended

FE ARAEERR B OB ERN - HKRESe
VBN ERR EETEZREBEE T =F
ER_ZT-NF+-_A=Zt+—HUIEFERMNKE
f% 8 o

BRERE
BE-F-FF+-A=t-BLFEARAR

31 December 2020 was RMB215,648,000 (2019: loss of HREMEEAAR215648,000C(=F—NF
RMB355,492,000) had been transferred to reserves. Other &8 AR#355,492,00070) C EEAGHE - FiED
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of EMEFHFH A FIOEGAEREHRA -

changes in equity on page 90.

As at 31 December 2020, distributable reserves of the Company RZ-Z-_ZF+_A=+—H ARXa Dk

amounted to approximately RMB1,115,694,000 (2019: RMB1,125,982,000).

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB273,000 (2019: RMB192,000).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2020 are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and

B4 B ANERE1,115,694,00000 (& — 71 AR
1,125,982,0007T) ©

ZEBX
REEARNEBMEZRZBRAAR273,0007T
(ZZ—NF: AR®192,0007T) °

ﬂﬁﬁ% Httfg &
ARER-E-FE+-A=+-ABHRITER
&ﬁ@%gﬁﬁ BB B 75 3R M 5E27 -

MK BERRE
WHEME BERREAREEDHFIE B

equipment are set out in note 14 to the financial statements. REF ST M EE14 -

Share Capital B 4

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during AFEFERAQRRBRASHOFE  HRPBHREK
the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements. Bf7E34 -

Five-year Financial Summary LFMBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the
annual report.
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Report of the Directors
FEEREE

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua, Chairman
Mr. TAN Xin
Mr. WANG Junze

Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert
Ms. FU Shuangye
Ms. FENG Wenli

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. TAN Wenhua, Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and
Ms. FU Shuangye will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. TAN Wenhua and Dr. WONG Wing Kuen,
Albert, being eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting. The Company was informed by Ms. FU
Shuangye that she will not offer herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting and will retire as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from the close of the AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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' Report of the Directors
EFEEHREE
Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, transactions with the
following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Name of party &5 &1

BB X5
BE-—2-2F+-A=+—BIFE 2T
ALRZBBRABEB XS

Relationship B %

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 39 to

Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited
BMNERMEERFRARA

Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd.
BMNAREEEMHERA

Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huida"”)
THRFBENMERBEBERLA(HE]D

Jinzhou Huachang Photovoltaic Property Development Co., Ltd.

WNEENRRNEHERBERR AR

Liaoning Little Giant Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
BENEAFRBRHRZERAA

Jianhu High-tech Investment Development Co., Ltd
BENESMEEERARAA

the financial statements.

Controlled by Tan Wenhua, Chairman of the Company
SN A E R SCE L

Controlled by spouse of Tanxin, an executive director of
the Company
RARARTESTEENRBE

Associate of the Group

REBHBE DT

Controlled by Tan Wenhua, Chairman of the Company
RERBTEEXEES

Associate of the Group
REEMEBE QA

Investor of a subsidiary

—HENEARNKRES

BB IR SONFERM B RRMEIONE -

KEBEBERS

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Company’s continuing connected transactions.

Connected Transaction

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the related party transactions
disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme

The Company did not have a share option scheme as at 31
December 2020.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) by reason of
their holdings of the shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in
or exercising of any rights in relation to the shares, they are advised
to consult their professional advisers.

54 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR

ARBER  HERELTRAFLAZRA LA
FERSEXSETABBERE

BEXS

BE-_Z-_ZTFE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE HER
%W%w%&§WW%E*%ﬁTﬁﬁiﬁﬁW
FUATHE T HNHERI IS BT EREIFINRS -

BRETE
R-ZB-F&E+-A=+—8 KARFADREBE
CEETR

BIERR
ARRLFOEARDRE(RE) B E RS
MAEEHEMHERS - MBETREHE -
BACEE - PRI B T A
IHBRE RRARSHALRLER



Report of the Directors
FEEREE

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company s Listed Securities

68,009,433 units of TDRs representing 68,009,433 ordinary shares of
the Company had been repurchased by the Company pursuant to the
relevant rules of the Taiwan Stock Exchange and the underlying
ordinary shares represented by such TDRs transferred to the
Company on 7 April 2020, and were cancelled on 2 June 2020. Save
as disclosed above, during the year, there was no purchase, sale or
redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the
Company’s listed securities.

Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors are aware, the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
associates had the following interests in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

BE HEIWEEALQT LHES

AN ﬂaffﬁd BEELARGAINEBEATERNR
RAR M %68,009,4330% % 17 #68,009,43317

m@ﬁ RiE - ZERRLTBRBOHOBETT
E%E#:;:?Emﬂtaﬁﬁﬂ$ EINEA

TECTEFERNAHAHE BRLAARARIN FR
AR HEMMBARMERE  HEXER
RABIER EHES -
EERANTBEAHASREA
ARHABEEH R G ARRG
FEFHNEZRAR

RZE-ZTFE+-_A=+—H BEEHRE &
$&$ AESITBRABERKREZBHEALTRA
REREREEE (EE LTS RPERD ([E5
RERE %O EXVER Ry - HER O REH
T EBCDRENRIEE S KA E G E352(F 5

EFENECMIBRBEEETFAAESITAEAR
AN AT RN T ¢

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of

shares held shareholding
(Note 1) (%)
Name of Director Nature interest FiEEEREE BHABERBESL
EEHR ERME (¥ 5E1) (%)
Mr. TAN Wenhua Beneficial interest (Note 2) 556,924,443 (L) 17.72%
ERE S Bz (M sE2)
Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 155,320,308 (L) 4.94%
Sy EE R (M FE2)
Mr. TAN XIN Beneficial interest 41,762,000 (L) 1.33%
BEEE EmEs
Mr. WANG Junze Beneficial interest 100,500 (L) 0.01%
EHELE EmEs
Mr. HSU You Yuan Beneficial interest 15,591,016 (L) 0.50%

B bia EamfEm
Notes: =T -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such securities. 1. FHILEZATRZEESZNETE -

2. As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Tan Wenhua is interested in an aggregate
of 712,244,751 share of the Company, of which (i) 556,924,443 share
of the Company are directly held by Mr. Tan Wenhua; and (ii)
155,320,308 share of the Company are held by You Hua Investment
Corporation, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Tan Wenhua.

2. RZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—8 "7
R712,244,7510% N A ‘7%5ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ?"é¢|
556,924,443 AN AR M BB ELLEEE R
£+ RK(ii) 155,320,308 A A B f& 1 B3 "8 SCEE SR A
EEBABZHERERBRAGFAE -
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHREE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERX
Interests and Short Positions’ in Shares and R%@HH
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors are aware, save as #HE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—H BEEME "
disclosed above, the substantial shareholders and other persons or [ EXXIRFTEE I A T X B R K E M A L8k
corporations (not being a Director, chief executive of the Company) B (W EF ARG &ZSTHAB)RARFR
who have interest or short positions in the shares and underlying P NIHEKRMD T BECTHENBEZESLBE
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be {EHIE36BKMEFENELMKESTHAEEAR
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the BIHIEZRZI XA :

Company were as follows:

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of
shares held shareholding
(Note 1) (%)
Name Capacity FEEBEREE BAERBES T
B2l HA 52 (MF5E1) (%)
Hiramatsu International Corp. Beneficial owner 304,261,692 (L) 9.68%
EHEAA
Hiramatsu Hiroharu (Note 2) Interest of a controlled 304,261,692 (L) 9.68%
(P 5E2) corporation
R EE RS
Wafer Works Investment Corp. Beneficial owner 185,894,822 (L) 5.91%
("WWIC") ERBER A
Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX") (Note 3) Interest of a controlled 185,894,822 (L) 5.91%
corporation
amAEROARAA((E&&BED(MF3) SIEEE#ZER
Notes: M st -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such securities. 1. FEILIEBZATRZEZFLFNTE -

2. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having 2. BEENEE A EBERNEMEN 28

made all reasonable enquiry, Hiramatsu International Corp. is wholly- NS R A% B B0 Hiramatsu  HiroharuZ
owned by Hiramatsu Hiroharu as at the date of this report. By virtue of & A Hiramatsu International Corp. ° RIEEH I
the SFO, Hiramatsu Hiroharu is deemed to be interested in the shares HR & &3] - Hiramatsu Hiroharu# 1% & F Hiramatsu
of the Company held by Hiramatsu International Corp. International Corp B KRR RBRMHPHEEEE -

3. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having 3. BEENELE V6 BEREMAN 2B RE

made all reasonable enquiry, WWIC is wholly-owned by WWX as at the B RARERR ARME2EHBEWWIC - 1R
date of this report. By virtue of the SFO, WWX is deemed to be BEHFRBEKRY 4R EERARWWICHKE
interested in the Shares held by WWIC. RN R o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors are M EXFBBEEI BE-_EZ-_TE+-_A=+—
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or H ' 2B X THEBEBTAEM A T SEBMPB AR
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company HIWRM REEENDTHEEERE DS RME K
which fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of  fFIEXVEBE2RID B2 EXHEME R XA -
Part XV of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors
FEEREE

Non-competition Undertaking

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors nor
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business that competed or might compete with the
business of the Group.

The controlling shareholders of the Company has confirmed that he/
it has complied with the terms of non-competition undertakings
(“Non-competition Undertakings”) given in favour of the Company.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of the compliance by each of the controlling shareholders
with the undertakings stipulated in the Non-competition
Undertakings and have confirmed that, as far as the independent
non-executive Directors can ascertain, there is no breach of any of
such undertakings.

Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertakings, Mr. TAN Wenhua
shall continue to be bound by the terms of the non-competition
undertaking in the event that he ceases to be a Director but remains
a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is
actual or potential conflict in interest.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had not
received any information in writing from Mr. TAN Wenhua in respect
of any new business opportunity which competed or might compete
with the existing and future business of the Group which were
offered to or came to be the knowledge of the Mr. TAN Wenhua or
their associates (other than any member of the Group), and the
Company has received an annual written confirmation from Mr. TAN
Wenhua in respect of him and his associates in compliance with the
non competition undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed and were satisfied that Mr. TAN
Wenhua had complied with the Non-competition undertaking.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

On 2 June 2020, Solargiga Energy (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Solargiga HK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan agreement with Mr. TAN Wenhua, our executive
director, for a loan to Solargiga HK which is unsecured with a 5%
annual interest rate. For details, please refer to Note 39 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 in this report.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a director is or had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

£
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Report of the Directors
FRERLE

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts

On 2 June 2020, Solargiga Energy (Hong Kong) Company Limited
("Solargiga HK"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan agreement with Mr. TAN Wenhua, our executive
director, for a loan to Solargiga HK which is unsecured with a 5%
annual interest rate. For details, please refer to Note 39 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the vyear
ended 31 December 2020 in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no contract of
significance and no contract of significance for the provision of
services had been entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’'s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set out by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Retirement Benefit Schemes
Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
FEEREE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Special enquiries have been made by
the Company to confirm that all Directors have been complied with
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the corporate governance report on pages 32 to 43.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
references adopted in compliance with the Code set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit
Committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, and
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert, an independent non-executive
Director, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication
between other Directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as
regards their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal
controls, external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to time.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in providing an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time to time
and the Company considers these systems effective and adequate.
The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s interim and annual
consolidated financial statements for the year 2020, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

Management Contracts

The Company did not enter into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHREE

Dividend Policy

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital to grow the Group's business
and rewarding the shareholders of the Company. The Board shall
take into account the following factors, among other factors:

(@) the Group’s overall results of operation, financial position,
liquidity position, capital requirements, cash flow and future
prospects,

(b)  the amount of distributable reserves of the Company;

(¢)  the expected capital requirements and future expansion plans
of the Group;

(d) the general business and regulatory conditions, the business
cycle of the Group and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

(e)  the statutory and regulatory restrictions;

(f)  the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the
Company to the Company;

(g) the Shareholders’ interests; and
(h)  other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed
with the Stock Exchange, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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Report of the Directors
EEgREE

Auditors

Ernst & Young, registered public interest entity auditor, was
appointed by the Directors to conduct audit on the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint Ernst & Young as the auditors of the
Company.

By Order of the Board
TAN Wenhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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ABOUT ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERIRE - ERERTKS

Scope of report

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the "“ESG
Report”) of the Group is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG
Reporting Guide”) provided in Appendix 27 to Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The information stated in this report covers the period from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “reporting period”),
which aligns with the financial year as the 2020 annual report of the
Company. This report focuses on the business policies, measures and
performance of the Group’s core business, which is the provision of
upstream and downstream vertically integrated solar energy services.

Reporting principles

The Group complies with the core reporting principles set out in the
ESG Reporting Guide (i.e. materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency, and strives for enhancing the transparency and
accountability through this report.
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Application of reporting

Reporting principles Definitions principles

BE ¥} /R A Bx EREANER

Materiality Where ESG issues are sufficiently We identified the concerns and
HEM important to investors and other expectations of our stakeholders

stakeholders, they should be

reported by issuers.

EEFCETAWRE HEREAR
FHEHREERAMIENEE
EERYER  BITANEELE

% -

through having interaction with
them, and made relevant
disclosures accordingly.

BB REARFOHENES - TH
REHRE B hEREENHE
ANEIE - WHEITHRER -

Key performance indicators (“KPIs")
for historical data should be
measurable. Quantitative
information should be
accompanied by narrative,
explaining its purpose, impacts,
and giving comparative data where
appropriate.

FHERELEENFRESIEREAR
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The Report discloses quantitative
information on KPIs, and compares
historical performance where
appropriate.
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About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Reporting principles
BE R /R Al

Definitions

Bx

Application of reporting
principles
BE ) R BRI B9 BE A

Balance

i

Consistency

— B

The ESG Report should impartially
report the performance of the
issuer to avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats
that may inappropriately influence
a decision or judgment by the
report reader.

RIE HEREBMEERS MR E
WMERBETANKE  BRAES
e T BREFERKLH
BeiEE BRIEHRBRA -

The issuer should use consistent
methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG
data over time.

BEITANEER—BEORESRA T
TRE UHERERBIEBEAE
BEEOLE -

This report provides an objective and
unbiased description of the
environmental, social and
governance performance of the
Group during the reporting period.

ARERETEBRNBREHRBANIR
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B o

The Report used consistent
methodologies wherever possible.
If there is any change that may
affect the comparison with
previous reports, the Group will
include a corresponding
explanation in this report.
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About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BARNIRE - @ MERWmE

Stakeholder engagement

The opinions of stakeholders are the basis for the Group to
formulate and implement short-term and long-term business
strategies. In order to identify the insights and expectations on
business operations of our stakeholders, the Group has been actively

KOEZH

FNENBERARAEESEME SRR
REMNER - BT BRNFNEHEBELNR
fEMHE AEERBEREEREEBRE D
ERFRN - WERT B AFIE B AIRAHFE %

engaged with key stakeholders through various channels to collect

RERANER -

and understand their opinions on our sustainability performance.

Key stakeholders

Communication channel

64

BEEOE SHERE
Employees Intranet 7 B 49
8T Onboarding and on-the-job training A & 0 7£ B 55 3l

Investors and shareholders

KEEMBRER

Customers

BP

Suppliers and business partners

{54 0 7 0 32 7 9

Government departments and regulatory bodies

BT 3B P AN B & 1

Community
'

Staff performance evaluation 8 T 4& & &T i
Staff activities 8 T/&#)

Company’s website 2 & 43 uh

Company’s announcements ‘2 &) A &
Annual general meeting IR X &

Annual and interim reports 4 & #l & #3545

Company’s website 2 & 4 uh

Meetings BB &%

Customer’s feedback and complaints & F % £& F11% 3F
Performance evaluation 4& 3 &F &

Meetings & %

On-site visit & i1 & %

Documentation 2 M X

Community activities A 25 /E 2
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About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BARNIRE - @ RERWmE

Environmental
Aspect A1: Emissions

As for environmental protection, the Group continues to invest in
energy-saving equipment and emphasize green production while
constantly advancing its technology in energy saving, emissions
reduction and clean production. The Group also controls stringently
the emission of wastes. According to its waste management policy,
wastes have to be minimized, reused and recycled before the last
resort of disposal. The Group regularly keeps track of the latest
national and regional environmental laws and regulations, complies
with relevant laws and rules such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (Ff#E A R MBI IRBIRESE),
the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic
of China (REARKMBEIRFEF EFTEE) and the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution (FF#E A R A0 R H M5 2008
/%), and takes various measures to achieve better performance in
environmental protection amid daily office activities and specific
business operations. During the year, the Group was not subject to
any fines or related litigation in relation to environmental pollution.

Air pollutant emissions

Air emissions include NOx, Fluoride, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations. Pollutants are primarily emitted
from the raw material cleaning process. The fumes produced during
the acid treatment of silicon feedstock by hydrofluoric acid and nitric
acid are eventually treated and emitted through the acid mist
towers.

Air pollutant emissions of the Group are detailed below:
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AEBEZZRSRMBEBMAT

2019
—E—A

Fluorochemicals &1t 41
Hydrogen fluoride &1L &
Hydrogen chloride &b &
Chlorine gas &R
Nitrogen oxides @& 1L ¥

0.60 tonnesMg
0.03 tonnesMg
0.13 tonnesMg
0.25 tonnesMg
2.84 tonnesMg

0.95 tonneshi
0.04 tonneshi#
0.15 tonneshi
0.26 tonneshif
2.39 tonneshf
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About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BARNIRE - @ MERWmE

Greenhouse gas emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions reflect the impact of our businesses on
climate change. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride. Our greenhouse gas emissions were mainly attributable
to the indirect emissions from purchased electricity.

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (scope 2):

carbon dioxide (CO,) equivalent emissions
2020: Approximately 383,909 tonnes
2019: Approximately 303,290 tonnes

Note: An emission factor of 0.792 tonnes to 1.083 tonnes CO,-e/MWh was
used for calculating electricity consumption. The emission factor is
based on the “2019 China Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors”
published by the National Development and Reform Commission.

Hazardous wastes

The hazardous wastes generated by the Group mainly included:

B E R RN
AEAREMRRBFHLBHARE COPE -

BEREBRIE—_&tix - Bt - &tEa - S/
&y 2aEBREANE/LTE RMANEERE
FRETBREBINEENEENBERW -

BEAEERBHER(EE2)

— R E & ¥ R(COo,)
—ZF —F 1 49383,909MA
—ZF— 1 49303,290M8

5 LABEREEEIKEEF0.792ME = 1.083ME — S LIk E
EARHENE I ER - BEREH R ERR %
BRI EZE8gHAZQOIIFFRHEEEME
ERPEMA TG -

BEBREY
ARERELNEEFERNEERR

Spent activated carbon felt cartridges [ /& It fix B J& /&
Waste EVA/TPT edge strips BEEVA/TPTIE fi§

Waste oil [

Waste activated carbon & & 4 %

Waste filter cotton & i@ & 1%

Waste plastic bucket [ 2 1

Spent activated carbon felt cartridges are mainly used for
temperature keeping in monocrystalline ingot pullers during the ingot
pulling process and contain mainly activated carbon. Filtration
through the activated carbon-based organic gas flaring towers gives
rise to fluorochemical residues. Ethylene vinyl acetate (“EVA") is
produced by our module assembly companies during the trimming of
redundant edge strips in the process of module encapsulation. Tedlar
polyester tedlar (“TPT"), a solar panel material, is also produced by
our module assembly companies during the trimming of redundant
edge strips in the course of module encapsulation, involving
materials such as polyvinylidene fluoride and PMMA copolymers,
polyethylene terephthalate and tetrafluoroethylene/vinyl ester
copolymers. Waste oil is a result of the replacement of air
compressor lubricants, in particular during the ingot pulling process.
Spent activated carbon and waste filter cotton are used in
replacement of off-gas treatment systems, while waste plastic
buckets are used in the glue filling process of the production line.
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2020 2019
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4.8 tonnesf 5.3 tonneslig
0.6 tonnesHif 0.5 tonnesMg
139.3 tonnesMHf 209.0 tonnesMg
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About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BARNIRE - @ RERWmE

Non-hazardous wastes

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group mainly included:

BERREY

AREMEANEERERVNIERRE

2020
—E=-®

2019
—ZE—N

Waste steel wire & i 43
Packaging waste E& B3
Plastic waste %8} & &

Waste steel wire is the major consumable used for cutting during the
wafer slicing process, and the waste materials left behind are
recovered by professional recycling companies. The Group's four
major production operations all involve packaging equipment, raw
materials, auxiliary raw materials and so forth, which produce paper,
wood and plastic packaging waste, among others. Plastic waste is
produced during plastic packaging in the production process.

Prevention of emissions

We pursue to utilize energy efficiently and take this as the primary
approach to reducing greenhouse gas emissions. In order to
continuously improve energy performance and lower carbon
footprint, we have implemented various energy-saving as well as
emission and waste reduction measures such as the air compressor
frequency conversion transformation and air compressor heat
recovery projects. Frequency conversion transformation of air
compressors can ensure not only the effective controls of frequency
conversion in air compressors but also real-time monitoring of
pressure conditions in production systems, therefore saving energy
while coping with systems’ energy demands. This can save us
approximately RMB400,000 on electricity fee per year. Likewise, the
air compressor heat recovery project can ensure effective recovery of
heat energy and reduce energy use by recovering approximately
24,000 tonnes of hot water every year.

Reduction of hazardous wastes and
non-hazardous wastes

The Group has specially set up the Environmental and Safety
Department for monitoring and administering its various eco-friendly
facilities to ensure compliance with national standards for pollutant
and waste emissions. All wastes shall be minimized, reused and
recycled before the last resort of disposal. As for the hazardous
wastes generated during the production process, industry
professionals are engaged to handle their recovery and transposition,
whereas non-hazardous wastes are sold to external parties to
minimise disposal volume.

12.2 tonneslg
169.3 tonnesM
160.5 tonnesM

13.5 tonnesH
239.9 tonnesM§
150.2 tonnesh
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About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BARNIRE - @ MERWmE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

The Group strictly executes the policies, regulations and standards on
energy conservation provided by national, local and industrial
authorities, such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Energy Conservation (F#EARKEFMEIELEERE). In order to
achieve better efficiency of resources, the Group emphasizes on
saving energy, water, materials and land, comprehensive use of
resources, and development of circular economy. The Group also
facilitates its sustainable development with better management
measures, an enhanced awareness of saving resources, and efficient
and cyclic use of resources. It strictly manages its use of resources to
ensure reasonable use of resources in the course of operation and
avoid waste. Upon assessment by our Environmental and Safety
Department, there is no significant impact brought by the Group’s
environmental and natural resource use. The Group is active in
practicing the concept of green development and promoting the
green development of the production chain.

Electricity

In 2020, electricity consumption of the Group totaled 402,633 MWh
(2019: 344,648 MWh). Electricity consumption of our four major
production operations is detailed below:

BHEA2 : &R{E

AEBRBATEHER A RITERBRTOE
BER EMRER flmhEARKMBEES L
BERE) REBESWNERRGD  AEBEZFRMN
ERHIRETIR ~ FJK - MRt A L1 - BRZ2E N A UK
FREERR AEETEABSCEEREE 12
SEHENEREH BRNSURBERMA - AR
EHUKEER ASEBRREEERER  #
RELEBRETPABERAER BRELEER-
REMNERRERZ2HMAFHE  AERENIRER
RRARERERLBEAYE -AEBEEBZEE
HREBRRBS HEPLEERNGEER-

B H
AEEENIR T _TFREEE B402,633KE
B (—Z— N 344,648k FLBE) - A X BAER
MESEMNT

2020 2019

—E_E —E—A
Approximate Approximate
Power average Power average
consumption consumption consumption consumption
(MWh) (kWh/unit) (MWh) (kWh/unit)
BREEE FHEED BEEHEE FHEED
(Jk B Bs) (TR E) (JKFLBE) (FR®,BAI)
Ingots & 286,801 26.35/kg A T 249,191 25.58/kgA fr
Wafers &t 29,369 0.12/piece & 26,388 0.12/piece ¥
Modules #8 {F 78,359 29.84/kWT K 46,926 28.0/kWF F,
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About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BARNIRE - @ RERWmE

Water

We are committed to using water in a responsible manner and have
developed relevant strategies to reduce raw water consumption and
meanwhile to review the relevant processes and perform regular
monitoring. The Group’s production plants use municipal water as
their primary water source. The use of water is regulated in
accordance with the prevailing energy management rules.
Management of second-tier energy consumption is rationalized and
measuring devices are installed to save water. The Group had no
issue in sourcing water during the year. Concentrated water
produced by ultrapure water equipment for production purpose is
reused, with the annual reuse volume reaching 120,000 tonnes. Both
ultrapure water production techniques and equipment are refined to
increase pure water output and reduce consumption of raw water.
During the year, the Group consumed a total of 1,379,181 tonnes
(2019: 1,774,814 tonnes) of raw water. Water consumption density
was 273.2 tonnes/MW (2019: 439.4 tonnes/MW).

Packing material

The main packaging material consumed by the Group is carton
boxes. These are in line with main customers’ standard packaging
requirements. The total weight of carton boxes used in 2019 was
approximately 1,763 tonnes (2019: approximately 3,108 tonnes).
Packaging material consumption density is 0.35 tonnes/MW (2019:
0.75 tonnes/MW).

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

There is no material impact to the environment and natural
resources from our operation activities, yet to minimise the
aforementioned impact on the environment from our business
operations, the Group implements measures for environmental
protection, including using energy-efficient equipment to achieve
additional energy savings and reduce waste. To reduce energy use,
circulating water instead of coal boiler is used to provide heating in
winter seasons. Further, sewage treatment stations, acid mist
treatment towers, purification towers and so on have been
developed to achieve environmental sustainability. In future, we will
continuously contribute to environmental protection and strive for a
greener environment, in an effort to fulfill our duties as part of a
sharing community.

7K
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RERVEERKE RANBRIEH@6B1E T8
EH - EEEERMERKREIBSERMERAE KK
HkMEREBEERBRERERERT  TE LA
BEEIR MEFEER BAAK XREBERFR
SRERXKENLAELETMNMEE - U REER
BOKEEEENRKETER FO0/A2
120,000 « SR EBAKEE T B RKZE  IRE4D
KEH BREFRKERAE - AEERFREREKE
FAEA1,379,1810E (ZF — 7, : 1,774,8141F) ©
FEOKZRE B273.20 /K FL(ZZF — 1 : 439.4
JKE) o

BEYH
AEEZHEHENBEDBEZARE FAEE
BEEMNEEREE R - T NFUBREFEANH
EWMRE AEEN,763ME(—F — 1 £3,108
WE) - EFRAMBEYRZE A0 KEL(ZF
— 10750 K F) e

BHA3: BERXALR

BANZ2EEHTEHREMBEARERENEX
FE O BRREMAXBKLZEHRFERNTE
AEEETRREN  BREASERUERE
E—FEHERE RAEERRER  AEENL
ZHMY EE AR RERE  MEMBRERK-
AN B RIS KB U - BX 75 Ba HE 45 A%
EHEE NEBRENAFEZER -RPBRS
SUEBINNERERE AENERENZEN
RS BITHRMAERARLEEHER —DFHNEME -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 %%k 69

s
' &

e o



AV AT A
"4 YA N
AYVAY 4

-]
-

A Y4

About Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BARNIRE - @ MERWmE

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Climate change is undoubtedly a challenge facing by various
industries. In order to better manage the impacts that climate
change brings to the Group’s business, we have set out a series of
countermeasures. Extreme weather may cause shortage in water and
electricity supply. Utilisation of the recycling water from the preset
sewage station can secure water supply temporarily, in addition,
backup generators together with fuel are prepared to ensure
emergency power supply in the event of electricity shortage. In order
to mitigate the impact of natural disasters such as typhoons or
floods, facilities with wind resistance materials were designed with
reference to the historical typhoon levels, in addition, flood
protection facilities were installed. Furthermore, to avoid staff
working during periods of high temperature or heavy snow,
operation hours will be adjusted flexibly according to the weather.
Cooling and cold-resisting facilities are also available in the
production plant.

Social
Employment and Labour Practices
Aspect B1: Employment

Employees are the important value of our Group. In 2020, the
Group has complied with all relevant labour laws and regulations in
respective countries and regions. The Group offers competitive
remuneration, promotional opportunities, compensation and benefit
packages to attract and retain talents. Salaries are reviewed regularly
in reference to performance appraisals and market trends.

All employments are based on personal capabilities and qualifications
regardless of race, religion, sex, age, national origin, citizenship or
any other grounds of discrimination. The Group strictly prohibits
discrimination among the employees in all business operations and
also provides equal opportunity to all employees. Stringent and
cautious measures such as training have been implemented by our
human resources department in order to prevent cases of
discrimination.
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Total number of employees by age group IEFBAEFE 5 R IE S 48 2

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 3,890 R-_ZTE-_ZEHF+_-_A=+—H AEEHAEEITA
employees as categorized below: H A3,890A  BTHKBERDAT :

Gender 145 Employment type Age group ik
(S

62

0
1,204
1,549
1,335

= Aged under 25 (25554 )
Aged 26-35 (26-357%)
Aged 36-45 (36-457%)
Female (%) Part-time (&%) = Aged 46-55 (46-5573%)
m Aged 56 or above (565% &% A _E)

= Male (8) = Full-time (2 5%)

Employment turnover rate Employment turnover rate
by gender by age group
RUERIEID B TRAKL X RFREID BT MK E
1%

5%
25% 20%
43%

= Aged under 25 (25554 T)
= Male () Aged 26-35 (26-357%)
Female (40) Aged 36-45 (36-457%)
= Aged 46-55 (46-557%)
m Aged 56 or above (56585 A )
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
respective countries, especially those related to its production
processes. A series of health and safety policies is in place to ensure
the overall safety of our working environment.

Work safety management system

All employees strictly comply with all the health and safety codes
and manuals of their production processes and departments. New
join employees were required to have three-level safety training,
occupational health and safety training and medical examination
before onboarding. The Group also conducted regular inspections at
its production plants and hired qualified professionals to identity the
factors that may cause occupational hazard in work environment.
Warning signs regarding occupational hazard were post at prominent
positions within the working area to improve the safety level within
the plants. Labour protective equipment such as safety shoes, masks,
acid-proof gloves and boots, earplugs, insulating gloves and boots
were provided to employees for work. In addition, physical
examinations related to occupational hazard were provided to
employees who were exposed to occupational hazards each year. No
cases of work-related fatality occurred during the past three years
ended 31 December 2020. However, there were 12 employees
involved in work injury and lost 1,055 workings days in 2020.
During the year, the Group did not have any non-compliance with
any laws and regulations in respect of employees’ health and safety.

Measures in response to COVID-19

At the time of the outbreak of epidemic, the group has set up an
epidemic prevention and control leading group and published
working guidelines regarding epidemic prevention and control to all
employees according to relevant guidance published by government.
The epidemic situation was closely monitored by the epidemic
prevention and control leading group, all employees were required to
wear mask at work and wash hands frequently. Measures such as
regular disinfection within working environment, daily temperature
monitoring of employees and restriction on visit from outsiders were
strictly followed. During the period of the epidemic, work from home
measures were applied where possible and closed-off management
to employee in plants is carried out. Staff at all levels conscientiously
follow the epidemic prevention and control policy to ensure the
physical and mental health of all employees.
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

Training and development always serve as the key factors for
business success. The Group has provided various tailor-made
training programs covering corporate culture, occupational safety,
laws and regulations, professional skills and other aspects for
employees from different departments to cope with their business
needs. The training programs are evaluated regularly to review the
effectiveness and compared to the business needs. The Group also
updates its employees from time to time on the latest information of
the industry and laws and regulations which is essential to the
Group’s operations and their job responsibilities.

Percentage of employees trained
by gender

RIERIBIDXIREBA D

= Male (58)

Female (%)

Information on average training hours completed per employee is set
out below:

EmB3 : R KIEII

BIlhBER-—ESEBERINERER - A5E
RAAAFAEEESRATRNEITE - BE
EEXE - BELRE ARER  BRFEREM
THEABMNEEBTE - BT HFMAEIE
MR YEREBFTETHEYL AEBETFA
KRARBRHEAEEHEEREBEEREEN
RMITRREEEREE -

Percentage of employees trained

R AR

by employee type
ENnXIEEADLL

1%
6%

= Senior mangement (5 4 & 1% &)
Middle management ({4 & 12 [E)
= Other employees (—#& & T)

BETHRMFAENTFHZIEBER2IAREAT

Number of
Average employee
training hour trained
T2 HIRE 2 A"
By gender #Z £ 3

Male 55 76 hours /JNEF 1,294
Female % 95 hours /JNEF 663

By employee category 37 B 4}
Senior management = % & 12 /g 46 hours /N 12
Middle management A & & 12 [E 66 hours /JNEF 123
Other employees —f& & T 84 hours /JNE§ 1,822
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards
Prevention of Child labour or forced labour

The Group has complied with all relevant local labour laws and
regulations in respective countries. In PRC, the Group regularly keeps
track of the latest laws and regulations such as the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China (% AR £ FE 4 &)%) and the Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (% A R H£ A E &
&) & [AJ%). The Group strictly prohibits the use of child or forced
labour in its business operations. It is clearly stated in the application
conditions that child labor and forced labor are prohibited. Identity
verification and qualification review of applicant are strictly carried
out during the recruitment process. Any information indicating
violation of employment laws or standards is found after
recruitment, the labor relationship will be terminated immediately to
protect the rights and interests of both parties.

Operating Practices
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to effectively managing its supply chain and
providing customers with premium products and services, in an
effort to meet and even exceed customers’ expectations. When
purchasing products and services, the Group complies with all
applicable environmental laws, regulations and rules. Comprehensive
assessment of suppliers is performed on an ad hoc basis to
benchmark against customers’ expectations of product quality. Most
of the key suppliers maintain a close and long-term partnership with
the Group. During the year, the Group maintained good and stable
relationships with its suppliers.

Supply chain management mechanism

In accordance with supplier management control procedures, the
Group has clear regulations on engaging new suppliers and the
evaluating existing suppliers. Before engaging with a new supplier,
the Group will review the company information provided by the
potential supplier, including but not limited to business license,
business and product information, production capacity, main
customer groups, testing equipment, customer complaint managing
procedures, material safety data sheet (MSDS), environmental safety
related qualifications and other materials. After that, technicians and
environmental and safety personnel will conduct site visit of the
potential supplier, to better understand the management system of
the factory and operation, and to verify the accuracy and
completeness of the information provided previously.
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The Group also conducts regular factory inspections and
performance evaluation of existing suppliers. Once a supplier is
found to have any improper behavior in the production process or
fails to meet the performance standards of the Group, the Group
will issue a warning to the supplier, and if the supplier does not
make any remedy measures in time, its supplier qualification will be
cancelled.

Actively searching for sustainable suppliers

The Group concerned about the impact that supply chain brings to
the environmental and occupational health and safety aspects. The
materials provided by suppliers and the process of transporting these
materials can directly affect the environmental, health and safety of
the Group’s production processes and products. There are clauses on
environmental requirements in the contract with the supplier, and
supplier is also encouraged to train its employees on the relevant
content. Suppliers with environmental related certificates issued by
the local government would be our prior choice.

Number of major suppliers by geographical locations during the year
is set out below:

AEEHRAHERTEENETRBRIEER
B BETARSNER HERKER

EEEARFHEECMAET AR REEIAEE
MAERIRE AKERAHERELES  5H#

EERALRBERSIEEHERER

o

BEZH A A ER R
AEEHNHERAREHRE BEXEELS
ERMFERTRI HEBEHROYHLESR
PMHOBEEERTEREBLEERRENEMW
RRE -RELZ: SAHEFNARTHEHIRE
ERMGHR THBHERREBATEE TE
T RETTELEEREGE MBI ERN R
AFEEMHER -

AEgZwRE NI EHERBRBNOT

Number of

supplier

HEREE

Mainland China 168
United States 3= [ 8
Europe B 1
Japan H A& 1
178
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

The quality of products is the important key to customers’ loyalty.
The Group performs high quality controls in every production
operation. Procedures and policies are established to govern all sorts
of claims and complaints. If the Group receives any claims or
complaints regarding its products and services, it will conduct
investigation in order to provide immediate and appropriate
responses to customers. This strengthens product quality and
consequently enables us to stay competitive in the market.

Customer service and complaints management

In order to improve customer satisfaction, the Group attaches great
importance to customer feedback and complaints. If any complaint is
received, the Group will endeavor to take timely action to resolve
the problem and take effective corrective measures. The Quality
Management Department will also conduct regular discussions and
reviews to prevent the same type of incident from happening again.
In this reporting year, there were no cases of recalling sold or
shipped products due to safety and health reasons. A total of 355
complaints about products and services were received throughout
the year, most of which were minor defects or damage to the goods
during transportation, and a small number of them were caused by
customers not installing in accordance with the installation
requirements. The complaints during the year have been
communicated well with customers and replaced products for
customers.

Quality control

The Group’s quality control department conducts routine quality
inspections on products to ensure that the manufactured products
meet the requirements, technical specifications and quality standards
set by customers. When receiving a customer’s request for the return
and exchange of defective products, the quality control department
will first arrange re-inspection of the returned defective products and
make corresponding measures based on the cause of the defective
products.

Protection of intellectual property

The Group recognises intellectual property as an important asset and
strictly follows relevant laws and regulations such as the “Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. The Group adopts a zero-tolerance
attitude towards any behavior that may infringe the intellectual
property rights of third parties. Also, the Group raises employees’
awareness of intellectual property protection through internal
publicity and employee training from time to time.
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Privacy protection

In order to maintain mutual trust with our customers, the Group
recognises the importance of privacy protection of individuals and
business data. It is the Group’s policy that, when handling
confidential and sensitive information, only authorised staff of the
relevant departments are allowed to collect, access and handle such
information. All employees are prohibited from making copies or
disclosing any form of confidential information to third parties
without prior approval from management or clients.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to achieving the highest possible standards
of openness and integrity. Hence, it strictly implements various
operating procedures and codes of conduct to regulate the work
ethic of the Group's staff. In order to prevent corruption from
happening, the group has included a clause in the transaction
contract, stating that the supplier shall not provide any direct or
indirect benefits to the Group in any form for any reason. If the
supplier is found to be in violation of this regulation, its supplier’s
qualification will be cancelled immediately on the grounds that the
supplier has adopted unfair competition ways of business. The group
also requires suppliers, construction units and relevant persons in
charge of the project to sign an integrity declaration, and employees
are required to declare potential conflicts of interest. During the
year, the group also conducted trainings on financial security and
anti-corruption for the department heads of the company, and
organised visits to prisons to have sharing on integrity and anti-
corruption by prisoners. Further, a whistle-blowing policy is also in
place to minimise the risk of fraudulent acts or criminal offences
occurring in the workplace. During the year, the Group did not find
any cases in breach of the relevant laws and regulations relating to
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.
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Community
Aspect B8: Community Investment

Over the years, the Group has focused on community activities and
placed great emphasis on both physical and mental health of
employees. The Group continuously organizes activities such as
badminton, billiards, basketball and table tennis, to enrich
employees’ health and cultural life and building a good corporate
culture. The Group also shows its concerns to community investment
for the elderly and social welfare. During the reporting period, it
donated approximately RMB150,000 to support 80 elderly people in
Taihe District, Linghe District and Guta District of Jinzhou City. In
addition, RMB50,000 was used to purchase safflower seed oil and
flour produced in impoverished areas in Xinjiang to the elderly.

Unfortunately, in order to reduce unnecessary social activities during
the epidemic, the Group was unable to organise community activities
and volunteer services as we used to. Apart from taking anti-
epidemic measures and not placing extra burden on medical staff,
the Group donated 1,537 sets of purified suits and 512 sets of
medical goggles to National Health Commission of Jinzhou, Third
Affiliated Hospital of Jinzhou Medical University and Wuhan
Leishenshan Hospital, and wish to show our support and respect to
the medical staff.

The Group will continue to keep track on the policies and
development of the community, share love and care with
disadvantaged groups and those in need, and be a socially
responsible enterprise.
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To the shareholders of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young
22nd Floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 86 to 216 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
PERVE IS

Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
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accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

HRETER

W BERRERE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of RMB1,513,287,000, which accounted for
a significant portion of the Group’s assets.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group suffered loss in year 2020
and there was an impairment indicator for property, plant
and equipment of these subsidiaries. Management
performed impairment test accordingly by comparing the
recoverable amounts based on the value-in-use calculation
of the cash-generating units that the property, plant and
equipment belong to with the carrying amounts of the
identified cash-generating units as at 31 December 2020
and did not recognise impairment loss during this year.
Estimating the recoverable amounts requires significant
management judgements and estimates including future
sales, cost of inventories sold and the discount rates applied
to these forecasted future cash flows.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (continued)
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In addition to the above impairment test, due to the
discontinued production of photovoltaic solar cells according
to the revised group business strategy for the segment of
manufacture and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cell,
management determined the recoverable amounts based on
the fair value less costs of disposal for certain property,
plant and equipment of the only photovoltaic solar cells
production subsidiary of the Group. As a result,
management assessed the recoverable amounts of those
assets were minimal and a full impairment provision of
RMB68,587,000 was provided.

The accounting policies and disclosure of the impairment
are included in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting
policies”, note 3 “Significant accounting judgements and
estimates” and note 14 “Property, plant and equipment” to
the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We evaluated management’s assessment on the impairment
indicators for property, plant and equipment, and
management’s identification of cash-generating units.

We compared management’s valuation methodology, that is,
value-in-use calculation based on future discounted cash
flows, to industry practice and assessed the key assumptions
used, such as estimates of future sales and cost of
inventories sold by analysing the historical accuracy of
management’s estimates, and discount rates by comparing
them to external industry outlook reports. In addition, we
involved our valuation specialists to assist us with assessing
the valuation methodology and the discount rates.

We evaluated the sensitivity of the significant assumptions
described above by assessing the changes to the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs resulting from possible changes in
these assumptions, both individually and in the aggregate.

We observed the status of discontinued production line,
inquired senior management about the disposal plans and
understood the economic rationale underlying the change of
business strategy.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
included in the consolidated financial statements regarding
the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment.
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Key audit matters (continued) BREEITEE®

Key audit matter BEETER

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets JEWE ZHIARE R EEZ R EEE

The amount of trade receivables and contract assets BEWEFRAREEMEBEEENRA - RZZ=
accounted for a significant portion of the Group’s assets. As ZF+ — A E\‘f‘ H BERERARERAEEMEREEER
at 31 December 2020, the totalling book value and the J& B £ & &5t 9 5 & A K #1,372,569,0007T f1 A & &
impairment provision were RMB1,372,569,000 and 131,316,0007T °

RMB131,316,000 for trade receivables and contract assets.

The Group applied the simplified approach to determine the 78 Bl 5% /A f§ b 75 7 # 5 & Y Bk SN & A A 22 1O JRU(E E 6
provision and recognised lifetime expected losses for trade FIFEFGREHBHIEL - AEBEERBFEAFHAMUBELER -
receivables and contract assets. The Group has established a ERELEBEARBEREREFPNMSKENSEBRE P
provision matrix that is based on the ageing of balances for HRIBREe MY 7 — AR EBE - ko BEEZ B 7 ATME
groupings of various customers with similar loss patterns, 115 8 B %77 5 A 0 A B B8 A% A AR O 0O TEOR) o 4 R TR A
repayment histories, and existing customer-specific and EEBEFTZEEEEL B AHE MG -

market conditions. In addition, management considered
forward-looking information, including the forecast of
industry situation and overall economic conditions.
Estimating the expected credit loss requires significant
management judgements and estimates.

The accounting policies and disclosure of the impairment B RIFBEEEN ST RE B BN B RE F W E2.4
are included in note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting [EEZEFEEME] - MIE3[E R EHERT R HET] KM
policies”, note 3 “Significant accounting judgements and 23[EWZE ZHER BUWEENAHNEE] -

estimates”, note 23 “Trade, bills receivables and contract

assets” to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter BN ET N NEEBRETEE

We assessed management's processes and controls relating BB THREEBHEEES  BREFWZTREUR
to the estimation of the expected credit loss by obtaining an CEREWERFNAREENTBEHRERBLANRENBEEA
understanding of the design, implementation and operation ZP3EH| AR A - B FIRE  FEEEEHBHEREX
of key internal controls over the credit control, the HEBBMEEMEGE®R KRMEETEESwmEBTE
receivables collection process and the process of recording BWEFREAENEEEHERBLABELE S RO MGER -
expected credit loss for trade receivables and contract

assets. We discussed with management on the estimation

involved in determining the expected credit loss allowance

regarding trade receivables and contract assets.

We tested the arithmetic accuracy of the provision matrix of HFAIH TEEE AT EBHERBRMEBOELF X
simplified approach prepared by management to calculate HIEEBMAMEMERME - MM BBRETEBFERAN
the expected credit losses. We also assessed management's EUIERFF(EE R EH B R EFE SO MET - B 7FMEONH 8
estimates on loss allowance by examining the information XA B RARERREFERELHERENE  THERE
used by management, including testing the accuracy of the RIERIEMHEEFHRE THETEKAE - I B BB A
ageing report and repayment histories by vouching a sample ZB{TE R SHMEEITLLE - AT AEB BRI EEMAH
of items with the relevant underlying documentation; and  FIBE {5 8 - B 2017 30K 0 A2 B2 48 ik L A 808) -
evaluating whether the estimated loss rates were adjusted

based on forward-looking information. In addition, we

evaluated the forward-looking information which the Group

used to calibrate the matrix, such as the forecast of industry

situation and overall economic conditions by comparing

them to external industry outlook reports.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures EFITRaTfh T EBEH BHAMEIKRE ZERNE R EERBE
included in the consolidated financial statements regarding ERAHMEREFORBENT DM -

the impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets.
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Ka Yan, Augustine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021

Vﬁﬁﬁ%*%
BE

BB |mRAEN

ﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁﬁ%m%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ &R A
WE’@%ﬁﬁ'M&ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ% an
FRRMEBERZMER -

. HEEENERAEB BN K EAER
R Lﬁmﬁ-_h VAR 1 45 6 BF 15 3R
REXBR -BMAEEREFEANTA

EBRAT HMAFAERALEEHEA

£ o
BREMEERN AMEEZEER BT RTEM
E:THE BHELH EAFEMERS  8FERM

FEZ AT BRI A AR 4 ] A (R B KRB

HMERAEZZEGRXBH SHARMEITE
FRBYMNERERERENR  LHMFIEBE
BARAEMERAREFTERMBILENME
BEMEMEER UREBEBANBRT  SERE
% T £% B [ #6845 76 o

HHBEZZBEBBHNERT  RIMEEHMLSE
AHARGEEMBRRNETRRERZ  AME
FX A B2 2 5t F IR o P A% BUED L E Lk
BH BRIFEBERTAFAABRESLER
FEBHFINERT MRS EBEMERMR
EPEBRERERNAERRBEBEENAR
e BFRAETERERSETBBZER -

HAABYIRBMBENBRITEEARARER
fiR e

RAEFE BB

HEETAD

BB

—E-—%®=ZH=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3§ 85

s

r' &

e o



AV LAY AN Y AN A
"AVANAY AY .
AVAY 4

y

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEERK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ=F
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R 5II&)

—EE+-A=t+—HLEEFE

2020 2019
—B-EF —NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M 5E AR® Tt ARET T
Revenue U &= 5 6,051,956 4,425,552
Cost of sales & AR (5,466,104) (4,084,184)
Gross profit ER 585,852 341,368
Other income and gains, net HEag A KWz FEE 6 77,710 15,970
Selling and distribution expenses HERDEAX (136,331) (84,583)
Administrative expenses ITHR X (452,827) (409,458)
Impairment losses on financial and W RENEERE  F58
contract assets, net 7 (38,598) (5,262)
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BEREERE
equipment 7,14 (68,587) (15,167)
Impairment losses on prepayment TS FRIE R E 1B K 7 — (26,975)
Operating loss KEEE (32,781) (184,107)
Share of losses of associates EAGEE DA B8 (157) (1,330)
Impairment of an associate i RN R = A=) — (4,104)
Other investment loss H s &R A — (379)
Finance costs RPN 8 (133,156) (123,130)
Loss before tax BB ATES 1B 7 (166,094) (313,050)
Income tax expense Fristi& M 11 (30,273) (41,308)
Loss for the year FEBHE (196,367) (354,358)
Attributable to: DT AL
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEEA (215,648) (355,492)
Non-controlling interests FE 28 ) 1% 2 19,281 1,134
Loss for the year FEBE (196,367) (354,358)
Basic and diluted loss per share ARmlEBREREAARE
attributable to ordinary equity holders BREAREEERE
of the Company (RMB cents) (AR®EH) 13 (6.82) (11.07)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ=F
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R %I&)

—EFE+ A=+ —HLEFE

2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBEF T
Loss for the year FEFE (196,367) (354,358)
Other comprehensive loss FEHMZEER
Other comprehensive income that may be ARBBEET S EEERY
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent W s
periods:
- Exchange differences on translation of - BREBINEBRELEN
foreign operations ME & =58 32,323 (83)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, FEXEBRARH
after tax (MR ER) (164,044) (354,441)
Attributable to: BT AL HEA:
Equity holders of the Company ZIN/NIS R SR WN (183,325) (355,575)
Non-controlling interests FE 2 ) 10 2 19,281 1,134
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHEBERAR (164,044) (354,441)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B IR R 3R

At 31 December2020 R-—ZT-_ZTF+_-_HF=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R 5II&)

2020 2019
—E_EFE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T Tt AR T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BERZHE 14 1,513,287 1,407,159
Long term prepayments and R BATE 1~ 3R I8 R A At FE Uk IE
other receivables 27,566 29,447
Goodwill G 16 — —
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 192,449 151,136
Investments in associates R E RNAMIRE 19 — 157
Equity investments designated URARBEFZHEZHTA
at fair value through EiraamnEmtE
other comprehensive income 20 190 1,800
Deferred tax assets EER IR E E 21 9,662 16,573
Total non-current assets Ik RBEEHLRE 1,743,154 1,606,272
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 22 435,087 394,110
Trade, bills receivables and EWE SHER  BREER
contract assets BHEE 23 1,927,866 1,274,917
Prepayments, other receivables TR FRIE  H i FE R IE R
and other assets HEmEE 24 353,163 350,476
Current tax recoverable BN ER A] U 0] % 1B 68 3,360
Pledged deposits [REZEHREE 25 686,100 403,191
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEZED 26 456,265 396,854
Total current assets REBEEHASE 3,858,549 2,822,908
Current liabilities REBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings AFEEE 27 2,475,519 1,680,914
Trade and bills payables ENEZERRER 28 2,011,213 1,502,624
Other payables and accruals Hib ERIE R E X 29 262,323 68,736
Contract liabilities AR AR 30 61,318 265,979
Current tax payable BV B pE < B 18 3,379 10,476
Provision for inventory purchase FEBERERE
commitments 31 = 49,687
Current portion of lease liabilities —FRIEHMEERE 17 8,564 376
Total current liabilities REBEEERE 4,822,316 3,578,792
Net current liabilities RBAETE (963,767) (755,884)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERARBERS 779,387 850,388
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e IR

At 31 December2020 A-Z-_FTH+_-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R#51/1E)

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E—-nF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E AR® T AR T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 27 4,060 129,325
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 21 3,777 2,564
Deferred income IR IE WA 32 239,281 134,509
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 40,786 1,012
Other non-current liabilities HtERBEE 31 151,487 127,412
Total non-current liabilities RBEELAE 439,391 394,822
Net assets EEFE 339,996 455,566
Equity E=R
Equity attributable to equity AARERFEAELESR
holders of the Company
Share capital % 7 34 270,867 276,727
Reserves 1 35 (130,312) 156,967
140,555 433,694
Non-controlling interests GRS 199,441 21,872
Total equity ERAE 339,996 455,566

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3§

89



AY A Y AN Y
"AVARRAY A
AVAY 4

L

Y

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

me

L I E:

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_TFE+_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R 5II&)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRRERRELER
General Non-
Share Share reserve Capital ~ Exchange Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium fund reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Rx RGEE -REEE  EXRE  ERBE  HHEE  ZHER B3 FBGMER BHAR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMT:
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-7E-B-H 206,721 1,731,645 222390 42,768 (50,765) (64,603)  (1,442,376) 15,726 92,265 807,991
{Loss)fprofit for the year FE(BR)/FE - - - - - - (35549) (355492 1134 (354359)
Other comprehensive (loss) EREN2E
incore for the year: (EB)/FlE:
Exchange diferences BENEREN
related to foreign DEEE
operations - - - - (83) - - (83) - (83)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ EE2E(ER)/
income for the year Lg% - - - - 83) —  (35549)  (355,579) 1134 (354441)
Capital contribution from FEFIERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - 73,543 - 73,543 (71,527) 2016
Appropriation to reserves ARERE - - 5977 - - - (5.977) - - -
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-nf
tZB=1-H 206,721 1,731,645 228,367 42,768 (50,848) 8880 (1803845 433,69 21872 455,566
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-E5-H-H 26,721 1,731,645 228,367 42,768 (50,848) 8,880 (1,803,845 433,69 21872 455,566
(Loss)profit for the year EE(BE) /7R = = = = = —  (M5648)  (215648) 19281 (196,367)
Other comprehensive ([oss)/ FRENZE
income for the year: (B8)/HA:
Exchange differences BENEREY
related to foreign DEEE
operations = = = = 32383 = = 32383 = 32383
Total comprehensive (loss)/ ERRE(EE)/
income for the year Jaeg = = = = 3233 — (2568 (183328 19281 (164044)
Acquisition of a subsidiary BE-ANELA
(note 36) (¥3360) = = = = = = = S| L]
Capital contrbution from non-~~ FEE B EZ 1A
controlling interests = = = = = = = = 2,702 2,702
Dividends paid to FERRRORS A
non-controlling
shareholders = = = = = = = = (29932) (29,932)
Taiwan Depository Receipt EENTESERTERE
(“TDR") shares (Byt34)
repurchased and cancelled
(note 34) (5,860) (5,611) = = = = = (11.471) = (11.471)
Acquisition of non-controlling W H 1t ER
nterests - - - - - (73,602) (24,141) (98,343) 91,221 (1,116)
Appropriation to reserves AERE — = 7,602 = — - (7.602) - - -
As at 31 December 2020 NZB-%f
TZA=1-H 270867  1,726,034*  235969* 42,768 (18525 (64722)* (2,051,836)* 140,555 199,441 339,99
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated deficit of  * ZERERNGEMBRARTHOEHHEEEE
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SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR

in the

156,967,0007T) °

A R #130,312,0007C (20194 : R B ABH AR



A N5 F a4y ¥ .
"AY A YA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
~ = B
mERERER
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-—T-_TFE+_-_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R %I&)
2020 2019
—EEE —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E AR T Tt AR T
Cash flows from operating activities K& THEESHE
Loss before tax B 7 A& 1B (166,094) (313,050)
Adjustments for: FEE=
Depreciation and amortisation EREE 7(c) 308,941 239,046
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WELZE
plant and equipment K &5 18 7(c) 22,660 128,879
Impairment loss on disposal of an S A A R AR E B X
associate = 4,104
Investment loss from disposal of HEUNAREBEHEAEE
equity investments designated at Bat A H iR S W 6y 1
fair value through other wREANKREEE
comprehensive income = 379
Share of losses of associates JFE 1 B & N RS 18 157 1,330
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) 7 &MU, (MO [
of inventories 22(b) 5,185 (27,005)
Impairment losses on trade ERESERRENEE
receivables and contract assets BB KIE R 23 38,598 5,262
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BEREERE
equipment 7(c) 68,587 15,167
Impairment losses of prepayment BN BB R E B K = 26,975
Finance costs A& B A 8 133,156 123,130
Provision for warranties REEE 31 24,075 18,394
Interest income from bank deposits BIR1TF KB F B U A 6 (13,886) (11,740)
Gain on fair value remeasurement of ENAEREAREBEZ
an investment U = 7(c) (1,278) —
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 B3 18 5 28 (692) (9,412)
Changes in working capital: LiEEe¥E:
Increase/(decrease) in inventories &M/ ORD) 68,839 (19,737)
Increase in trade receivables, JEWE SRR - TER KIE -
prepayments, other receivables and Hab U BR SR R Kb B B
other assets 2N 206,042 68,482
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets AWNEEGEM R (131,239) 14,892
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B E SR E b e
payables RIBEORA) (45,414) 208,133
Increase/(decrease) in deferred IEIEY A A0, Cf )
income 71,856 (62,716)
Cash generated from operations RETEFMBERES 589,493 410,513
The PRC income tax paid TR B EMER (24,455) (370)
Withholding tax paid TAEMEH (1,499) —
Net cash generated from operating RETEMBRESFHE
activities 563,539 410,143
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-—T-_TFE+_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R#51/{8)

2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Cash flows from investing activities BREZTEBHEESHE
Payments for the purchase of property, FEEWE  BEMEZEZ
plant and equipment B R IE (218,876) (204,105)
Payment for the acquisition of right-of- HEEFAEEEX NAFAE
use assets (1,584) —
Investment in equity investment KRERAARBEFEAEES
designated at fair value through FFAEMERE KSR ER
other comprehensive income "E (31,292) (1,800)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of a g —FHMB RN FRE
subsidiary mA 2,990 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE BWEREE
plant and equipment Fr 5 5018 12,811 10,350
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEAREBEFZAEEF
investments designated at fair value ETAHMAR A W M
through other comprehensive income wE B RIE = 2,051
Interest received 2 UHF B 13,886 11,740
Net cash used in investing activities RETFEFMARSFHE (222,065) (181,764)
Cash flows from financing activities ®EZHRESHE
TDR shares repurchased R A EFLRE (12,120) —
Placement of pledged bank deposits BERFEEMBRITER (1,592,088) (1,000,371)
Release of pledged bank deposits R EERRITER 1,309,179 1,022,490
New bank loans and other loans RITERREMERFTEHRIE 2,613,226 1,573,108
Repayment of bank loans and other BERITERLEMER
loans (2,447,423) (1,553,326)
Principal portion of lease payments HENTNASHD (4,132) (1,021)
Capital contribution from FEPE G S A
non-controlling interests 2,702 1,601
Interest paid B AT AR (131,818) (123,130)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B A 3 12 i1 AR 3R 5 B AR R
shareholders (29,932) —
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEHFARESFE (292,406) (80,649)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-—T-_TFE+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R#51{&)

2020 2019

I = -

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
GEl =T NS

Net increase in cash and cash REeRBAESEEYEMFER
equivalents 49,068 147,730

Cash and cash equivalents at the FUBEERRLEEY

beginning of the year 396,854 239,712
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSBHNEETFHE

changes, net 10,343 9,412
Cash and cash equivalents at the FAREERASEEY

end of the year 26 456,265 396,854
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBEEBYHERKRIN

cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances REeERBITHEER 26 456,265 396,854
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R AR B R

31 December 2020 R=TE=TF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA A REEFIH)

Corporate and group information

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman. The
registered office of the Company is located at Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands.

The Group is a leading supplier of upstream and downstream
vertically integrated solar energy services.

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the
following four main businesses:

(@) the manufacture of, trading of and provision of processing
services for monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers;

(b) the manufacture and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar
cells;

(0

the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules; and

(d)

the construction and operating of photovoltaic power plants.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

REAREBEER

B RERBRAR(ARRA]  ER A
BARIGBIRNEE] ARG RE: 757)
RERFAERSIMKNIZERRAA - &
5 3% =2 B2 A2 72 Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands °

SEAETHEAEEAAREE
FER °

FiR 755 #9 28 5 44
FA AEETSREUTOEEIZER:

B/ RS BERE
£ R MIRG

(b) HEREEAGEERIEED
(0 HERBESENXRAMS: Rk

(d BEEREERKES-

BB LA HNER
ARALTENBAAOFELT

Proportion of ownership interest

94

FERRELA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest ~ Company subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
EREL/ B-H
RILERAH B/ iR/ ASEN  HALT WE
ARER REEsY B /BRER ERER K& LERE IERE EEFA
% % %

Jinzhou Rixin Silicon The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Materials Co., Ltd. 9 May 2007, capital of monocrystalline ingotsy AR EAAT
(“Rixin") Mainland China RMB190,000,000 wafers

ENARENHER hE HRESER BEREEERRE/BA
AR(THED Z5%+F AR 190,000,000

LANE
hEAE

Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Energy Co., Ltd. 15 December 2004, capital of photovoltaic modules ERELLH
("Yangguang’) Mainland China RMB1,151,565,479 HEREERRAN

BMBEERERRE  9E AMRESER
([B3%)) ks NRH1,151,565,47970

tZATIA
hERE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=E=TF+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

AEIREBER 3
EANBARBHER (&)

1. Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

& Far ¥ N\

4\’\

P ?H

fEgRELA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary ~Principal activities Legal form
HREL/ B
RIBERAH /R ASEN HELR il |
S REEHY BH/ER7EX BRER KE DAKE IEXB EERR
% % %
Jinzhou Youhua The PRC Registered and paid-in capital of 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Silicon Materials 12 September 2008, RMB320,000,000 monocrystalline ingots/  EREALE
Co., Ltd. Mainland China S REHER wafers
("Youhua m AR %320,000,0007 REREEERRE/ER
Silicon”) ik
BMEERTH ARTZR
BRAR HEAK
(hEE)
Shanghai Jingji The PRC Registered and paid-in capital of 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of  Limited liability company
Electronic 16 March 1998, 556,950,000 polysiicon and ERERRA
Materials Co., Mainland China AR REGER monacrystalline ingots/
Ltd. ("Jingji") q: 6,950,000% 1T wafers
LE&REFHH “MANE HEREESRER
BRART ZAtrA BRIEE /R
(1&#)) HEAK
Solar Technology Cayman Islands Authorised capital of 100 100 = Investment holding Limited liability company
Investment 15 December 2006 HK$400,000,000 of HK$0.10 RERR EREALH
(Cayman) Corp MeHE each and issed share capital
(sic”) ZRERE of HK$167,895,494
TZATER T2 £ 75400,000,0008 T
SREEIETR
BE1T0 A 167,895,494 10
Wealthy Rise Hong Kong HK$778,001 100 - 100 Trading of polysilicon and Limited liability company
Interational 21 June 2007 7780015 T monocystalline ingots/  EREFLE
Limited &% wafers/photovoltaic modules
EAARERAA “E54E EEZRHRERER/
~AZT-H Bh/RIREHS
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31 December 2020 R=E=_ZTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA REEFIH)

1. Corporate and group information (continved) 1. X F R EBE R (@)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB AR ER (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrERERLA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary ~Principal activities Legal form
HaL/ H-H
RIERAH e/ 2R/ AREN HRLT HE
NAER REERE BH/CRMER ERER BE OLHARE IERH EEFA
% % %
Jinzhou Yangguang Jinmao  The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading o~ Limited fiability company
Photovoltaic Technology 17 July 2009, of RMB140,000,000 monocrystalline wafers  BREALAF
Co., Ltd. (*finzhou Mainland China HRRESER HERERERER
Jinmao’) il AR 140,000,007
HME R BRH R “ERNELATLE
ERAF hERE
(M)
Solargiga Energy (Hong Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - Trading of polysilicon and Limited liability company
Kong) Company Limited 13 June 2008 BT monocrystalline ingotsy ~ EREFAF
BraR(ER)ERAA  FA wafers/photovoltaic modules
ZETN\EXATER BEEE/BR/Z8HR
BRiman
Silicon Solar Materials Hong Kong HKS1 100 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
Company Limited 26 November 2008 AT REZR EREALA
ABHENBERRA &
“E3RNE
Rz Y
Solargiga Energy (Qinghai)  The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 51 - 51 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Co,, Ltd. ("Qinghai") 31 December 2008, of RMB90,000,000 monocrystalling ingots EREAAF
BraR(58) ERAA Mainland China AMRESER HERERERKE
(580 hE AR #90,000,0007
It &%
+ZA=+-H
hERE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=E=TF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

1. Corporate and group information (continves) 1. R AR EBE F @)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BEEMNMERRHER (@)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrERERLA
Place and date of Authorised/
incorporation/ registered/ Group's Held Held
establishment and paid-in/ effective by the by a
Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary ~Principal activities Legal form
ML/ B-B
RILEREH e/ iR/ AREN HELT WE
NAEH R EH/BROEX BRER KE DAKE IEXR EERR
% % %
Sino Light Investments British Virgin Islands Authorized capital of 100 100 = Investment holding Limited liability company
Limited 2 December 2009 US§500,000 of US$0.001 REBR BRELLT
ERRTEE each and issued share
ZEENETZAZH capital of US$53,920
% A R500000% 7T
GREB0IETR
BETHRAS3920% T
You Xin Investments Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
Limited 29 July 2009 100,000 7% RAZR ERERRA
FEREBRAA Bk
S YIRS
tAZThE
Jinzhou Huachang The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 100 - 100 Manufacture and trading of ~ Limited liability company
Photovoltaic Technology 23 October 2006, of RMB130,000,000 solar cells ERERRA
Company Limited Mainland China HfRELER HEREEARHE
aMEERRA hEl AR 130,000,000
BRART ZEE5E
tA-t=H
HEXE
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FIRs R ML

31 December 2020

1. Corporate and group information (continued)

R-ZZE-_TF+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment and

Authorised/
registered/
paid-in/

(BRBBEBEN  UARKFIE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Gtk L]

Group's Held
effective by the

Held
by a

1. 2AREEBER®m
EANBARBNER (&)

Name of company place of operation issued capital interest  Company subsidiary ~Principal activities Legal form
HaL/ B-B
RIERAH e/ 2R/ AREN HRLT WE
NAER REERE EH/BROEX ERER KE DAKE IEXH EEFA
% % %

Jinzhou Xinyangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited fiability company
Photovoltaic 24 September 2007, capital of power plant BREALH
Application Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 BEERES
("Xinyangguang”) i AMRESER

BMHE L RER it &3 AR 100,000,000
BRAF(HER) NA-tImEA

hERE

Jinzhou Xinlin Solargiga The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar  Limited fiability company
Industrial and 26 June 2014, capital of modules EREAAF
Trading Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB20,000,000 BEAGEENRARHAS
("Jinzhou Xinlin") A HRRESEL

BHEHBELIEAR “E-mE AR 20,000,007
PEEHE ) ABZTAR

hERE

Jinzhou Jiuxin Solargiga The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar  Limited fiability company
Technology and 26 June 2014, capital of modules EREALA
Trading Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB20,000,000 BEAGEENRARHAS
(*Jinzhou Jiuxin”) E AMRESER

BNRERANERR “E-mE AR 20,000,007
Ra(snnzl) ABZTAR

hERE
Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and paid-in 100 - 100 Manufacture of monocrystalline - Limited liability company

Motech Renewable
Energy Co., Ltd
("Motech”)
BMNG R RH R
BRAR (KL
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26 October 2015,

Mainland China
HE

Z5-1f

+R-+5A

hERE

capital of

RIMB64,040,000
AMRESER

AR 864,040,000
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31 December 2020 R=E=TF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

1. Corporate and group information (continves) 1. R AR EBE F @)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

PEEL

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment and
place of operation
e/
RILERAH
REEHY

Authorised/
registered/
paid-in/
issued capital

EE/ R/
B4/2aiEs

BB R RN ER @

Proportion of ownership interest

itk bl

Group's Held Held

effective by the by a

interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities

AEEN  AXLAR WE

RRER kR LIRA
% % %

Legal form

IREH RERA

Jinzhou Chuanghui
New Energy Co. Ltd.
("Chuanghui”)

FHE s
ERAF(EE)

Jinzhou Yiyang
New Energy Co,, Ltd.
("Jinzhou Yiyang")
FNEBNERER
Ral(BMER])

Qujing Yangguang
Energy Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd.
("Qujing
Yangquang”)

Hi B 8 R R AT B
ERAR
(hEBL])

Liaoning Zhongdianke
Semiconductor
Material Co., Ltd.
("Liaoning
Semiconductor”)

EEREMTER
BRAA
(=521 1)

Jiangsu Yueyang
Photovaltaic
Technology Co.,
Ltd.* ("Jiangsu
Yueyang")

TEHEXRBRER
RE (I&HR)

The PRC
17 December 2010,
Mainland China
hE
“2-%%
tZAT+H
HEKE

The PRC
19 January 2017,
Mainland China
HE
ZE-tF
—-AThA
BE AR

The PRC
29 August 2017,
Mainland China
i
ZE-tf
NA-+18
PEAE

The PRC

26 September 2018,

Mainland China
mE

“E-)\E

NARA

BE AR

The PRC
16 July 2019,
Mainland China
RE
“E-)\E
tA+iA
mE KE

Registered and paid-in
capital of
R\MB200,000,000

HAMREHER
AR 200,000,000

Registered and paid-in
capital of
RMB25,000,000

AMRESER
AR 25,000,000

Registered and paid-in
capital of
RMB105,000,000

AMRELER
AR 105,000,000

Registered capital of
RIMB36,000,000 and
paid-in capital of
RIVB8, 710,000

g
AR %36,000,0007 &
AR
AR %8,710,0007T

Registered and paid-in
capital of
RMB118,000,000

HEMREHER
AR 118,000,000

100 - 100 Limited liability company

EREALA

Manufacture of photovoltaic
modules

RERRER

Manufacture and
trading of monocrystalline
ingotsfwafers
BEREEERERMR

100 - 100 Limited liability company

EREARA

Limited liability company
EREERA

Manufacture and
trading of monocrystalline
ingots/wafers
HERERERHREER

55 - 55 Limited liability company

EREARA

Manufacture and trading of
electronic semiconductor
materials

HERBERTHEENH

Manufacture of photovoltaic
modules
HERRER

Limited liability company
EREMRAT
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

1. Corporate and group information (continved) 1. XA R EBEE R (@)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) BN E QRN ER (@)

*  Jiangsu Yueyang is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary and is accounted o IEUBRIIEEEWNEBAT  SEBARHEE
for as a subsidiary of the Group even though the Group has only a ZNE28% M ARME - BIR R B IS IR R A 36
28% equity interest in this company based on acting-in-concert SEEHMREEETN —SITBABE T
agreement signed with other investors explained in note 36 to the HUBGHEAAREBENNB AR -

financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in FRABEERARIEFEFTNERLMK
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for REBRKIHDFEENERRAANBAR - E
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the ERAE WMEFHVNHMMBATNER &8
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the BREBHITE -
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

2.1Basis of preparation 21GREEE
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance ZERRBRRIBIEESEeHFMAS ([FH
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) eHMAe ) BHh s ESMBRELER([F
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, BT IRE KR BIEFTAE R B GHRL &
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and B -HHestEi((EsesE]) R %
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified B) ZEAREHRAUALRETELTIEMNEE
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally BRFUGR -BUA L BES SRR
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the BHN - HETVRIERE S R RIS H RS o 2R
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared BHREUAAREE(TAREDIE BRR2EIE
under the historical cost convention except for equity investment BN TESEEABRESRERTMHA -

which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current liabilities R-_E-_TFE+-_B=4+—H AEEHNE
exceeded its current assets by RMB963,767,000. The liquidity of BHEaEReETHEE A RKIE3,767,000
the Group is primarily depending on its ability to maintain Lo AEBRHELTBREANKELh S
adequate cash flows from operations, to renew its short-term BERALERSLE SEHEHBTEX
bank loans and to obtain adequate external financing to support EEEABAIISMENLTHELEES LR
its working capital and meet its obligations and commitments DHEBITHEETRAERE D o

when they become due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BB EHEIN - LA REZIE)

2.1Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group has carried out a review of its cash flow forecast for
the twelve months ending 31 December 2021. Based on such
forecast, the directors believe that adequate sources of liquidity
exist to fund the Group’s working capital and capital
expenditure requirements, and to meet its short term debt
obligations and other liabilities and commitments as they
become due in the twelve months ending 31 December 2021.
In preparing the cash flow forecast, management has considered
historical cash requirements of the Group, as well as other key
factors, including anticipated sales in the twelve months ending
31 December 2021 and unutilised banking facilities as at 31
December 2020 from the Group’s major banks with an amount
of RMB1,765,800,000 which will expire on 31 December 2023.

Based on the above factors, the directors are confident that the
Group will have sufficient funding to enable the Group to
operate as a going concern and meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for at least 12 months from the
reporting date. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Q1B EE )

REBEHHEHBEE T -_—F+_A=1+—
BlE+ZEAMNBRESREEA#EITERN &
BZBA ZEFRRERHARDESERA
BNAEBENEEESRERAAIFTRKER
HEZZZ—F+ZA=+—HLE+Z=ZEA
IHNEBETHERHESEE R E M E &K
EoppEREREEANE  EEEREE
AEERARSFTRREMFIEREZ  BF
HE-_T-_—4F+-_A=+—HBHLE+=-fEA
MIEFHEE RZEZTF+A=+—H
WAREBEZZRITESHARSABRITREA
R ™1,765,800,0007T (IR =T =Z=F+=A
=t+—HIH -

EREXHAER BFAEL ARESHEAT
WED NEREERERLE TneAEER
BERHERS T —EANMBEE - Bt
MBBMRIDIBFEEEE LR -

IREERB CEE
BRAUBHREBEARAREWNEB QR (5
[REEDHEE-_T-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H1t
FEZHERE -MBRIBAAREER
MERHOER(DELAHEEER) - E24%
EH2EHKEH R EKNZB L HRAERR
REHEMARESBEHREHROED (0
ANEEEEFRAENATELEH R AH
EEMMEERF) ¥ EZEERE - BEEE
il 4 o

WARFERLAHERBINREHRKS
BERZLABLUEMNOERN  AIAEBERFMG
HERBAHREHSNENREEE 1)
HEEERBR B

(a) BEREHSHEMBRERFAANEGD
7

(b)) EtbANRBEMEELNERN &

(0 AEBNKERIBEEREE-
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.1Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest; and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received; (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained; and (iii) any resulting
surplus of deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

2.2Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework"”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to
all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.2Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(b) Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

(c) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to
continue during the period of uncertainty before the
introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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31 December 2020 R=—Z-_TF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BEAFEREN  UARKIE)

2.2Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change; (i) any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly
lease payments for the leases of the Group’s plant and
machinery have been reduced or waived by the lessors
upon reducing the scale of production as a result of the
pandemic and there are no other changes to the terms of
the leases. The Group has early adopted the amendment
on 1 January 2020 and elected not to apply lease
modification accounting for all rent concessions granted by
the lessors as a result of the pandemic during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 238 EMEMKRERZEBUBR

financial reporting standards HEAR|
The Group has not applied the following new and revised AREBWARMBHREER T E EME R
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these REMH G MICIEE] BB W E R

financial statements.

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual BEEMBRERNENR AEHELZEM
HKFRS 3 Framework? HEE]
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — BEVBREENESR . FEEENE —
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Phase 2 A e ERE39% FEER
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 BAMBREER
and HKFRS 16 FIH BAUBREE
E‘J%ﬁﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ“i&%
LRI FE165 R 57

%‘/’éﬁﬂ%iﬁu@iﬁ‘l% 0% KREZHABELAREE
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its REBEBGHEHE28% LAz EMEELES
HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture* (Z2——F)NBF] JFE

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? ARUBREERNENTR RBELP

Amendments to Insurance Contracts® © BEUBREENEITR REAAP ¢

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 17 IEH)
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as BEGIERNE RN HREAERTHR
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current® s 3T HnEe
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment: BBGHERNE16MRM NE BERRZE — FF
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use? Bil SEH# 512 15 508
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of BB G EREITR BIEAH — EiTa#8
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract? ) A
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS BB BHEER BBMBREEER
to HKFRSs 2018~ 9, lllustrative Examples __5\5*/ Fz AR BREER
2020 accompanying HKFRS 16, and ZE-FFEFENE £o5 - ARUBRSE
HKAS 412 EE 16T AREREE
%EW&%/%A* 28
’Jﬁ {? uTz
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 T RZE—F-A—BRERBZFEEBME
R
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 2 RIZTEZZF-A—HukzERBEZFEHRHB
EX
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 3 RITZ=F—-A B zERBRZFEEHR
X
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 4 RRETE ORIl A Bk B BRME AT A
adoption
5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong 5 HRBEBGTERFIREE]  BAREESR
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — — 574??%75%57: # — /57?4’A$7§cfﬁfx/f/5§
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a / A ERHEA AP EER S _SF+ A

TTER] - AEHEE AR — S &wm T2

Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR
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31 December 2020 R=ZE=_ZHF+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3 A =B &E I+ LAARESI(E)

2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet
the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably
expects the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect
of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not
required to restate the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

108 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR

EEGEMRER 2EBYHER
&£ 28 (@)

F % B IS 3R 5 S R 505K - BB & 5 A 39
% BB EMEENEE BEMBRE
8 B A% T B8 B I R 4 Y B B 165E M0 18 2T
BR SR 4 BE 5T R 38 ) R R B A L
FEREEAEBEYENERE Y HE-
FEoRE T EITIRE AR AT -
AHHETOMAERABIANE SRS
CEEERTERESEH TR
BEAEREEE MELSEESY AN KR
BEYE T ABERRABEANBEERE N
A KT | 2 R B 4 B AT A S BT B
BSh - REEET A F R RIS TEE R
S R R R R B RA B TR
& 1R 1F BB IR o 3B % HIR AT AL R AR A9 1E Ml
U % % 5 18 19 8 B B V5 B 76 3 25 2 B 05E &Y
FERTRITEE UG8 R EREHER
Mo REBTNAEBEETRES - NER
% I 5 o 4 0 2 BB AR 10 B B ZB W B T B
BUTHT RERASEBAET Y A
BEOMETEBRR BT KEBAL
12 7 HB 4% B, 0 I B B AK 19 7 oK k2418 A
STEBEA o A REBTEREBAR
BAEONE R LA B TR 3R A 5 2 AL AR
RAEEENEHRENLRIARARE
BEBENYE - REEIR_E-—F—8
— Bk EBA e E R A SRR
R EREBEEIHBER  EHREE
SReUAEENMBREEREALE

Nids

g
an



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a
gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
financial reporting standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

e HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lIllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting
policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to
bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint ventures, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint ventures upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

114 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR

Q4T ESHHEBE )

an@%&?ﬂ = (18

Hﬂz,ﬁ%ﬁﬂ#ﬁﬁ%E’Mﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁﬂ&ﬁ%EI,HEZ
Q¥Tﬁﬁﬁw°ﬁi@%ﬁ?‘i%ﬁﬂ’]‘i%ﬁﬁ
BAFVEANE  AFENEHNIERESR - F
BRARGEZHAREZEENTE MER
REERET AR

BEBVMERAFE  AIPAEERE  CBR
R BBURARE LA AFRKE
TRENEAAFERBL KRB ARNEE
FEEAAEABEZEE WMRREBREM
HERMERAKBEEFENRFE A
ZHRREFNTEERNBEEEIR/ZEBENR

% o

RIATER 1 - B8 TR K AR T 7] 2 518
BEEEFE SFEHFEETREIR M
I8 T o] S5 14 SR 15 00 83 2 1 28 R BR B ] BE R
B BleBEZAR AEBREF+ A
:-!- B % 2 TR E R & o BLRE A

CEBAHENEBEaKEEARS

$%lmxﬂﬁiﬁi SRR HERS
ixiﬁu(fﬁiﬁlﬁaixiéﬁ’rﬁ%ﬂxﬁlm) i1
WAEBHEMEEREEEGECRAZS
B EMAR -

BMESBFBANEREMBNRESELEM
(REeEELBMAR) /A @25 imEE -
WHReEELAEMCREELEMMAR) N AR
Ol BIERREE AIERHNERSE AEHE
PR REBE TGN LR AFEELD -

WEESEEREEFEN (KB EEESN
R BEEMABDEBEEE  ARE
FEHENRER BHEMHEXEBNEES
AXBHEREBE EHEATHENEER
Tfﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%i‘kﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ% NIRRT E
B M E



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BB EHEIN - LA REZIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=—Z-_TF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEEBEN  AARKGIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

the

party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful lives. The principal useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery 6 to 25 years

—  Other fixed assets 3 to 5 years

118 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR

Q4T ESHHEBE )

ME - BENMRENMTE

BRERTEIN W% BMEEREBHVEKAE
WEFHEREMREERIIK - 88D
X BEELRBEFTDERBFELEXER
RERSBEAKELENREEEAN —HD
B HBAMEXREFTEVERELEAES
AKX BELRBEBKAEREE
BEBLSEEZZ2ENRN KB IAFH
ER®E A EMEREHEKA -

ME BERRBRERBEFRELEZX
b g ERREERS  —RREEBME
BREXRPHE WTEHERRE T2REZ
RAXRNEERAETERECREERA
ME BERRKBIEEMNDAETRKER B
AEEBZEMNERSEEFEERFH
RFTEZBNEE -

FEREGREFTE  UBEEDE  BEER
B EE R A ERAFRPNEE -
AREBEMNEIZERAZSHNT

- URHELHBFREEERER
FH R CE R AT A F IR0 B8 B R
FE ART A HERTZR506 -

- BB k#es 65255
- HEMBEEEE 3E5F



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 R=ZE=_ZHF+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3 A =B &E I+ LAARESI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Patents 9 years
- Customer relationship 10 years
- Customer contracts 1 year

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

120 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR

Q4T ESHHEBE )

EEE (BEKRIN G

BERAUEAFHENELEESFRENLR
SELABEMKFETRENRA -ZFEVE
ENTHHE BERMEVEENAERFH
eEFRs WEETERATEAFHIGR
BNARE WEERE mMERHNERE
RER R BEMFEAREREEAR -

A A (ARG 7 ) s T
51| % 7 it A G2 F3 4 58 LA B 40 3T A JR 2 ¢

- EA 9F
- EPBE 10%F
- EP&H 14
kg

FEMREBEELERASHER -

EBEAEEENETATKELEENRMA
THAEZBEVEEANHEASILE  EE
B ARERRXLEZEENREN BE
onfe] BE AR R SR VAR B M &5 - SRR B AT Y
BRARERE BTN FEE 8 H R
BN TAKAEFERNERNXHEE
AR - TR EELEHNERMEX
HEZLERELRER -

ERERER AR AR EERREERERD
TRAR LTAZEMBRABREEZARE
THEALELFNERERNERSS &
BEARORBEH -
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31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BB EHEIN - LA REZIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease component, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease component
and to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease component (e.g., property management services for
leases of properties) as a single lease component.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold lands 20 to 50 years
Plant and machinery 2 to 6 years
Buildings 2 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies 24X EEFBEHME &)

(continued)
Leases (continued) HE @\
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEBE

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BB EHEIN - LA REZIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
"Revenue recognition” below.
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred assets is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At
each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt
investments are considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group
reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments. In
addition, the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, derivative
financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.
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31 December 2020 R=ZE=_ZHF+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3 A =B &E I+ LAARESI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare costs are accrued
in the period in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in Mainland China,
Taiwan and Hong Kong are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving
the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

I[ncome tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued))
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued))

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on acceptance of the industrial
products by customers.

(i) Processing services

Revenue from the processing services rendered is recognised
over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the
Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. The input
method recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs for
satisfaction of the processing services.

(iif) Construction services

Revenue from the construction services is recognised over
time, using an input method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
input method recognises revenue based on the proportion
of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the construction services.
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2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.
However, the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in RMB, as the directors of the Company consider
that the major subsidiaries of the Company are all presented in
RMB and meanwhile this presentation is more useful for its
current and potential investors. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive income
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=ZE=_ZHF+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3 A =B &E I+ LAARESI(E)

2.4Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each
asset, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. Management reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. Both the period and
methods of depreciation are reviewed annually. The
depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
Further details are given in note 14 to the financial
statements.
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3. Significant accounting judgments and 3. EREHEE R HE @
estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

T BABA A =& (|)
(b) Impairment of non-financial assets (b) FEHMBEERE

Management assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Further details are given
in note 14 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on ageing for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by
letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacture
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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(BRBBEEBEN  AARKGIE)

3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(©

(d)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade, bills receivables and
contract assets are disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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31 December2020 R=—ZE=FTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

3. EXREEHEE R HE

3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) N BR BA R = & 51 (48)
(e) Impairment of prepayments to suppliers and provision for (e) N THERMNFIBEREREES L
onerous contract ]

The Group makes non-cancellable advance payments to raw REBRBEBEEHHER RN HERIE
material suppliers under purchase agreements which are to EAAIBSHTE N RIE - BERIEE R KR
be offset against future purchases. In the event when the REERELEE - WREZZEEEWR
economic benefits expected to be received under these HIEHTREEOLEEFNEERBEITE LD
purchase agreements are less than the unavoidable costs of EETA@EORAE Sz S HERH

meeting the contractual obligations; or the financial BRAREE EEEBEEEMNTZE
conditions of suppliers deteriorate, management will HEFNHBERSLKLERE  WHZSE
consider whether such advance payments to suppliers are ik IETE’]E%?ET’E&ME%’%{% ZiN

5 [ 30 % 3L TR A T 0L P A9 R B SRK
R EMER - EREFENERN

impaired and make necessary provision for the present
obligations under the agreements. The Group does not
require collateral or other security against its prepayments THEFHZIENKE  RRUATEHRR
to suppliers. Management performs ongoing evaluations of mARBEEBERAZSME REE
impairment of prepayments to suppliers and provisions for B RERE -  Zar AR EZEE K -
commitments that may become onerous due to a change of AR REMMKA & AR EANTE
market conditions and the financial conditions of its HHBNRER  XEBBRZEDH
suppliers. The evaluations take into account the projected RETHRAEEEEL L ERE - FR-
revenue, related expenses and other costs. When the ”‘ﬁ{:.\@%,aﬁ% IETE’J,EE\T_TEE’JT—JL%
prepayments are not likely to be settled as expected, the PR 7SR HH EIE T TR A AT AT BV A8 i i 2
Group will make necessary provisions for the present MGt IR BEE LRE- J:L%?%ﬁﬁ’]i‘
obligations under the agreements. Meanwhile, provision for MR B EREENER REEF
onerous contract will also be made when the unavoidable B-BNTHEFROFRERERE LT
costs of meeting the obligations under the purchase EMEAERBRENE-—THBIINEAR
agreements exceed the economic benefits expected to be B 75 R M aE18 K fT 5E31 o

received under it. An increase or decrease in the above

provisions would affect the Group’s profit or loss and net

assets value. Further details of the provision for impairment

of prepayments to suppliers and the provision for inventory

purchase commitment are given in note 18 and note 31 to

the financial statements, respectively.

Write-down of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs to completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacture and selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in technique and competitors’ actions in response
to adverse industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period. As at 31
December 2020, the Group provided for write-down of
inventories amounting to RMB21,003,000 (2019:
RMB15,818,000). Further details are disclosed in note 22 to
the financial statements.
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31 December 2020 R=—Z-_TF+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEEBEN  AARKGIE)

3. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(9)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are

transactions during the ordinary course of business, for
which calculation of the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which is related to tax
losses and deductible temporary differences, depends on
management’s expectation of future taxable profits that will
be available against which the tax losses or the asset can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses and deductible temporary differences
at 31 December 2020 was RMB9,662,000 (2019:
RMB16,573,000). Further details are disclosed in note 21 to
the financial statements.

Provision for warranties

The Group provides warranties for its photovoltaic modules
for up to 25 years after sales have taken place. Due to
limited warranty claims history, management estimates
warranty based on the Group’s historical cost data, industry
data and an assessment of the history of warranty claims of
the Group’s competitors. The warranty obligation of the
Group will be affected not only by the product failure
rates, but also by costs incurred to repair or replace failed
products. If the actual product failure rates and the costs of
replacement or repairing of failed products differ from the
estimates, the Group will need to prospectively revise the
provision for warranties which would affect profit or loss in
future years. Further details of the Group’s provision for
warranties are given in note 31 to the financial statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

3.

146

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
(i) Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation
of the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected
period of benefits. During the year 2020, no development
cost was capitalised (2019: Nil).

Operating segment information

In a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified four
reportable segments:

(i) the manufacture of, trading of, and provision of processing
services for monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers
(“Segment A");

(i) the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules
("Segment B");

(iii) the manufacture and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar
cells (“Segment C");

(iv) the construction and operation of photovoltaic power plants
("Segment D").

No operating segments have been aggregated to form these
reportable segments. Comparative figures have been provided
on a basis consistent with the current year's segment analysis.
Revenue, costs and expenses are allocated to those reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the costs and expenses incurred by those segments.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #EBAZE SN - LAA REEIE)

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. L& 7 EWE R @)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities () PnEF*E EEIMBE
For the purpose of assessing segment performance and B EAHBERBERRSEREHBEEIR -
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most AREBBSHRTHEEAESERSA
senior executive management monitors the results, assets MEDHMEGCEE BERAGBUZR
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on REBEPBHRERZINAELE) o

the basis as they are presented in the Group’s financial
statements.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management

s —

DEHEANEERBRIZ2ENSE =77
EMAMNEBRERRITMELETRS -

Be2_Z2-_Z2FEKR_FT—NLF+=A
—t+—ALFERALAEBESRITRE

for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out BAERHOBBEASERE D B

below: EREFEHNWT :
Segment A Segment B Segment C Segment D Total
ABA 258 28C A% it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CECEF PR —T-TF Uk —3-IF EEmESRE "—I-IF RSB —3-T8 bkl
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETr EONEETH AR%TT EENAESPH ARETT QENSESH AR%TT EENEESHE AR%TT EENEESH
Revenue from external customers RENREFNUE 1,709,095 1,154,836 4,272,656 3,199,102 59,822 45,173 10,383 26,441 6,051,956 442555
Intersegment revenue APERE 207,278 297,787 2,062,838 1,227,628 405,740 383,001 12,330 2827 2,688,186 1,911,243
Reportable segment revenue TREFHRE 1,916,373 1,452,623 6,335,494 4426730 465,562 428174 2,713 29,268 8,740,142 6,336,795
Reportable segment profit{oss) ARESHHE/ (BB 64416 (32473 (165,584) 2143 (85,889) (39,139 (9,310) (11,921) (196,367) (354,358)
Reportable segment assets BECTESY 2,214,286 1,697,870 2,805,411 2,019,642 393,364 521,575 188,642 190,093 5,601,703 4,429,180
Reportable segment labilties TRESHEE 2,195,720 1,712,721 2,729,005 1,885,913 230,847 270,664 106,135 104310 5,261,707 3973614
Segment A Segment B Segment C Segment D Total
23A A3B AC 230 &3t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEC%F PR —T-T EEERRE —3-3F EEmESRE 2% EEmERgEE —3-5 bk
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT EONSSTH ARETT EENASPH ARETT QENSESH AR%TT EENSESH AR%TT EENEESH
Other segment information: AHPRE:
Interest income from bank deposits i LN 4,808 6,516 8,992 5172 40 6 46 14 13,886 11,740
Finance costs BERA (63,793) (64,816) (48,117) (39,166) (14,537) (13,39) (6,709) (5,752) (133,156) (123,130)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (196,643) (134.172) (99,421) (713726) (12,850) (30,755) ) (393) (308,941) (239,046)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment n% BERRERE = (15,167) - - (68,587) - = - (68,587) (15,167)
Share of losses of associates 5 = - (157) (1330) = - = - (157) (1330)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses)
on financial and contract assets, net 7,920 (11,918) (40,912) 5776 (1,664) 2016 (3.942) (1,136) (38,598) (5,262)
Impairment losses on prepayment = (26,975) = - = - = - = (26,975)
Reversal of write-down/(write-down) of inventories 1,564 13,520 9,242 15,019 2474 (1,534) 19 - (5,185) 27,005
Capital expenditure* | 261,970 335,591 92,149 71,391 35 1,04 = 2 360,154 408,008
Investments in associates BEAAMRE = - = 157 = - = - = 157
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARITBEAEVE BEREERE

REEE-

equipment and right-of-use assets.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA REEFIH)

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. REDHER =

(b) Geographic information (b) Hi[= & #}
Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and AEEYE - BREREE FRABEEE -
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets and BREERREE QAN ERLNF
interests in associates are located or operated in Mainland FRPEEE -
China.
The following table sets out information about the Group’s TREZMEMINERNERRBINAE P
revenue from external customers by geographical location. FU - BRI EM AR E @R #
The geographical location of a customer is based on the Pl 75 B 3t BE R 4K R -

location to which the goods were delivered or the services
were provided.

() Revenue from external customers () REINAREPHWE

2020 2019
= —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT

Mainland China R K 4,634,081 3,273,758
Export sales HOEE
- Japan - BA& 1,144,637 783,353
- South Asia - o [@E 232,092 349,266
- Europe — B 38,444 17,060
- Others - HAh 2,702 2,115
Sub-total INEF 1,417,875 1,151,794
Total @ Et 6,051,956 4,425,552
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

4. Operating segment information (continued)
(b) Geographic information (continued)
(ii) Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from a
single customer, including a group of entities which are
known to be under common control with that
customer, which amounted to 10% or more to the
Group's total revenue, is set out below:

i - p ~ I & Y4
A N
. BEsHES @
(b) & & ¥ (a)
m>I§¥ﬁmﬁﬂ
BE_T-_FT4+-A=+-HI

FE- XE EEEP G BEE
MEZEPELRZEH N —HEE
I AREEBUER10%K A &K 0
B

2020 2019
—_ 1 — ﬂE _jquz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T

Customer A A
— From Segment A — R B2 EA 289,057 96,755
— From Segment B — R E 5 =68 1,862,619 776,605
2,151,676 873,360
2020 2019
—E-EF —
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR Tt ARBFT

Customer B =B
— From Segment B =) 1,082,668 559,325
— From Segment C — KRB D EC = 31,775
1,082,668 591,100
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5. Revenue 5. W&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA -
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Revenue from contracts with customers B B EE & R R HA
Sales of monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/ HE ARG E SfEE A
wafers 1,706,374 1,106,209
Sales of monocrystalline silicon solar cells HEAGREREEMN 59,822 45,173
Sales of photovoltaic modules SHE L IRAR 1 3,828,264 2,898,479
Sales of electricity generated BEHE 577 3,982
Construction services B2 R % 9,806 22,459
Rendering of services R ARTE 447,113 349,250
6,051,956 4,425,552
Revenue from contracts with customers HEPZIIERBKA

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2020

iy DBRAER

BE

Construction
and operation

—E-_EE+-A=+—HLEE

Silicon of
solar ingots/  Photovoltaic Silicon  photovoltaic
wafers modules solar cells power plants Total
K B e
BE/ER KREAHE KBHEEEH SEXREH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT R ARET R AR®BT R AR®T R
Types of goods and service BmMREHER
Sales of industrial products HETIEMm 1,706,374 3,828,264 59,822 577 5,595,037
Processing service RIR® 2,721 444,392 = = 447,113
Construction services R = = = 9,806 9,806
Total Bt 1,709,095 4,272,656 59,822 10,383 6,051,956
Geographic market BB 5
Mainland China =P N 1,706,106 2,857,773 59,819 10,383 4,634,081
Japan EPS 177 1,144,457 3 - 1,144,637
South Asia AR E = 232,092 = — 232,092
Europe BN 110 38,334 = = 38,444
Others Hth 2,702 = = = 2,702
Total wat 1,709,095 4,272,656 59,822 10,383 6,051,956
Timing of revenue recognition LN 43
Goods transferred at a point of time EMEXERES
B 1,706,374 3,828,264 59,822 577 5,595,037
Service transferred over time MRiEFE R EY 2,721 444,392 = 9,806 456,919
Total HEt 1,709,095 4,272,656 59,822 10,383 6,051,956
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

5. Revenue (continued) 5. Wi
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEEFRITERAKA (E)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () H>BRAEBRE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—-NAF+-HA=+—HLFE
Construction and
operation of
Silicon solar Photovoltaic photovoltaic
ingots/wafers modules  Silicon solar cells power plants Total
ABgerE/ ARR
R KR ABEES BExREH )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBF ARETR ARBFT ARBF ARETR
Types of goods and service HRANRBNEY
Sales of industrial products HETXER 1,106,209 2,898,479 45,173 - 4,049,861
Processing service RIRHE 39,338 300,623 9,289 — 349,250
Construction services EEREK - — - 26,441 26,441
Total st 1,145,547 3,199,102 54,462 26,441 4,425,552
Geographic market HEM TS
Mainland China i 1,145,038 2,079,587 22,692 26,441 3,273,758
Japan BA 12 751,571 31,770 — 783,353
South Asia [k - 349,266 - — 349,266
Europe BN 497 16,563 — — 17,060
Others Eft - 2,115 - - 2,115
Total @it 1,145,547 3,199,102 54,462 26,441 4,425,552
Timing of revenue recognition AR Z R
Goods transferred at a point of ENEEERHE
time g% 1,106,209 2,898,479 45,173 4,049,861
Service transferred over time R RER 39,338 300,623 9,289 26,441 375,691
Total st 1,145,547 3,199,102 54,462 26,441 4,425,552
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TREATRABREHABEROWA £
recognised in the current reporting period that were EREEREH %ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%’]ﬁﬁ'*‘ I T

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

RmEARHENEORS
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31 December 2020 R=E=_ZTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA REEFIH)

5. W@

5. Revenue (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEPEITERAKAE)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) PDERAELEGEE)

2020 2019
Sl =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
WCLEEN T

Revenue recognised that was included in BRERETREHI®
contract liabilities at the beginning of the EREaEMIBA
reporting period:
Sales of industrial products HETEEMR 265,979 64,466
(i) Performance obligations (i) BHEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the acceptance
of industrial products by customers and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for
new customers and small-sized customers, where payment
in advance is normally required.

Processing service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 90
days after customer acceptance.

Construction service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 90
days from the date of billing.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December are as follows:

BERASEROEENERBANT :

HETREmD

EEPEXIXERRREXEBENEL
RTETFTERAMNROFELINE
P 3B EERMNZ30E0RARIH]

TR

R—BREEANRRREREKEBEOEE
il wER P EXZ30E90KRAEIH] -

2 R 7%

N—BERREEREATKBEHST
iR & Wk 2B B %30290K W28 -

BE+-A=+-B RAERHBHE
HEE(RERZDERBH) EEER
m

2020 2019
Sl =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
WCLEEW T

Within one year —F R

61,318 265,979
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6. Other income and gains, net 6. HtW AR Wz FE
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Other income H ik A
Government grants (note 32) BRI 4 B (BT 5E32) 74,567 166,152
Interest income from bank deposits RATF A FLE M A 13,886 11,740
88,453 177,892
Other gains/(losses), net Hih (&8 FHE
Net foreign exchange loss HINE U 2 )5 58 (41,572) 9,412
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERKEEDH
plant and equipment &8 F & (22,660) (128,879)
Gain from sales of other materials S5 5 H 0 A R IR &= 15,880 216
Gain on remeasurement of fair value of B EREAABEZ KRS
equity investment 1,278 —
Others Hth 36,331 (42,671)
(10,743) (161,922)
Other income and gains, net EHAb U A R s - F 77,710 15,970
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31 December 2020 R=E=_ZTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA REEFIH)

7. Loss before tax

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. RBAIE B
ARERBABESNG, (BE) :

(crediting):
2020 2019
—R-%F —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt ARETF T
(@) Staff costs* (including Directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration)
(note 9)
EIRT#(BREESRTETHRAE
M) (B 3E9)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITENMEMEF 242,914 256,061
Contributions to retirement schemes RAKEE SR 10,866 27,663
253,780 283,724
2020 2019
S BN = ax
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
(b) Auditor's remuneration
ZE MM S
Audit services Z# RS 3,321 3,070
Tax services 7% R 7% 45 23
Other services H AR 7 — 272
3,366 3,365
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk S B BB E N - A AR K FIE)

7. Loss before tax (continued)

Y.

7. R ATE B (9

2020 2019
—¥_%F —F-hEF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT

() Other items
HtE B
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEZEMNITE 11,967 5,715
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERZEOITE
equipment? 296,974 233,331
Provision for warranties 1R FARK 7 # s 24,075 18,394
Research and development costs it 7% K B 38 A AR 274,910 230,289
Impairment losses on financial and WHERENEERE  F58
contract assets, net 38,598 5,262
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BEREERE
equipment 68,587 15,167
Impairment losses on prepayment TEAS FRIBRVE 1B K — 26,975
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE BEMEEHER
plant and equipment F 5B 22,660 128,879
Gain on remeasurement of fair value EFA2REAABEZ W
of equity investment (1,278) —
Cost of inventories sold* 2 EFER AR 5,058,236 3,747,724
Cost of services rendered* B He AR 75 Ak A ¢ 407,868 336,460
# Cost of inventories sold and cost of services rendered include, in # BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFEMNEE

aggregate, RMB483,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB457,668,000), relating to staff costs and depreciation
which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above.

GERARERERBAARIEEBE IXA
MIrE A £ A K #483,000,0000 (ZF — N,
F : AR ¥457,668,0007T) ' Z KB AR
XA FAEENSERBERE-
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31 December 2020 R=E=_ZTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA REEFIH)

8. Finance costs 8. WEMAK
2020 2019
= —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Interest on bank and other loans wholly ARAFAL2EEBNRITR
repayable within five years H B HF 8 130,821 123,003
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 2,335 127
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities — JE¥% 72 (B 1A 18 %5 BR 71| BR 81 75
not at fair value through profit or loss BEMNERZ2E 133,156 123,130
9. Directors’ and chief executive’s 9. EERERITTHAEMS

remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), ()
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RiE £ R AR FEE R F &G F383(1)@)
)~ OROBEARAB(HEESNDER)
HROIE2HATRENFAEERRSTERA
a2

2020 2019

e Al — = %

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®F T AR T

Fees e 321 4,050
Other emoluments: Hini & -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e BRBEREDAG 3,904 257

Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 19 35

3,923 292

4,244 4,342
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9. EERNEBS

il

9. Directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (continued)

2020
—E_EHF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions
E-WN
e ER
wme REYWANZ EARFEIHER ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T AR®T AR® Tt
Executive directors HITES
Tan Wenhua B EE — 855 — 855
Tan Xin (chief executive) EE(ITHER) = 1,604 16 1,620
Wang Junze B = 750 3 753
Non-executive director FHITESE
Hsu You Yuan ERas — 695 — 695
Independent non- BYKETES
executive directors
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert T ok HE 107 = = 107
Fu Shuangye Sk 107 — — 107
Feng Wenli X B 107 = = 107
Total 185 321 3,904 19 4,244
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9. Directors’ and chief executive’s 9. EEREEITHAEMES @
remuneration (continued)
2019
—E-NEF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind  contributions Total
AR
e R
e REWMNZ RKEHEHK #Et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®BTRT AR¥ETT AR®BTR

Executive directors HITESE

Tan Wenhua B EE 860 — — 860
Tan Xin (chief executive) BE(ITBEE) 1,612 — 16 1,628
Wang Junze T892 553 257 19 829
Non-executive director FHITESE

Hsu You Yuan Ry 699 — — 699
Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert T ok 107 — — 107
Fu Shuangye S 107 — — 107
Zhang Chun (note i) R A& (M 5E0) 54 — — 54
Feng Wenli (note ii) R BB (B 5l ) 58 — — 58
Total #EEt 4,050 257 35 4,342
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RER TEEZSASZRITHRABFTZEM
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during ZHREXRERETAMNE (ZT—NF:
the year (2019: Nil). ') -
(1) Mr. Zhang Chun has retired as an independent non-executive (1) ®EBEEEEBZZT—NLFAATABRE
director with effect from 18 June 2019. EBTIEANITES -
(2) Mr. Feng Wenli has been appointed as an independent non- ) BXBR+tBE-ZT-hFA+/\BHE
executive director with effect from 18 June 2019. ZEBIERTES -
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10.Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2019: four) directors including the chief executive whose
remuneration are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the
remuneration in respect of the remaining one (2019: one)
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company is as follows:

10V.52E2REFHES
ENEEBREHFHNERRENA(CT—A
F NB)EF(BERETRAR  REX
FHRHHORE - BT — % (ZB—NEF: —
E)URAANEFRBBTHABNREH
HESOHFMEBLT -

2020 2019
—EC-_FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREF T
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind EA%H&  ZUAREYHN= 695 699
Retirement scheme contributions RRET B3R = —
695 699
The remuneration of the remaining one (2019: one) highest paid BRT—2(ZE-IEF —R)ESFMESR
employee is within the following band: HIFENE AT 4R
2020 2019
—EC-EHE —E—NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A ANE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %=1,000,0007% JT 1 1
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11.Income tax 1M.FrBH
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) HMEBRERANAEHRMNE:
represents:
2020 2019
—E-2fF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBFT
Current tax — the PRC BfHE — &
Provision for the year FEEE 27,069 9,104
(Over provision)/under provision BEFE (BEREE)
in respect of prior years BETE (4,920) 882
22,149 9,986
Deferred tax iR SE IR 8,124 31,322
Income tax expense for the year FEMGHER 30,273 41,308
(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before (b) AR F 8 E KE 5 B~ & E

RETE B K %JMWWMMEEmmE
MY EREERHERTENHERX

tax at the statutory rate for the country in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled

to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows: HEWMT
2020 2019
=22 —ZE—-h
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREETF T
Loss before taxation B % Bl &5 18 (166,094) (313,050)
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEBMEFTENIEA (41,523) (78,263)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses OEIEE S -qusl:ok 832 1,210 2,563
Tax effect of non-taxable income é‘FFEfRHﬁ)\E’ﬁR?‘%‘E (1,122) (958)
Effect of differential tax rates BRI 0-A 4,349 5,805
Effect of tax concessions obtained M%%Fﬁ%{gaﬂ’l za (19,981) (1,181)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and M AR R B AR B) A I E 1 &
temporary differences not recognised EREENNBrE 91,159 81,615
Utilisation of unused tax loss and FABTFEHRERNKRED
temporary differences not recognised RRIEEERRERERE

in previous years (7,977) (603)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the 5% B B 42 1 ¥ AN & 2 B

distributable profits of the Group's FRAEIMAISEMENZE

PRC subsidiaries 2,785 —

Write-off of unrecoverable deferred tax W £ 5t A B SR BY AT AT UL [E] A
assets previously recognised BELEBIEEE 6,293 31,448
(Over provision)/under provision in BAFTE (BEEE) BETL
respect of prior years (4,920) 882
Tax charge at the Group effective rate BRASEERBERAENTIE
F X 30,273 41,308
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31 December 2020
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

R-ZZE-_TF+=-_A=+—H

(BRBBEEBEN  AARKGIE)

11.Income tax (continued)

(b) (continued)
Notes:

()

(ii)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong during the year. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong either did not have
any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax or had
accumulated tax losses brought forward from previous years to
offset the assessable profits for the year.

The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the local rules and regulations of their
respective countries of incorporation.

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiary
incorporated in Germany is 15% for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: 15%). No provision for German
income tax has been made as the subsidiary incorporated in
Germany did not have any taxable profits for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiary
incorporated in Ghana was 35% for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: 35%). No provision for Ghana income
tax has been made as the subsidiary incorporated in Ghana
did not have any taxable profits for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The income tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is 25%
except for the subsidiaries mentioned below:

Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd. (“Yangguang”) has been
accredited as “High and New Technology Enterprise” by the
relevant government authority in 2012 for a term of three
years, and has been registered with the local tax authority to
be eligible for a reduced income tax rate of 15%. Yangguang
has renewed the “High and New Technology Enterprise”
certificate in 2018 effective for the three years from 2018 to
2020. Accordingly, Yangguang was entitled to the 15%
income tax rate for 2020 and 2019.

M.AEH @

(b)

(&)
i ot

()

(ii)

FAREBNEREARANEEEMK
SZEVPE R B A ET AR B 8916.5%
TENF 165%)FHE - AR E B
T B 37 89 B 8 % ] 3 AT 7] FE A F OB
MERNWERENBSBEFE AR R
SN EB R A FE A ERTAE - M
BEFELBAEMNESUEE -

ARARARHERERABERELHE
Ak 32 & BT B A R AR R EL S B R K
SLE SR E AR R AR O BB SR (R
FRGHL -

HE-_Z-_ZHE+_A=t+—HILFE "
AR TR E B R AR S e B A B E A
BEEMEAI5% (ZB—NE - 15%) o
HMRZEEEREMAZOHNE QAR
HE_T-_ZTF+_A=+—HLFE
AT R FE - B E AT
BREBE(ZE—HhFE &)

HE-_Z-_ZETHE+_A=+—HILFE -
AR B DN FEMR AR SR B B A R E A
HEEM K BE35% (ZFE—LF :35%) ©
B % BT b AR sE A S B9 I B 2 B R
HE_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLFE
I 4T A] FE AR B IO - AR 4 1 0 4R AT
BEHBEHE( T —NE &)

ARARWFENERRNMERRES
25% - M AP B 2 BIBR OD -

BB XERERAR(B XN =ZZ
——FEEBBNERETFISHEBIHRDE
¥ BE=ZF WE HE B EHE
BB A ERRIE15% 8 B R FT
BRH-—FT—NF BAEH SR
BE - BUHAE=F BT )\FRZE
ZE-ZTF I -EH MMNBER =T
TR =T NEARIS% SRR -
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11.Income tax (continued) M. B H @
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
Notes: (continued) Mgk - ()
(i) (continued) iy (&)

Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd. (“Qinghai”) has been
accredited as “High and New Technology Enterprise” by the
relevant government authority in 2016 for a term of three
years, and has been registered with the local tax authority to
be eligible for a reduced income tax rate of 15%. Qinghai
renewed the “High and New Technology Enterprise” certificate
in 2019 effective for the three years from 2019 to 2021.
Accordingly, Qinghai was entitled to the 15% income tax rate
for 2020 and 2019.

Jinzhou Yangguang Jinmao Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Jinzhou Jinmao”), has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government authority
in 2016 for a term of three years, and has been registered
with the local tax authority to be eligible to a reduced income
tax rate of 15%. Jinmao renewed the “High and New
Technology Enterprise” certificate in 2019 effective for the
three years from 2019 to 2021. Accordingly, Jinzhou Jinmao
was entitled to the 15% income tax rate for 2020 and 2019.

Qujing Yangguang Energy Silicon Materials Co., Ltd (“Qujing
Yangguang”), in accordance with the”Catalogue of Industries
Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region”, has been
registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for a
reduced income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, Qujing

BHreER(BEBRARABESED
R-CE-—ANFEAERNERET &
BECEIMA AB=F WEMEH
TBHEATR  FEEBRIKIS%HTH R
BB H  —E—NEFE BASEEH
(BFERIEE BafA=F =%
—NWFREZZT-_—FIt- Bt HFHXS
R ZEZEFR 2T —NFAKRIS%A
BB -

RN iR KB AR QA (N85
BN -_E-—NEEEERFTERE
FlaHt gt whi BH=F ¥
MEMREEEERL  FEEBRIEI5%
R RN ERRER - —T—haE B8
BEF EFERIEE  BRSEAE=F
BE-ZE-NFRE-_ZT-—F1F - Bt
BNBEN B -_TER T AFEA
B15%FT ST R BF -

HIBELEEREM B AR AR ([HhEE
K’ BREBEIAIIESEEEED M
EHMREEEERL  FAERRIKRIS%H
HEHAEH - At BB AR =T
ZEFRIENFAIRIS% ST R

Yangguang was entitled to the 15% income tax rate for 2020 B e
and 2019.
12.Dividends 12. 2
The board does not recommend to declare a final dividend for EFe EUnEE—SSF+A=1+—
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). HEFESRARARE(ZE—NEF - &) -
13.Loss per share attributable to ordinary BAEALAEBERERFEARLES

equity holders of the company REE

(a) Basic loss per share (a) FREXREE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss BREAEEDRBAQAREERER
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company BE AELEEAR215,648,0007T (=
of RMB215,648,000 (2019: loss of RMB355,492,000) and Z—N5F : B8 AR355492,0007T) KA
the weighted average of 3,161,981,309 (2019: MFARRBIEZETEBRMEF IR
3,211,780,566) ordinary shares of the Company in issue #3,161,981,3090 ( = T — Hh 4
during the year. 3,211,780,566/%) 5T & -

(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BiREEERE
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share REBEE_Z_ZTFER_ZT-NLFT_A
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2020 S+ —BLEFE - AEETEETES
and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no MEBETEBR ALTEWSEE T
dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ZEERZZE-NF+ZA=+—HIE
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. FEZINNEREANEBRBIELEE

éﬁ %é:z °
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31 December 2020 R=ZE=_ZHF+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3 A =B &E I+ LAARESI(E)

. TP 2
14.Property, plant and equipment 1MNE -BERRE
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings  equipment vehicles and fittings Total
B #eE RAREE
EEIR BF &S "E ®E 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTR AR%®TR ARBTT ARBTRT AR%¥TxR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZTF—-F—H 85,311 743,344 2,003,762 28,522 29,187 2,890,126
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—RHREAR 54,341 — 120,029 1,820 151 176,341
Additions NE 259,053 4,086 92,824 854 3,337 360,154
Disposals L& (8,844) (456) (475,455) (604) (3,826) (489,185)
Transfer A (128,467) = 128,022 445 — —
Exchange adjustments BE 530 2 = = = — (29) (29)
At 31 December 2020 R-IZ_EF
tzA=+-8 261,394 746974 1,869,182 31,037 28820 2,937,407
Accumulated depreciation R FERBEEE:
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2020 WZZEZTF5—-HF—H (72,222) (181,021)  (1,182,146) (23,753) (23,825) (1,482,967)
Depreciation for the year FEHE = (28,276) (262,209) (1,716) (4,773) (296,974)
Written back on disposals HERER — 256 420,316 570 3,248 424,390
Provision for impairment losses B 24 (BT e
(note i) (8,462) — (60,125) — — (68,587)
Exchange adjustments bE N R = = = = 18 18
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE
+-—A=+—8 (80,684) (209,041)  (1,084,164) (24,899) (25,332)  (1,424,120)
Net book value: BRERME
At 31 December 2020 WZZZTF
+-—A=+—8 180,710 537,933 785,018 6,138 3,488 1,513,287
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA REEFIH)

14.Property, plant and equipment (continued) 1M ¥ -BERRE®

Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings equipment vehicles  and fittings Total
B - RERETE
ERIR B¥ &L RE ®E #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTL ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®TR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NE—A—H 253,354 635,784 1,969,122 28,552 14,683 2,901,495
Exchange adjustments AR — — — — 48 48
Additions ANE 261,831 10,562 104,357 733 15,429 392,912
Disposals HE — — (401,982) (763) (1,584) (404,329)
Transfer HE (429,874) 96,998 332,265 — 611 —
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF

+-A=+—8 85,311 743,344 2,003,762 28,522 29,187 2,890,126
Accumulated depreciation R FERAERSE:

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2019 R=ZFT—hF—A—AH (71,483) (161,751)  (1,116,740) (22,917) (11,577)  (1,384,468)
Exchange adjustments (R — — — — (54) (54)
Depreciation for the year FEFE — (20,009) (198,283) (1,533) (13,506) (233,331)
Written back on disposals HEREE — — 148,044 697 1,312 150,053
Provision for impairment losses REEE — — (15,167) — — (15,167)
Transfer in/(out) BA/(8H) (739) 739 — — — —
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF

+-A=+—H (72,222) (181,021) (1,182,146) (23,753) (23,825) (1,482,967)
Net book value: BREEE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF

+-A=+—H 13,089 562,323 821,616 4,769 5,362 1,407,159
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31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-TF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

14.Property, plant and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings were secured by certain of the
Group's property, plant and equipment (note 27), which had an
aggregate net book value of RMB932,208,000 (31 December
2019: RMB749,463,000).

Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
are located in Mainland China.

(i) The Group has been applying for property ownership
certificates for certain buildings included in property, plant
and equipment with an aggregate net book value of
RMB166,991,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: RMB256,842,000). Notwithstanding this, the directors
are of the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial
title to these buildings as at 31 December 2020.

(i) Jinzhou Huachang Photovoltaic Technology Co. LTD
("Jinzhou Huachang”), a subsidiary engages in the
manufacture and trading of photovoltaic solar cells of the
Group, suspended production in this year. In view of the
Group's business strategy, the Group does not expect to
manufacture any solar cells in the foreseeable future,
therefore the net amount of existing outmoded production
line for solar cells and related machinery equipment was
accounted for as asset impairment loss. As a result, an
impairment loss of RMB68,587,000 was fully provided to
machinery and construction in progress of Jinzhou
Huachang in profit or loss during 2020 (for 2019: no
impairment loss provided).

Y

14E - -BERZE®
R-Z-_ZEE+-_A=+—H AE@ET
AERTEENUASEEDFELABEAR
#932,208,000 (= ZE—hF+=-A=+—
B : AR¥749,463,0007T) E THWE  BE
Ko 5% A8 1R I (FF 7527) »

REBBRHEOME  BFERJREHLRF
BORRE -

() AEBFEERFETIHADE BE X
SHENEFNEEMERE R _Z=
TE+-A=+-—H ZREEFHET
FEEE A ANRK166,991,000T (= F
- E+-_A=+—-—HB: AR
256,842,0007T) - AT - EER B - A%
BER-_ZE-_EF+_A=+—BHEEX
EEFNERSER-

(i) |WMEEXKBFZBERQA(HIMNE
g —HRErEEXAKRGREE LD
HEEMBESNNBAR  REFEFE R
BASEMEBEE ASEBEHTE
EABERNERYEEMAGEES
E bt - 388 M KRS 68 ot [ A8 B A R
BHAAEESNFELAEERBERL -
Eit  RZEZTFEHMNEE DKW
MEREIRZEARBEBBEARE
68,587,000C (= — NF : RIBHFE
E18) -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

15.Intangible assets 15.8FEE

Customer Customer
relationships contracts Patents Total

EFB#&E BEFAEN = i

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRE AR®TRT AR®TR

Cost: A
At 1 January and RZZTE-ZTF—H—H
31 December 2020 Et+ZA=+—H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869

Accumulated amortisation RFEHERBEESISE
and impairment losses:

At 1 January and RZT-_ZTF—H—H
31 December 2020 M+—-_A=+—H (185,230) (2,411) (67,228) (254,869)
Net book value: REFME:
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFTF
+=-A=+—8” = = = —

166 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R=E=TF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

15.Intangible assets (continued) 15.8FEE @
Customer Customer
relationships contracts Patents Total
BERHAR BERER =7 |
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTEZ ARBTET ARBTRT AR®TRT

Cost: R
At 1 January and RZZE—-—NF—H—H
31 December 2019 M+Z-—RA=+—H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869

Accumulated amortisation  Ei##E R B EESIE :

and impairment losses:

At 1 January and RZE—-—AFE—H—H
31 December 2019 r+Z-—A=+—H (185,230) 2,411) (67,228) (254,869)
Net book value: FREEE:
At 31 December 2019 RZTE—-NF
+-A=+—8 — — — —
The intangible assets were fully impaired during the year ended BEEECRBEZE_ZT——-HF+A=+—
31 December 2012. HIEFEEHRE-
16.Goodwill 16.F &
2020 2019
—EB-BfF —T-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Cost: B
At 1 January and 31 December N—A—BEK+ZA=+—H 208,237 208,237
Accumulated impairment losses: HEtREEE:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HBk+=ZA=+—H (208,237) (208,237)
Carrying amount: BRTE B :
At 31 December w+=ZA=+—8H = —
The goodwill was fully impaired during the year ended 31 HEEREBEEZE_T——F+=-A=+—8H1t
December 2012. FEBERME -
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31 December 2020 R=E=_ZTF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 A FERAE SN » LA REEFIH)

17.Leases
The Group as a lessee
(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

17.8 &
AEBEARERA
(a) ERBEE
AEENEREESENERSENE

b

the movements during the year are as follows: 2T
Leasehold Plant and
lands Buildings machinery Total
fAE BFE WEIRKRE #at
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT ARETE

As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-AFE—HA—H 143,154 1,245 — 144,399
Additions & 12,452 — — 12,452
Depreciation charge EBH (4,719) (996) — (5,715)
As at 31 December RZE—NF

2019 and +ZA=+—8BkK

1 January 2020 —E-TF—H—H 150,887 249 — 151,136
Additions 0 — 2,032 18,553 20,585
Additions as a result of IR EE — KB A A B

acquisition of a IR

subsidiary — 32,695 — 32,695
Depreciation charge EBH (4,076) (3,613) (4,278) (11,967)
As at 31 December RZTEZFF

2020 +=-—A=+—H 146,811 31,363 14,275 192,449
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

17.Leases (continued)

(BB BEBEIN

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

IAARESIE)

17.#H 8 %)
AEBEAREAE
b) AEaE

¥ @Yy ¥ ¥ .

AT N

FAEHERENRESBEMEEHW T

2020 2019
=t X T NF
LY Finance lease
liabilities payables
mEHE
HEEE JE 5 3RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERmEE 1,388 2,410
New leases HEE 19,399 —
Addition as a result of acquisition of a W BE — KB B 2 Al B IG R
subsidiary 32,695 —
Accretion of interest recognised FANRER 2 EEm
during the year 2,335 127
Payments 3R (6,467) (1,149)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZKEHAE 49,350 1,388
Analysed into: S
Current portion BN AR &R 9 8,564 376
Non-current portion FE BN ERFE 5 40,786 1,012

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

42 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

HERGBNIHBEOWETBREMZE

A2 EE

(0 HBmTHEIAHREAENTEL

2020 2019

e A — T F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBF T

Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEHNE 2,335 127
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FTREEENEER 11,967 5,715
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FFAERA B 14,302 5,842

The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are
disclosed in notes 37(c) and 42,

financial statements.

respectively, to the

(d) HEMRSITHLEME R RFAENE

EEBMHRRREIR

7 BB 15 R

M5E37 (o) MA2p 58 o
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18.ZE M BN A

18.Prepayments for raw materials

In order to secure a stable supply of polysilicon materials, the
Group entered into short-term and long-term contracts with
certain raw material suppliers and made advance payments to
these suppliers which are to be offset against future purchases.
Prepayments for raw materials where the Group expects to
receive the raw materials more than twelve months after the
end of the reporting period are classified as non-current assets
and to receive within one year are classified as current assets.
There was no prepayment for raw materials made to a related
party as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2014, management reassessed the
prepayments for potential impairment and identified one of the
suppliers from which the Group allegedly failed to purchase the
quantities of polysilicon under the long-term supply contract
("Supply Contract”), and therefore made a full impairment
provision of US$11,500,000. As at 31 December 2019, the
amount of impairment provision remained the same which was
equivalent to RMB80,266,000.

In April 2018, the supplier filed a complaint and a claim against
the subsidiary of the Company for the above alleged breach of
the Supply Contract.

In May 2020, the Group reached a confidential settlement
agreement with the supplier and executed the settlement
agreement on 13 May 2020. Among the legally bound clauses
in the agreement, the dispute has been settled and the related
impact has been fully recognised in the financial statements,
including write-off of the above-mentioned impairment provision
of US$11,500,000 (equivalent to RMB80,266,000).

19.Investments in associates

ARREBTZRERMEERE Ae@E
ETEMBHEFIICERREPEHTE
ZEMEEINEMRE  ZEREBRA
BEBEPEYE AEEEHNBREHMES
B+ =188 LA EUEEME SRS EE
NRESERIIERDEE Wi —FRAME
EMHOEMEBNRBESBEARBEE -
R-Z-—FFE+_A=+—80 HEINT
BEAMEMBEGRE(CE-AF+ A
=t+—HB:&)-

R-ZE—MNE+-_A=+—HB EEEZH
TENREMNEEREENEL TG LER
REP—RHEER AEEEBRBEREER
HEtEANAMEBEESENS SE A
It 2585142 711,500,000 TR EE - & 2 =
TZ-NF+-_A=+—"8 BELERET
% 1 & AR M80,266,0007T °

RZF-NFHA ZEEFH LR REE
REEARAARNEE TR EIEEFFMEE -

RZZZZTFRA AEEHEHZBEHEK
BEN@BRGE YR -_E-_EFHA+=8
FENRME TEEHEEBEELORD
MERP - AUHBERME  HEMEYE
EEVBRETFROBER  BFEFE Ll
B R (B % #511,500,000% T (HHE N AR
80,266,0007T) °

PDREBEQXTANRE

Share of net assets

EHEEFE

2020 2019
SR = F
RMB’000 RMB’000
rrwTr NGRS
— 157
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

19.Investments in associates (continued)

The following list contains the particular of the associates,

which are unlisted corporate entities:

Form of business

Place of
establishment

= mE -
B iz -

Registered and

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable

19.8BENTINKRE®
TEHIIBSATHEE  EAELTAT

Name of associate structure and business paid-in capital to the Group Principal activities
rEEENL
BENRAER EREBRER ERIZAAE S 3k AMEESELS BEREIL FTEXH
Jinzhou Chengguang New Incorporated The PRC/ Registered capital of 49 Construction of photovoltaic
Energy Technology Co., il AvA Mainland China RMB10,000,000 and power plants
Ltd. ("Chengguang”) R R B A R paid-in capital of BEX KT
88 18 7t 37 8 7R B RMB10,000,000
BRAA (D AMERARE
10,000,0007T
BEHERA
[% #10,000,0007T
Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Incorporated The PRC/ Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Energy Technology Co., il AvA Mainland China ~ RMB20,000,000 and paid- power plants
Ltd. (“Huida") T BB AR in capital of BEXKRES
IHRTEERERMRE RMB4,700,000
RAAN([EED AMERARE
20,000,0007T X E# & A
AR #4,700,0007T
Liaoning Little Giant Energy Incorporated The PRC/Mainland Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Technology Co., Ltd. S B L China RMB10,000,000 and paid- power plants

(“Little Giant") B A in capital of
BEENEAFERME RMB2,000,000
BRAR(/NEAD HMERAARYE
10,000,0007T &% B 41 & A&

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity

method in the consolidated financial statements.

A E#2,000,0007C

BERAAR -

R 35

bt = E R RHERESER KRS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk BB iERR &SN » U AR ¥ 51{E)

19.Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of the material associates,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements, is disclosed below:

19.

REEQNTNKRE @
Ig%%ﬂﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁg%EﬁA*ﬁ

REBRARDEGAUBREAANEMEYE
BHWEMDT

2020 2019
—E-2F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt NS R
Share of the associates’ loss for the year $¢J’7ﬂ£ﬁ EREEEN
17 58 157 1,330
Share of the associates’ total BB AR 2 EE BB
comprehensive loss 157 1,330
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBRBEARZKRE
investments in the associates BREAE = 157
20.Equity investments designated at fair 20U DN AEEFSEEHEEHGT AR
value through other comprehensive aeRENERRE
income
2019
—E-2fF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N R
Equity investments designated at fair value LIAAEEFEBEEFHHA
through other comprehensive income HihiREWENERRE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value JErmiERKE BATE
Jinzhou Runyang Energy Trading Co., Ltd. WBMEEEREE AR AT 190 —
Jiangsu Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology TERUE X AKBRER AT
Co., Ltd. — 1,800

In July 2019, the Group invested RMB1,800,000 in cash for
15% equity interest of Jiangsu Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Yueyang”), a photovoltaic product
manufacturer which commenced production in November 2019.
On 31 March 2020, Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd
("Jinzhou Yangguang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, further injected capital amounting to RMB31,200,000
into Jiangsu Yueyang and increased its equity interest in Jiangsu
Yueyang from 15% to 28%.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEEBEN  AARKGIE)

20.Equity investments designated at fair 20.A 2 AEBESGEBEESHET A
value through other comprehensive S RENERRE )
Income (continued)

On 1 April 2020, Jinzhou Yangguang and other investors R-ZE-_ZFWMA—B  HMEEEME
entered into an acting-in-concert agreement which became BEEITT RO ABRE ZHER=2F
effective on 1 April 2020. According to the acting-in-concert ZEFOA-—BER -BEZ —BITBAW
agreement, other investors agreed to exercise the board CHMEEEREEBMNEE R ERITEE
members’ and shareholder’s vote in concert with Jinzhou $AEX,ﬁDHx$E’]&m% Hit - KAElESE
Yangguang. Accordingly, the Directors considered that the RE BZE-ZTFHA—BR  AARIEN
Company has obtained control over Jiangsu Yueyang and have 15 X9 T & 10 F5 &Y 12 il 42 - 2 A% L B 75 AR 0 AN
consolidated Jiangsu Yueyang's financial position and EEAHIAEBENEGHTBERET -
performance into the Group’s consolidated financial statements
since 1 April 2020.
In July 2020, the Group invested RMB190,000 in cash for 19% RZZEZZEFELA AEEUNREARE
equity interest of Jinzhou Runyang Energy Trading Co., Ltd., a 190,000t FEE M BEEEEREZE BR A F
photovoltaic product trading company which commenced 19%H) X1 - BN EEEREE BRQE 2
business in June 2019. —HARERESIBIEIR_E—-NFAH
16 8 o

21.Deferred tax 21 EERE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in REGEMBRARERNECHBEELEE (A
the consolidated statement of financial position and the BE)MBEEREFREHAT
movements during the year are as follows:

Losses
available for
Depreciation offsetting
Fair value Provision allowance in against
adjustment on for doubtful excess of Provision future
Deferred business debt and related for taxable
income combination inventories depreciation warranties profits Others Total
A%
EBAHH RER HERE EHBAE
EEBA ATE FERE BOHBRE RAEE EHEOEE Hit st
RMB'000 RMB'00D  RMB'000 RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OOD  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBFTT ARETR ARETT AR®TT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTR
£ 1 January 2019 - (2,638) 5,069 4o) 21175 21,765 — 4533
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss
(note 11) — 74 (4,898) 40 (15,377) (11,161) — (31,322)
At 31 December 2019 —E-hE+-A=1+—H — (2,564) 171 — 5,798 10,604 — 14,009
At 1 January 2020 i —ZTE—-Hf—8 = (2,564) 17 = 5,798 10,604 — 14,009
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss R 1828 (30B) /3 A (BH&11)
(note 11) 6,005 73 (171) = (2,141) (10,604) (1,286) (8,124)
At 31 December 2020 RZB-BE+-A=+—H 6,005 (2,491) — — 3,657 = (1,286) 5,885
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B B A A& N - LA AR K FIE)

21.Deferred tax (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of RMB1,644,843,000
(31 December 2019: RMB1,189,560,000) and RMB163,954,000
(31 December 2019: RMB209,192,000) attributable to its
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, respectively, and
certain deductible temporary differences of RMB155,618,000 (31
December 2019: RMB190,748,000), as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses or deductible
temporary differences can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses, RMB163,954,000 (31
December 2019: RMB209,192,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely and the remaining balance will expire at various
dates up to 2024.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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22.Inventories 22.7 8
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position () HEUBRARBEFTERE
comprise:
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREETF T
Materials and supplies R R L & 297,305 248,263
Finished goods BIAK & 158,785 161,665
Less: Write-down of inventories to net B FEMRER#REE
realisable value (21,003) (15,818)
435,087 394,110
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories sold is as follows: b)) EEMNHFESEINOT :
2020 2019
sl T \F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFTERNERHEE 5,053,051 3,774,729
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of 17 & MO, U B
inventories 5,185 (27,005)

5,058,236 3,747,724
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23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 23.BEWEZ KX  BERRBREHN
BE
2020 2019
—ECEHE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETF T
Trade receivables fEUE Z R 1,240,634 1,286,963
Bills receivable JiE Uk 2 i 686,613 80,310
Less: Impairment R E (130,932) (92,669)
1,796,315 1,274,604
Contract assets AENEE 131,935 362
Less: Impairment R E (384) (49)
131,551 313
1,927,866 1,274,917

176

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance in
satisfying the respective performance obligations at the
reporting date on processing and construction contracts. Upon
completion of service and acceptance by customers, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, bills receivable amounting to
RMB260,637,000 (31 December 2019: RMB52,828,000), together
with pledged deposits amounting to RMB632,615,000 (31
December 2019: RMB298,489,000) had been pledged as security
to banks for issuing bills payable to suppliers amounting to
RMB1,112,661,000 (31 December 2019: RMB377,194,000). As at
31 December 2020, borrowings amounting to RMB101,770,000
were secured by certain of the Group’s trade receivables with a
carrying amount of RMB101,770,000 (31 December 2019: Nil).
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31 December 2020 R=E=TF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #EBAZE SN - LAA REEIE)

23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 23. BB ZEF - BEREBREY

(Continued) BEmW
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the RBREPHEER B RERBEEOERK
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net EHRAMERNREREBEEZAHSTOT

of loss allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019

S B =+
RMB’000 RMB'000
LSS T

Within 1 year —FR 1,428,642 971,384
1 to 2 years —EF 295,321 171,110
2 to 3 years —_&E= 58,443 119,270
Over 3 years BBR=F 13,909 12,840
1,796,315 1,274,604
The Group normally grant a credit period of 30 to 90 days to REE— ﬂQZAT“%}E3Oi9OEI M{EEH - B8
its customers. However, regarding domestic photovoltaic module HEAZAMHEE B EEIRZRN @ HKFE
sales, some trade receivables are granted longer credit period of BURR B ER E’JI&EDHH EREEHR
up to 180 days depending on the construction period of K iZE180K

photovoltaic power plants.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade, FHRNERESER EBREBLRENVNEEN
bills receivables and contract assets are as follows: BEREZHUT

2020 2019
—EEH —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

At the beginning of year REA 92,718 118,202
Impairment losses EHERBEEKX 38,598 4,976
Amount written off as uncollectible 38 B Y E 2 5RIE . (30,460)
At the end of year RER 131,316 92,718
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date REREDARAREREETRED N
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The NFHERMESEE - Zat 5 R X N
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time HR EERFEMMBEAHASEHEEAR
value of money and reasonable and supportable information AEIE - BRIRR ARG BEEGEBRN S
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current BRAIFEER - —RiME - WAKEMNZSHE
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. FI B U R BRI - RIS 5 R8BI T A S o

Generally, trade receivables are written off if the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote.
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23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 23.EWEZ KRN - BERRBREH

(Continued)

Affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020, part of the
photovoltaic power station project construction was delayed,
and credit period of some large-scale state-owned enterprises
and multinational enterprises was extended. In response to the
overall market credit risk increase caused by this change,
management assessed credit risk of large-scale state-owned

E®
CSHTEENTE SHONKREUHARRR
WHE LB AMEECEREENCYE
MIEAHIEE - AR LS ERNEEN
BERERREN EEBIGTARNEED
YMERCEMEMHEAR  LAEEHE TR
B -

enterprises and multinational enterprises, made the provision for
impairment loss accordingly.

BREVBRELENFERERAFEMEES
BB EREAFNGBRANARERELRN

The Group applies the simplified approach to the provision for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of lifetime expected loss provision for all trade debtors. To 7 Iﬁtzli’E EHATErAFRER
measure the expected credit loss on trade debtors, trade EEEET%?& EITEEMEEEER - ﬁzﬁ&ﬁ”
debtors have been grouped based on shared credit risk SERBEHNKRREESEREANETHE -
characteristics and the ageing.

TR AEEERBEREEBETENRIE
SHENEERRE R

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using provision matrix:

R=ZF2=-FF+t=-A=t—H
ABEBRE BEMEMERT

As at 31 December 2020
Large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational enterprises
and related parties

Between Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and 3 and Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years

—FR) —-$2-Ff ZHZ=f ZFEZENE HBEANF

Expected credit loss rates BHEEREX 0.32% 2.06% 13.74% 31.69% —
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE(A E#}%‘c) 626,341 301,463 85,494 19,377 — 1,032,675
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BAGERE

(AREFT) 2,002 6,199 11,750 6,140 — 26,091

BRI A BE - B EEMERTI

Except for large-scale state-owned enterprises, multinational
enterprises and related parties

Between Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and 3 and

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years

—-FR -FE-Ff ZFE=F ZFEQNF

Expected credit loss rates BHEEBEXR 9.01% 40.43% 59.96% 70.29% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FREBEARETT) 254,118 94 6,774 2,265 76,643 339,894
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) fﬁi?ﬁ% HER

(NRETT) 22,890 38 4,062 1,592 76,643 105,225
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23.Trade, bills receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

21£%§%Eﬂ\EWEE&é%
()

R-ZZ-AF+-A=+—H

Between Between Between

Within 1 and 2 and 3and Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
- —FE2ZfF ZFE=Ff ZFZNEF BAENF @it
Expected credit loss rates HHEEREX 13.98% 4537% 61.43% 68.37% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FEBEANRETT) 154,455 24918 6,634 49,313 21,978 257,298
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) HHEERE
(ARBTT) 21,595 11,304 4,076 33,716 21,978 92,669

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has assessed that the
expected loss rate for trade receivables from large-scale state-
owned enterprises, multinational enterprises and related parties
was minimal since these enterprises have a strong capacity to
meet their contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and no bad debt experienced in the past. The Directors are of
the opinion that these trade receivables from these parties will
be probably recoverable. Based on the assessment of credit risks
characteristics, no provision for trade receivables from large-
scale state-owned enterprises, multinational enterprises and
related parties was provided as at 31 December 2019.

RZBE-NEFE+ZRA=+—H ETEEKF
HRRB/RERBEEALE BEEMXNEE
BOTWEREZERANERBEREGHE  H
ZELCEREHANBRCNENETEEAR
ATNERRAESRERS MBETLET
REBNLH EFRE RFERENEZE
Wk BRR A RE g U Bl - R B (S B RS 2T
i R=F-AF+-_A=1+—0 "  RFFEX
DERELE BROENBHINELKES
RARHR B -
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24,

Prepayments, other receivables and other

0 FERRE -REREMENK

assets MIE
2020 2019
—E-2F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt NG R
Prepayments for raw materials R BB TES 5RIB 186,217 262,112
Deductible value-added tax IR E 143,973 61,198
Other receivables H b fE W R IE 22,973 33,966
353,163 357,276
Impairment allowance B — (6,800)
353,163 350,476

25.

Other receivables mainly represent deposits and staff advances,
and an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by considering the probability of default. Except the separate
item of prepayments which have already been impaired, as the
financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default, no
impairment was provided during the year.

Pledged deposits

Certain of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to secure

HitBWREBETERRENE
EREAHREEBEOBTE

BRERREMNEBEMNKEIN

T8H IR
TTREDHT -
DS g

HABHEREFENMBEEORL ERER

R - B R PR GO E -

5. BEFER

AEBETROIEARESAAREREORT

180

bank loans and other banking facilities granted to the Group as ERRAMBITREELER  FHMOT
follows:

2020 2019
g =S 33 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AR T
Pledged as security for bills receivables EFERERZERNER D 659,094 298,489
Pledged as security for bank loans ERERRITERMER R = 63,426
Others H 27,006 41,276
686,100 403,191

The effective annual interest rate for pledged deposits with HE-_T-_FTF+-_A=1+—RHIEFE " B

banks was 0.45% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
1.22%).
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31 December 2020 R=ZE=_ZHF+=-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #EBAZE SN - LAA REEIE)
26.Cash and cash equivalents 26.BERBETEEY
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREETF T
Cash and bank balances Re MiRIT4 456,265 396,854
Cash and bank balances totalling RMB256,746,000 (31 RZZEZZTFST_A=+—BNHR & RRT
December 2019: RMB146,637,000) as at 31 December 2020 are A £ AR #256,746,0000L (ZF — L&
denominated in RMB. The RMB is not freely convertible into +TZA=+—H: ARE#%¥146,637,0007T) LA A

other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RENE - ARBAATEHIBASEMER -
A - RIEHBINEE BRO RAEE - EER
NEEERE  AEBEELEZBRERT
AR EABIEINE LUETTIMNEZETS -

RTINS BEHBRITERFERIRZEHF =X
WEOFE - SRITEHMEEFFEREFEAL
B mA KL EERARTHRT
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27.Interest-bearing borrowings and Other 27.5tEBE
Borrowings
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
—E-EF+-RA=+—-H —hE+=-A=+—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
(%) (%)
Notes i - VIESVETOT A O Z R F % Maturity  RMB'000
(o3 (%) I AR%®TR (%) M| AR®EFT
Current: i
Bank loans — secured BITER — HER (@  3.640-7.500 2021 1,112,125 5.655-9.000 2020 862,881
Bank loans — guaranteed fEﬁEm — BER (b) 2.625-9.000 2021 717,603  4.440-7.140 2020 799,615
Other loans — secured HpER — BEA (0 0.000-7.500 2021 511,447 — — —
Other loans — guaranteed ﬁﬂ%m — BER 5.000-5.475 2021 11,637 5.475 2020 10,464
Current portion of ROEGENRBHS :
long-term borrowings :
Other loans — guaranteed HiEHR — DER (b)  1.600-6.000 2021 122,707 1.600-7.500 2020 7,954
Total aat 2,475,519 1,680,914
Non-current: FRE:
Other loans — guaranteed HEMER — BER (b) 1.600 2022-2023 4,060 1.600-7.500 2021-2023 129,325
Total &t 4,060 129,325
(@) The bank borrowings of the Group are secured by: (@) AEBEZRITEENUTI G XIEEA:
(i) the Group's property, plant and equipment with the net (y EENME BELEE FEEFE

book value of RMB932,208,000 (2019: B A R #932,208,000T (= & — A1

RMB749,463,000);

the Group’s right-of-use assets amounting to
RMB106,391,000 (2019: RMB69,843,000); and

no deposits of the Group were used to secure bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB63,426,000).

Certain subsidiaries’ borrowings are guaranteed by the other
subsidiaries of the Group.

Other loans of the Group are secured by:

the Group’s property, plant and equipment with the net
book value of RMB4,410,000;

the Group's bills
RMB403,677,000; and

receivable amounting to

the Group’s trade receivables amounting to
RMB101,770,000, further details are disclosed in note
40 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2020 R=E=TF+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B A sEBAZE 4N » LA A REEFI(E)

27.Interest-bearing borrowings and Other 27.:t BB Ew)

Borrowings (continued)

2020 2019
S =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
LR (=T

Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: ATEENRITER:
Within one year or on demand —FANIEEK 1,829,728 1,662,496
Other borrowings repayable: ATEHENHEMEE:
Within one year —F R 645,791 18,418
In the second year £-F 2,706 126,689
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-EZERTF B
BEEME 1,354 2,636
649,851 147,743
2,479,579 1,810,239
28.Trade and bills payables 2.ENHESRAREEE
2020 2019
e A — T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt NS R
Trade payables B SRR 802,769 694,660
Bills payable FE N Z & 1,208,444 807,964

2,011,213 1,502,624
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31 December 2020 R=E=_ZTF+=-A=+—H
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28.

Trade and bills payables (continued)

(@) The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

8.ERESRIAKREE ®)

(a)

REBEHREER BENESRARERE
BEORKRZEZBHOMAT

follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Within 1 month —@AR 561,240 263,656
1 to 3 months —Z=1@A 589,883 470,864
4 to 6 months 7= 7X@ A 779,100 604,466
7 to 12 months +t=+={@A 63,959 137,950
Over 1 year il —F 17,031 25,688
2,011,213 1,502,624

184

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day credit terms.

(b) As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bills payable of
RMB1,112,661,000 (31 December 2019: RMB377,194,000)
were secured by Group’s bills receivable of
RMB260,637,000 (31 December 2019: RMB52,828,000) and
by Group’s pledged deposits of RMB632,615,000 (31
December 2019: RMB298,489,000).

SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t seiRIZRB R A F
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29.0ther payables and accruals 9. HMENRERENBEX
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
Payables for acquisition of property, plant and BEWME B LEED
equipment FEASF /IR 93,531 8,211
Payables for other taxes H b fE S BEIE 40,071 30,036
Payables for freight JEEE 28,936 5,092
Payables for staff-related cost FEAT B TR B HRIAE 15,528 16,762
Dividends payable FEAS R B 674 152
Other payables and accruals H b fE RIEMEET & A 83,583 8,483
262,323 68,736

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

30.Contract liabilities

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

MeRAEERR LEEEBTEERY -

BHAME
AMBmEENT

30.

HEIXEM

Sale of industrial products

2020 2019
—F_FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
61,318 265,979

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver industrial products. The decrease in contract liabilities in
2020 was mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sale of industrial
products at the end of the year.

é\?ﬁﬁaﬁ BREEHTIXEMNEHBLRN -
—E_THEFRANAERLIEIERARSE
ERATFHEILXEMMELMNEHBER
OB BT ER o
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31.Provisions 31.1%8 &

Provision for

inventory

Provision for purchase
warranties  commitments Total

FEEE
RARE RERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBFTT ARBEFT
At 1 January 2019 RZTE—NF—H—H 109,018 48,883 157,901
Provisions made FT1ER & 18,394 — 18,394
Exchange adjustments BE 3¢, B — 804 804
At 31 December 2019 R_E-NF+-ZA=+—H 127,412 49,687 177,099
At 1 January 2020 RZTE-_ZTF—HF—H 127,412 49,687 177,099
Provisions made FRiER 24,075 — 24,075
Reversal | == (50,423) (50,423)
Exchange adjustments PE 3, B = 736 736
At 31 December 2020 RZB_ZF+_A=+—8H 151,487 = 151,487

186

The Group’s photovoltaic modules were typically sold with a
2-year or 5-year warranty for defects in materials and
workmanship, and a 10-year or 25-year minimum power output
warranty against declines of initial power generation capacity of
more than 10% and 20%, respectively from the date of
delivery. The Group has the obligation to repair or replace solar
modules, under the terms of the warranty policy. The Group
maintains warranty reserves to cover potential liabilities that
could arise under these warranties.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BB EHEIN - LA REZIE)

31.Provisions (continued)

The Group has adopted the estimation where the warranty
obligation is the equivalent of 1% of photovoltaic modules’
revenues, which is consistent with the practice of the solar
industry of China. In light of the historical sharp decline and
anticipated long-term decreasing trend of module prices, the
Group believes that the average selling price of solar modules
over the past two years would reflect the estimated warranty
cost liability precisely, based on the historical experience and
best estimation.

A subsidiary of the Group entered into a long-term supply
contract (the “Supply Contract”) with one of its suppliers in
2011, and made a non-refundable prepayment of
US$11,500,000 in 2012. As at 31 December 2014, the
subsidiary recognised an impairment of US$11,500,000
(equivalent to RMB70,369,000 on 31 December 2014) for the
non-refundable prepayment and recognised a provision of
US$7,122,375 (equivalent to RMB43,582,000 on 31 December
2014) for the onerous contract.

On 27 April 2018, the supplier filed a complaint and a claim of
a sum totalling approximately US$391,000,000 against the
subsidiary for the above alleged breach of the Supply Contract.

In May 2020, the Group reached a confidential settlement
agreement with the supplier and executed the settlement
agreement on 13 May 2020. Among the legally bound clauses
in the agreement, the dispute has been settled and the related
impact has been fully recognised in the financial statements.

31.8 % &)

AREBBEEAEER1%H 5 R84 K WA
REERBER ENEBEAKBETEN
oL - ERAMFERESL LB TR ME
HEHTRNBE REELEBMKEM
B AEERS  EEMFAGEAFHNT
HHEEBERAELE RERKRBROERAK
REME-

REB-—HMBAREEHER Y, —RNZ=ZF
—— FRIIVRAHEAN([HEANDIEA
E-E—ZFIZAHTAAREMNENR
11,500,000FE T c R—E—ME+ A=+ —
B #ZHMBEARERAARERNZERE
11,500,000 L (HE R =T —NMNF+=A
=+—HB AR#%70,369,0007T) T st B EA &
MRBEE7122375X T(HER T —UF
+ZA=+—H ARM%43,582,0007T) °

RZZE—N\FNA-_+tH #ERFH L
BIRERMBEALNMNBARIRRE T HFM
4858 49 /391,000,000F TR R 8 -

RZF_TFRA - AEEEZREREK
REMGERZ YTR_T_FTFRA+=H
BRENRGH EXHZEEERORID
R A EERCMAR - MM BT EC R
MBMRF TN R
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32.Deferred income

Various government grants have been received by the Group for
generating export sales, participating in high-tech industry and
constructing various manufacture and photovoltaic power plants
in Jinzhou, Liaoning Province, Xining, Qinghai Province, Qujing,
Yunnan Province and Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Those government grants related to assets are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially as deferred
income and are amortised to profit or loss as other income over
the useful lives of the assets.

33.Retirement benefit schemes

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries were required to make
contributions to the scheme at 20% of the employees’ salaries
per annum to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group is required to participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes administered and operated by the Bureau of
Labour Insurance of Taiwan for employees employed in Taiwan.
Under the schemes, the employer is required to make
contributions to the schemes at 6% of the employees’ relevant
income. Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of

retirement benefits associated with the schemes beyond the
contributions described above.
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34.Share capital 34. % 7
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBEITRA
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
No. of shares No. of shares ‘000
R E 4! T
Authorised: HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEIELH
L@ 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000
Equivalent to HER RMB450,000 RMB450,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRBEEER:
fully paid:
At 1 January n—A—H 3,211,780,566 RMB276,727 3,211,780,566 RMB276,727
Effect of TDR shares repurchased Bl #54 EF T
and cancelled (note 13) B (BTEE13) (68,009,433) RMB(5,860) — —
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—~H 3,143,771,133 RMB270,867  3,211,780,566 RMB276,727
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34.Share capital (Continued) 34. 1 7K ()

The information about the Company’s ordinary shares is set out The information about the Company’s ordinary
below: shares is set out below:

No. of shares
issued and fully

paid Amount
ERTRAE

R4 B E |

RMB’'000

ARBFT

As at 31 December 2019 —hE+ZA=+—H 3,211,780,566 276,727

Repurchase of TDRs and cancellation of BEEAEFTR E’f&%%

the underlying shares of such ZEEERB & EBFERE

repurchased TDRs 2 B 5 (68,009,433) (5,860)

As at 31 December 2020 R-BE-_EF+-_A=+—H 3,143,771,133 270,867

The Company received a notice from the Taiwan Stock ZAN/NESI DN —NEFETAZBKIEEES

REMOBHM REAEESIIMNEH
RE ARAEBEBRE_ZT-AFAA=T
BIERNEANEKRARRERZGES T B

Exchange Corporation (the “Taiwan Stock Exchange”) on 2
October 2019, whereby the Taiwan Stock Exchange indicated
that it shall require the Taiwan Depositary Receipts (the “TDRs")
of the Company to be delisted with effect from 12 November EBETPWNEEFERNARARAMBKNG &
2019 pursuant to the relevant rules of the Taiwan Stock BzMB=n2—: é?f%aif A2 5 P 2 KR
Exchange as the net assets value of the Group fell below one- RNAIZ BEFERBER_TE-—LF+—A+=
third of the sum of the share capital and the share premium of HALIE BT Bi& é?f%aif F XS FTIRN A
the Company as set out in the unaudited consolidated interim RAB LM AGIHFEERFRIL EHER

financial results of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2019, which was determined pursuant to the relevant
rules of the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation Procedures for Applications by
TWSE Listed Companies for the Delisting of Securities (& /& &%

RO EBERAR LT ARBREEBESRIL L TRER
), the Company is obliged to repurchase 68,009,433 units of
TDRs at an aggregate price of NTD51,211,098. Such 68,009,433
units of TDRs so repurchased by the Company have been
surrendered to and cancelled by Mega International Commercial
Bank Co., Ltd CKEBKEEERTHRMBER 2 A as the
depositary agent. The 68,009,433 underlying shares represented
by such surrendered TDRs were transferred to the Company on
7 April 2020, and were cancelled accordingly on 2 June 2020.

SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t sEiRIZRA R AR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEEBEN  AARKGIE)

35.Reserves

(1)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The share
premium is distributable.

General reserve fund

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC, these PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer a
minimum of 10% of their distributable profits after taxation
based on their PRC statutory financial statements to the
general reserve fund until the balance of the fund is at
least half of the paid-in capital of the relevant subsidiaries.
The amounts allocated to this reserve are determined by the
respective boards of directors with reference to the
minimum requirement.

For the entities concerned, the general reserve fund can be
converted into capital in proportion to the equity holders’
existing equity holdings, provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of shares
allotted and issued over the subscription costs and share
options granted to employees of the Group.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
the Group companies into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.4.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents the differences between
considerations of acquisitions of equity interests from non-
controlling equity owners and the carrying amount of the
proportionate net assets.

35.1% &

(1
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—MEESUIRER
RLE O R A E A
SR E AR25% o

RN
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36.BUSINESS COMBINATION

In July 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd ("Jinzhou Yangguang”)
together with other investors(”“other investors”) established
Jiangsu Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu
Yueyang”). Jiangsu Yueyang is a photovoltaic product
manufacturer located in Yancheng, Jiangsu Province. The
registered capital of Jiangsu Yueyang is RMB100,000,000, of
which the Jinzhou Yangguang invested RMB1,800,000 in cash,
and holds 6% of equity interest in Jiangsu Yueyang. In October
2019, one of the shareholders, transferred 9% of its registered
equity interest of Jiangsu Yueyang to Jinzhou Yangguang, and
26% of its registered equity interest to other two fund
companies, respectively. As of 31 December 2019, the Jinzhou
Yangguang’'s equity interests increased from 6% to 15%.
According to the articles of association of Jiangsu Yueyang, the
directors of the Company considered that the Company did not
have control, joint control or significant influence over Jiangsu
Yueyang, which was accounted for as an equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income since its
investment. On 31 March 2020, the lJinzhou Yangguang's
accumulated investment to Jiangsu Yueyang amounting to
RMB33,000,000, representing 28% equity interest in Jiangsu
Yueyang.

On 1 April 2020, Jinzhou Yangguang entered into an acting-in-
concert agreement which became effective on 1 April 2020.
According to the acting-in-concert agreement, other investors
agreed to exercise the board members’ and shareholder’s vote in
concert with the Company. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company considered that the Company has obtained control
over Jiangsu Yueyang and have consolidated Jiangsu Yueyang's
financial position and performance into the Group's
consolidated financial statements since 1 April 2020.
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36. ¥ &t
REER IHEENA SN EEMAELY

36.BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Jiangsu

Yueyang as at the acquisition date were as follows: AAEEAT
1 April 2020
—E-EF
A—H
Fair value
AREE
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Property, plant and equipment M- BENMEE 122,000
Right-of-use assets FREEE 32,695
Construction in progress EETRE 54,341
Accounts receivable and bills receivable EWE ZERREE 145,344
Inventories 7E 115,001
Prepayments and other receivables TE A5 3R IE K H h pE W SRR 99,376
Cash and bank balances e hkBEEEYD 2,990
Accounts payable B E SRR (262,243)
Accruals and other payables TR S M H Ath fE A FR1E (121,323)
Deferred income IR E U A (32,917)
Lease liabilities MEARE (32,695)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRI FEENAREE 122,569
Non-controlling interests FEFE R HE A (88,291)
Share of net assets acquired FrEEFEEMTE 34,278
Satisfied by: AT HAZA -
Cash Re =
Fair value of previously held equity interest ERFENREQNLEE 34,278
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36.BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Details of the 28% equity interest held by the Company before
the acquisition of Jiangsu Yueyang and the gains from the
investment are as follows:

36. ¥ & )
7% 2 B 18 U B ST B LB 2 BT BT 5:289% B8 1 By
HEER R RE R EENKENT

1 April 2020
—E-%fF

MA—H

RMB’000
AR®BTR

Initial investment cost 4618 B KA 33,000
Share of profit accumulated under the equity method — #253% T FEAE 25 7B =

Book value of the investment in 28% equity of L ER[528% I AR 1R B R UIE B 9 BR &

Jiangsu Yueyang on the acquisition date BE 33,000
Fair value of the investment in 28% equity of Jiangsu  JT&r1%F528% MR ERENWE BN AR

Yueyang on the acquisition date (Note) EE (M) 34,278
Gain on previously held equity interest remeasured at NBEE AN AR BEEFITELIFTE

acquisition-date fair value HY AR 1) U A 1,278

Note: The fair value was determined based on the valuation report
issued by an independent qualified valuer.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
Jiangsu Yueyang is as follows:

o EE REERBREEILSERTHME

AWt fhmEmEE

BRUBIHUEGNRSAENDTNOT

RMB'000

Cash consideration BeRE —

Cash and bank balances acquired EEZIREMBITLHE 2,990
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in RETHEANBReREFREENES

cash flows from investing activities RS EEWFERA 2,990
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37.Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB52,094,000

3N.RERERERME

BRIFRERH
FA-AEERERE  RBERTHHOEE
RO RBRRSEMERREEE LA

(2019: RMB2,410,000) and RMB52,094,000 (2019: E8EARES2,094,0000=2F— N1 A
RMB2,410,000), respectively, in respect of lease R #2,410,0007T) & A K 52,094,000
arrangements for plant and equipment and land. (ZF—N: AR®2,410,0007T) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b) BMEEHEEANABERZL

activities

Interest-bearing

borrowings Lease Liabilities

FFEER HEEE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

At 31 December 2019 RZF-NF+_A=+—H 1,811,628 1,388

Changes from financing cash flows BEREMENZ (L 162,504 (4,132)

New leases FHE — 19,399

Interest expense MEEH — 2,335
Interest paid classified as operating IAMFESEAREERS

cash flow mE — (2,335)

Increase arising from acquisition of a W7 Q& E £ /G M
subsidiary — 32,695
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZEFE+_R=+—H 1,974,132 49,350

Interest-bearing

borrowings Lease Liabilities

FFEEX HEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARET T

At 1 January 2019 RZZ2-AFE—-H—H 1,790,457 2,410

Changes from financing cash flows BERSMENZE L 21,171 (1,022)

Interest expense MEEH — 127
Interest paid classified as operating SR ENEREERS

cash flow k=1 — (127)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+ZA=+—H 1,811,628 1,388
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37.Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

3. HERERME @

ﬂ

(o HERSRHAER

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement ReneExFeRENHERe AL QE
of cash flows is as follows: m
2020 2019
RMB’ 000 RMB’'000
AR T NS R
Within operating activities R ESH 2,335 127
Within financing activities REEEH R 4,132 1,022
6,467 1,149
38.Capital commitments 38. 8 &R
Capital commitments that relate to the purchase of property, ﬁlaﬁ BEVE BEERRER-_Z-_ZFR
plant and equipment outstanding at 31 December 2020 and —NFF+ZA=+t—HHAEEBIT XK
2019 not provided for in the financial statements are as Eﬁﬁi‘%#ﬁﬁmﬁéﬁmﬁﬂi%?ﬁﬂ—r
follows:
2020 2019
—E-2fF —ZE—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt NS
Contracted but not provided for BRI ERGTIREE 523,136 9,907
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39.Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the Group had the following
material related party transactions:

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel receive compensation in the form
of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary
bonuses and retirement scheme contributions. Details of key
management personnel remuneration are disclosed in note 9.

(b) Transactions with a director of a subsidiary and entities
controlled by the directors of the Company/ the investor of
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a subsidiary
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
Sales of goods to: HEEmT
the entities controlled by the directors of AR 7%%&%%%3&%@%@
the Company or close family members Gll:oh-4
of the directors = 77
Purchases of goods and services from: MTAEFTHBEER KRR
the entities controlled by the directors of RARESEXNESMILEAM
the Company or close family members PRI E A2
of the directors 712 3,925
the entities controlled by the investor of KARIMBREIMKESEM
a subsidiary PRI E A2 3,440 —
Receipt of short-term loan from: B A T HOR B B E K
a director of a subsidiary WEBARMH —BESE 12,445 —
Repayment of principal of short-term loan WEI AT HIRR S HE R
from: reEE:
a director of a subsidiary WEBARMH —BESE 3,945 —
Repayment of interest of short-term loan I B LA TR 2ROIR ) 52 B & 3R
from: M EEE
a director of a subsidiary WEARMHN —BESE 311 —
Note: M
In the opinion of the directors, the transactions between the Group FEERAE AEBEBH A CEORSIEE—

and the related parties were conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms,
pricing terms were based on the prevailing market prices.

BEAREHBETREFTHERIET T
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39.

Related party transactions (continued) 39.F 8 A X B (8
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties () HEFEA 2B M AEELER

2020 2019
SR =+
RMB’000 RMB'000
ArmTr NSRS

198

Trade and bills receivables: ERESEREEE :
the associates of the Group NEBEEE QT 103 103
the entities controlled by the directors of RAREEHNESMIIMFBN
the Company or close family members N4
of the directors — 17
103 120
Prepayments and other receivables: T8 A FRIA K E Ath JE U FROE
the entities controlled by the directors of RABIEENESZNLRM
the Company or close family members R E R
of the directors = 3,000
Trade payables: ERE SRR :
the entities controlled by the directors of RRABIEENEZNLRM
the Company or close family members EHIE R
of the directors’ 291 340
Short-term loan: REE R
a director of a subsidiary WMEARMH —RES 8,189 —
Note: B 5

The Group had an outstanding balance due to a director of a
subsidiary amounted to HK$9,730,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,189,000) as at the end of the reporting period. This loan was
received from a director of a subsidiary, and the loan is unsecured,
with a 5% annual interest rate.

Except for the short-term loan from a director of a subsidiary, the
other balances were unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable
on demand. Trade receivables from and trade payables to related
parties were repayable or to be settled on the respective credit
terms.
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40.ZBWHEPHHMKEIT A
SR T AMNKEE

40.Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREPRBEER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as m
follows:

2020 —E-EHF
Financial assets MBEE

Financial
Financial assets at fair assets at
value through other amortised
comprehensive income cost
P%: P
AREERB B2 Bl iR B
HtGEeWENMBEE MKEE
Debt Equity
investment investment
BERE BRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr AR%®Tn AR¥Tr AR%®Tnxn
Equity investments designated @B E 4R 4 YRz A
at fair value through other DREBEEENRE
comprehensive income R E — 190 — 190
Financial assets included in AFARKE SRR K
trade, bills receivables and EEMEREEN
contract assets M EE 686,613 = 1,109,702 1,796,315
Financial assets included in ETATERRIE - Efth
prepayments, other W HENREME
receivables and other assets ENNBEE = — 22,973 22,973
Pledged deposits B F 5K = — 686,100 686,100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBE2EEY = = 456,265 456,265
Financial assets included in FFARBBEARIER
long term prepayments and H th & W SR IE ) B
other receivables BEE = = 398 398
686,613 190 2,275,438 2,962,241
Financial liabilities M aE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LU H B AR 51 iR
W B B &
RMB’000
AR®Tx
Trade and bills payables ENEZERAREE 2,011,213 2,011,213
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A Ffth & - 5018 K & 51 7 2 #9
payables and accruals M aE 206,050 206,050
Interest-bearing bank and other FERITRAMEE
borrowings 2,479,579 2,479,579
4,696,842 4,696,842
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40.Financial instruments by category (continved) 40.3REH B FHWEB K T Ew)

2019 —E-NF
Financial assets MGEE
Financial assets at fair value Financial
through other assets at
comprehensive income amortised cost Total
A% H
ARABEEBBE B AR FI R #Y
Htira Wm0 B EE MBEE Bt
Debt Equity

investments investments

BEHRE RERE

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBFIT AR®FRT AR®TT ARETT

Equity investments designated @B E LS Uk

at fair value through other URAREEEEN
comprehensive income R E — 1,800 — 1,800
Financial assets included in FFAERKESERR
trade and bills receivables EBRNMBEE 80,310 — 1,194,294 1,274,604
Financial assets included in FFATER I - Efth
prepayments, other FE W I K H A&
receivables and other assets ENMBEE — — 33,966 33,966
Pledged deposits B R 17 5K — — 403,191 403,191
Cash and cash equivalents e hkBE&EED — — 396,854 396,854
80,310 1,800 2,028,305 2,110,415
Financial liabilities W% asE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
LA 58 B 7R 71 iR
KB 75 B & st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT AREETF T
Trade and bills payables ERE 5 ERKRE 1,502,624 1,502,624
Financial liabilities included in other & A H b /& {5 508 K B F S 9
payables and accruals (note 29) 7% & & (MY 7E29) 21,787 21,787
Interest-bearing bank and other AFERITREMEER
borrowings 1,810,239 1,810,239
3,334,650 3,334,650
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40.Financial instruments by category (continued)

41.

Transfers of financial assets

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed
Bills”) with a carrying amount of RMB403,677,000 to certain of
its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”), and factored certain trade
receivables(”Accounts Receivable Factor”) with a carrying
amount of RMB101,770,000 to banks in Mainland China to
obtain the cash and cash equivalent(the “Factoring”). In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has retained the substantial
risks and rewards, which include default risks relating to such
Endorsed Bills and Accounts Receivable Factor, and accordingly,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
Endorsed Bills and Accounts Receivable Factor. Subsequent to
the Endorsement and the Factoring, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills and the Accounts
Receivable Factor, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the
Endorsed Bills and the Accounts Receivable Factor to any other
third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade
payables settled, cash and cash equivalent obtained by the
Endorsed Bills and the Accounts Receivable Factor during the
year was RMB403,677,000 and RMB101,770,000 respectively as
at 31 December 2020.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

40.ZBWHE P IT A ®

41.

BRI EE

R-ZZE-_ZEE+_A=+—H0 KAEFZ¥
ZIRMEE A A R¥403,677,0007T ) F B A i
RITEINTSPBERKER(EEREDTE
FiEm WEERNZSHENNENK
([B&] wKEEEARARIE101,770,000
THETESEKRFIEZHEAKREMRITIE
TRERE(BREEKER]) - UEBBRE
kEeSEM(RE]D - EEERA  K~EE
RETERRARMMREH HPpFazyE
ZEREREFRREBEENEZEORR - ALt
AEEBEERRZEEEZRRERERK
EROEFERER REENRER A%
EHSEZRREREERERELEEM
FEHEN BREESEZERERERKE
FOLE #@ENERGEWEME=F R
T EFEA+ A+ B AFEREREE
EZRLPRKERATMEENB S REMNE
FRESNESRACESENREASHE
o Bl B A R #403,677,0000T F1 A R ¥
101,770,0007T °

AFERAFEER

UTRAEESMIANKEBENAAE
B RREBEABBEIAAEBENS®
TR :

2020 2019
—EC_FE —E-NF
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair value amount Fair value
IREEE DAREE REEE RREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Financial liabilities MEaRE
Other loans HtER 4,060 3,809 129,325 140,086
4,060 3,809 129,325 140,086

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

EEECHERENREEEY RBRERES
R BN R RERE - St ABNE - i
EREEMEEFPHNEREE SHAEME
NHRMEFERPHESREE BRI
BREAMESENNAABERIHEREER
FTERARELTARBNIIE-
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41.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
as at 31 December 2020 were assessed to be insignificant.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on
a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e., unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

e level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs, i.e., observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

e  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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41.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the financial instruments of the
Group carried at fair value were equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and bills receivable. The fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments described above is as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

NL2FERAFEEB&K®

G)Qﬁ%@%%%%%ﬁ&&%%
NEEEBHE)
BHEz-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H 4%
EM@ﬁE@%%%%ﬂIEEH%Q
B UHATANAAEBEFEEESRE
B AEMGARENESRT AR ER
EZEE - TRREBTERIANAAEBE
EER

R-ZE_ZTF+-_A=+—

Fair value measurements using

AABEFEDESR

S|

Quoted prices in

Fair value at  active markets Significant other Significant
31 December for identical observable inputs unobservable
2020 assets (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
R-ZB-%f HEEEN BEEWN BEX
+t=A=+—-8 BERTERE HETBEZEGA RO BEH A
MAREE (F-—E&) (E=E#H) (F=ZEAR)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT RE¥&TT ARETT ARBTT
Financial assets ﬁﬂ‘*ﬁ?
Equity investments ’Aﬁfﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
designated at fair value % B AL MRS
through other HﬁZﬁnE’JH(ﬂghﬁ
comprehensive income 190 — — 190
Bills receivable B E R 686,613 = 686,613 =
686,803 = 686,613 190
As at 31 December 2019 RZE2E-AF+_A=+—H
Fair value measurements using
AREBEAESER
Quoted prices in
Fair value at active markets for  Significant other Significant

31 December identical assets observable unobservable
2019 (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
RZZE—NEF HREEN BEEW EZDN
+ZA=+—H ERMISWME HMuHEZHA THBEHA
HAREE (B—EH) (F-EH) (B=EH)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
RET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Financial assets Eﬂ‘%ﬁﬁ
Equity investments NAREEFEEH
designated at fair value ST AL MRS
through other 1451 TR ERE
comprehensive income 1,800 — — 1,800
Bills receivable e % 80,310 — 80,310 —
82,110 — 80,310 1,800
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41.Fair value and fair value hierarchy of MAFERAFEEHK@®
financial instruments (continued)
(b) Financial assets and liabilities for which fair values b) MAREBEIENMEEEMEE
are disclosed
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZFTF+_A=+—H

Fair value measurements using
AREEFESER
Fair value at Quoted prices in Significant Significant
31 December  active markets observable inputs unobservable
2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)

R=g=%% B EX
+t=A=t+-8 EBRTSEE  TEEWA  TTRERA
W2 AMEE (E-E®) (E=ER) (E=ER)
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETE  ARETR  ARMTR

Financial liabilities MK aE
Other loans EMER 3,809 — 3,809 —
3,809 = 3,809 =

As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=-—A=+—8H
Fair value measurements using
RRBEBEFENER
Fair value at 31 Quoted prices in Significant Significant
December active markets observable inputs unobservable
2019 (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
RZE-—NEF+=

A=+—AMAR EBMESHRE (E EZNUERE EATTEHESH
EE —E§) MNEZER) AN(EZER)
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARBFT ARBFT

Financial liabilities HBAaE
Other loans Hin & & 140,086 — 140,086 —

140,086 — 140,086 —
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42 Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Head of Credit
Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

2.V HEREERNREE

AEBEREESMEZ AN RRERR KT
ETERRRBERARZREBERAREH
B REUREASERESESE  BERRRE
R DR SHE S RA AR KA

AEEMAENEER RBELS  FERRIME
R EAREBEEHEER  NREBEAEDN
B B8R DA R AN £R T Bt B IR X 55 L B P R AR
T HREREERRREMHHIWAT -

(a) EERK

AEEERZERAREETENE=
TEIRD - BBRARENRE  EH
BEEGRRETRINEFPLBERBRE
EGERFR TAEE I AEE
EREERBRRAEHRNER  MAKHE
ZEERBIENEKR - HRKERBH
REBMNMEEBAHENR S KEE
EEHEEANSHE AEETE

REEEGN -

&= B R KRB B
TREIREAKREEERRZEREE
EREERARZEARR (EEXERES
TaHER RIFBRBEBERALEN
mARBSEMEREE) KR+ = A
=t—BZEREBRSE-
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42.Financial risk management objectives and 42.BM K EREBEE N REEX @)
policies (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERK (&)
x = B B K G R P ER (48)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) 74
As at 31 December 2020 R-IFE-ZFF+-_H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B
BHEE
%] 2HAHEEER

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach

SRR F2M B S3WE MRE
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®TR

Trade receivables* fEW B 5 B> = = — 1,240,634 1,240,634
Bills receivable e = 5%

— Not yet past due — I AR 58 Hf 686,613 — - 686,613
Financial assets included in MBEEEREERN

prepayments and other HIE - REMTE

current assets BE

— Normal** — [EE** 22,973 e = 22,973

— Doubtful** — R — — — —
Restricted deposits B #1147 5K

— Not yet past due — I AR 58 Hf 686,100 — - 686,100
Cash and cash equivalents RekBES5EIER

— Not yet past due — I AR 58 Hf 456,265 — - 456,265
Long term receivables & BB WU 398 = = 398

1,852,349 = 1,240,634 3,092,983
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42.Financial risk management objectives and 42. MK EREEE N REE @)

policies (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERR @)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) = B b & R PR B ()
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-ANFF+ZHA=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
HHEE
B8 ZHEREEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
SRR FERE R kR BEAE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables* R E 5 B 30 — - — 1,286,963 1,286,963
Bills receivable [E U = 5%
— Not yet past due — I K 8 B 80,310 — — — 80,310
Financial assets included in MBEAECBEEN
prepayments and other PIE - REAMIRE
current assets BE
— Normal** — EE** 33,966 — — — 33,966
— Doubtful** — RER*= — — — — —
Restricted deposits B 1l 77 3K
— Not yet past due — I K 8 B 403,191 — — — 403,191
Cash and cash equivalents BekRe&EFHEER
— Not yet past due — I K 8 5 396,854 — — — 396,854
914,321 — — 1,286,963 2,201,284

* For trade receivables included in trade, bills receivables and
contract assets, to which the Group applies the simplified
approach, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments and other current assets and financial assets
included in other non-current assets is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade, bills receivables
and contract assets, and prepayments and other current
assets are set out in notes 23 and 24.

*ORASEERBERLETEZEEES
ER(BREEESIERRZEMAENE
E)ME  REEEEREZEHNYER
S 23R

= BEAENRE - RRBEERVEE

MBEEBVNSERARZEERRD
Rig EAR  HEEEERERIER] -
BRCFMBEEZEREZREBAARIR
#R] -

AEBHRAGHERESERRZEMA
WEE TENFEREMRBEEME
EEERBBEEZE— P TEEES
B H B 755 5 45 Y 723 243K 75 o
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42.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

As detailed in note 2.1, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB963,767,000 as at 31
December 2020. The liquidity of the Group is primarily
depending on its ability to maintain adequate cash flows
from operations, to renew its short-term bank loans and to
obtain adequate external financing to support its working
capital and meet its obligations and commitments when
they become due. Management is taking certain actions to
address these conditions in accordance with the Group's
policy of regularly monitoring its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. These actions
include negotiating with banks to renew the short term
loans and to explore the availability of alternative sources of
financing. Further details of these actions and bank loans
concerned are set out in note 2.1.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group'’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
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42 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

- 5

¥ @Yy ¥ ¥ .

AT N

NRBKRABREEENREBE®

(b) MENE & E K (

e
i8)

2020
“2-%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AFRAARER

More than More than

Carrying Within 1year but 2 years but
amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

RT=A

=+-B# —ER BE-F BEREF
REE BE RERNRE  EOREmE  BIRIE BRLF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETR ARBTn ARBTR ARETR  AR%Txn
Short-term bank loans BRRTER 2,475,519 2,521,830 2,527,830 - - -
Long-term bank and other loans RAFTREMER 4,060 4,168 ;3 2,750 1,375 -
Trade and other payables ERBESEARAMERFE 2,258,008 2,258,008 2,258,008 - - -
Lease liabilities HERE 49,350 61,740 11,479 13,04 18,134 18,923
4,786,937 4,851,746 4,797,360 15,954 19,509 18,923

2019
“E-0
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ATRANTER

More than More than

Carrying Within 1 year but 2 years but
amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December Total on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

RT=A

=+-Bf A Bh-F BBRE
HfE 8%  RERAR  BORERE  BORIF BBLE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR
Short-term bank loans RERTER 1680914 1723827 1,723,827 - - -
Long-term bank and other loans REBOREMER 129,325 151,205 8,317 140,127 2,761 -
Trade and other payables ERESENREMERTE 1,524,562 1,524,562 1,524,562 — — —
3,334,801 3,399,594 3,256,706 140,127 2,761 -
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31 December 2020

42.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits and RMB wealth management
products with stable interest rates, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. Accordingly, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk, respectively. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate

risk.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings at the end of the

reporting period.

R-ZZE-_TF+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEBEN -

AARETIE)

NREBKREBREEENREBE®

(0 F B
BEBEAENRITERARARKBHE

moh

AEBVEEMERGFEEE °

o REBNKRARKLEHESREANK

ERE WS E

o AN B /) A

XEBRIEREEE - FERELRREE
EAEEDRIAERS RN ERAR LA
FEMERER AEBELEERITEN

BT A AN EER -

MR

TRFAVNAEENREHMEEER

fEEFBO N ERHR

2020 2019
—E-%F —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T Tt AR T
Variable rate FEE£E
borrowings
Short-term bank and HHREMBITER
other loans 117,578 110,332
Fixed rate borrowings EEHEE
Short-term bank and EHREMBITER
other loans 2,357,941 1,570,582
Long-term other loans REJH M E K 4,060 129,325
2,362,001 1,699,907
Total borrowings EEHAE 2,479,579 1,810,239

210

SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED &t seiRIZRB R A F



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
B RS R R M 5

31 December 2020 R—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Bk S B BB E N - A AR K FIE)

42.Financial risk management objectives and 42. MK EREEE N REEX @)
policies (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (o) A =&k (#)
(i) Sensitivity analysis iy BEEDH
The Group
rEE
2020 2019
o423 —E-NF

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in

interest rate profit equity interest rate profit equity

MEEH/ HEEFER) HER Fl=rtH,/ HF5EESE) HiEm

(R &) BN E HnEg (T%) MENTE -2+

% RMB’'000 RMB’000 % RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®ET R AR¥T T ARBFT ARETTT

1 (1,176) (1,176) 1 (1,103) (1,103)

(1) 1,176 1,176 (1) 1,103 1,103
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the N EGERESTER  RENEREE
corresponding effects for the year and equity that REmEHEEERZA  WHHXRE
would have arisen assuming that the change in interest HEMANE RFERNMBE I A&

rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period P& &) F) = B B B - Zliﬁlﬁﬁfvi%%
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate HE 5 B B B —E-NFHON

risk for the financial instruments in existence at that EAERAEEHETT o

date. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as 2019.

(d) Currency risk (d) HIMEE = e

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through REBERZAIINERE - £Z R E KA
sales and purchases, bank loans and cash and bank ﬂg(ﬂﬂﬁﬁ\ %*EF‘%E’J%WW%E%MMWE’]
deposits that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a EB)FHEMHEE MEE ROTERUK
currency other than the functional currency of the ReERBITHER - EELEZER E’J 5
operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies ZRET BT BERPET -
giving rise to this risk are primarily the United States Dollar, EEEWIEHEREHSERTME
Euro, Hong Kong Dollar, Japanese Yen and Chinese Yuan. YE REAREEBEFEABRP W
Management does not expect any significant impact from B ONEE)E (8 e A AL R R R OE o

movements in exchange rates since the Group uses the
foreign currencies collected from customers to settle the
amounts due to suppliers.
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42 .Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities in the consolidated

(BR=BEBEN -

AARETIE)

NREBKRABREEENREBE®

statement of financial position (after elimination of

intercompany receivables and payables) denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

(d) SME R

(i)

i (45
\

HME R B2

TRHAJNAEER REHNEEER
AYE Y HME R B

o, 1
ERIEE

BINE

+ SN | ik (] LA 4E A
BirEsER

ARE MO R (R 2 R R AR
ARENFAR ERNEELRE

A -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

HERR (AARBIIE)
2020 2019
gt 33 ZE-NF
United United
NEICH Hong Kong Japanese Chinese States Hong Kong Japanese Chinese
Dollar Euro Dollar Yen Yuan Dollar Euro Dollar Yen Yuan
E B il AE AR%=n N Eo bk BE  ARER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT BRSNS SN Sy AN
Trade, bills receivables ~ EWEB SHEH R
and contract SERANEE
assets - 96,703 - - - - 80,399 29 - -
Cashathanksandon  $IRFHEES
hand 2,878 19,654 1,597 67 195 1147 16,966 1,001 643 34,985
Interest-bearing loans HEER (202,948) (76,206) (8,375) - (120,000) (179,292) (13,939) - - (120,000)
Trade and bills EREZEIR
payables 28 = = = (75) = (838) - (376) (1324) -
(200,070) 40,151 (6,778) 8) (119,805) (178,983) 83,426 654 (681) (85,015)
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42 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit/(loss) for the vyear and
accumulated losses in equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

2020
—g-ef
Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign Increase/

exchange (decrease)

rates in profit
Ext#n HEEANE/
(T, (BB N

% RMB’000
AR¥ TR
United States Dollar EH 10 (20,007)
(10) 20,007
Euro BT 10 4,015
(10) (4,015)
Hong Kong Dollar Vot 10 (678)
(10) 678
Japanese Yen =RE] 10 (1)
(10) 1
Chinese Yuan AR®T 10 (11,981)
(10) 11,981

NRBKERABREEENREBE®

(d) SN R B (49)

(i)

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity
R
k-2
RMB’000
ARBT R

(20,007)
20,007

4,015
(4,015)

(678)
678

(1)
1

(11,981)
11,981

BRERE DT

TRBETRNAEERANREHHEHEE
BAEERAERBHOEXTELRE

BEE MBAAEEFEFNE (&

B)hi#Em RTEEE RO
) o

2019
—E-NF

Increase/

(decrease)
in foreign Increase/ Increase/
exchange (decrease) (decrease)
rates in profit in equity
EBx 7 HEEHE/ HER
(T®)/ (BR)HFE e
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTI
10 (17,898) (17,898)
(10) 17,844 17,844
10 8,343 8,343
(10) (8,343) (8,343)
10 66 66
(10) (66) (66)
10 (68) (68)
(10) 68 68
10 (8,502) (8,502)
(10) 8,502 8,502

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments (excluding intercompany
receivables and payables which are eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements) held by the Group
which exposed the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of
the financial statements of the Group companies into
the presentation currency. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as 2019.

BRESTDBRRIERBAEBEX
EPEHABAKEMFATHER
HREBREAE HAEINERROZ
EUBTAMBREFAMBEHRRT
H 8 B 2 B R W RR R B R
B) M ABEEAEEMBERE
BEREREEFEENEZR - —F
—NENDM R AR B EEETT -
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42.Financial risk management objectives and 42. MK EREEE N REX @
policies (continued)

(e) Capital management () BB

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its REBERBGTERBRIMERHLERERE -
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher EafEEKTMAEERERRRER -
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher AR BEEEARNRRATIEHAOEZMRE
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security MEPHEHIRGTE TERELEBE LS
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes BMARERERE -

adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

Hﬂ}

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing
ratio as the ratio of total borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents, to the total of share capital and reserves.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as
follows:

AEBNEERBLXEREEARER -
RUME ARESEERBLEES
RERRE RRLASEEY B
BIRARFEEOL X -

R-B-BER-F-AFT-A=t—
W REREIENT

2020 2019
Note RMB’ 000 RMB'000

B & AR T T N

Current liabilities: RBEE:

Bank and other loans RITREMER 27 2,475,519 1,680,914

Non-current liabilities: EREBAE:

Bank and other loans R1T R EH M E 27 4,060 129,325

Less: Cash and cash equivalents R ERBEEED 26 (456,265) (396,854)

Net debt FEE 2,023,314 1,413,385

Share capital % 7 270,867 276,727

Reserves & s (130,312) 156,967
140,555 433,694

Gearing ratio EEEFELX 1,439.51% 325.89%

ZNY/NEIDNES SO TN INCIBERe: =R A
FIEMEEARHRE -

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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43.Events after the reporting period 43.F EHREER

On 21 January 2021, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the Madam SZE Tan Hung (the
“Subscriber”), an independent third party, pursuant to which the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue 180,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$0.29 per
subscription share. The total consideration payable by the
Subscriber under the subscription agreement amounts to
HK$52,200,000 (equivalent to RMB43,567,000). All of the
conditions precedent of the subscription agreement have been
fulfilled and completion took place on 28 January 2021.

R-EBE-—F—A-+—HB AQFEBY
%fﬁmﬂilﬁj: ([READ .Ji‘a%ﬁ%bﬁ%
u %J%U:IZ wuﬁﬁAﬁﬂmm:HEnug% ﬁﬁ$

ﬁ ﬂﬂﬁt A 3 B % & 3 17180,000,0000% 2 & Hx
{ = ﬁ%ﬁ%lﬂy\um E%HXGJ\O 29/&7'5 °© JJE%T)?IJJ
EIBTRE AEN LK E A52,200,000% T
<$E§D.?75A/\EM4356700073> cHRZE=—F
—AZ+NB REWBZETIE L RIEN
HEEK L TR -

44.Statement of financial position of the 44.7x 1 B BF I AR R &R

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

R A E A AR DB BN E AR
PARNE

2020 2019
RMB 000 RMB’000
ARBT T INSE R

Non-current assets RBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB R AR E 1,364,112 1,479,472
Current assets REBEE

Cash at banks and on hand WITRFHERE 1,820 1,631
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables H A fE 5018 31,377 16,820
Net current liabilities RBEEFHE (29,557) (15,189)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBEE 1,334,555 1,464,283
Net assets EERE 1,334,555 1,464,283
Capital and reserves EXREE

Share capital [N 270,867 276,727
Reserves (note) i 1 (P 3E) 1,063,688 1,187,556
Total equity ERBE 1,334,555 1,464,283
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44.Statement of financial position of the 44.75 A 8] B B AR O 3Rk ()
Company (continued)
Note: B 5F
Share Exchange Accumulated Total
premium reserve losses equity
B 0 % 18 BB 5 Rt BB ERAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBETT ARBETT ARBETT

Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZZB-hF—-HF—H

H & B8R 1,731,645 20,276 (600,157) 1,151,764
Changes in equity for 2019: “E-NWFHESEE:
Loss for the year FEER — — (5,506) (5,506)
Other comprehensive income Htz2mEmKA — 41,298 — 41,298
Total comprehensive income EEBABE — 41,298 (5,506) 35,792
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZZ—hI#F

+ZB=+-—BH&H 1,731,645 61,574 (605,663) 1,187,556
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZE§—-HF—H

4 5 1,731,645 61,574 (605,663) 1,187,556
Changes in equity for 2020: “ECEFNEREE:
Loss for the year FEEE — — (4,677) (4,677)
Effect of TDR shares repurchased EIEMZHEAEFIRE

and cancelled -2 (5,611) — — (5,611)

Other comprehensive income Hih2EKA = (113,580) = (113,580)
Total comprehensive income 2HEHWRAERE (5.611) (113,580) (4,677) (123,868)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZF

tTZA=+-HW&H 1,726,034 (52,006) (610,340) 1,063,688

45.Approval of the financial statements 45. 4t B 7 3] &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EEGER_E—F=ZA=+—BRETL
by the board of directors on 31 March 2021. FERI I Bk o
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